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Corporate Profile
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Vedan International (Holdings) Limited has been listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong since 2003.
The Group is the leading producer of fermentation-based amino acids, food additive
products and cassava starch-based industrial products
in Asia. Our products are sold to food distributors, international trading companies,
and manufacturers of food, paper, textile, and
chemical products in Vietnam and other ASEAN countries, the PRC, Japan, Taiwan
and several European countries. Most of our products
are marketed under the VEDAN brand name.
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Since the 1970s, our products have been marketed in Vietnam, the
PRC, and other ASEAN countries. To accelerate market expansion, the
Group established Vietnam Vedan in 1991 as our major production
base. Since then, the Group’s production has been undergoing
continuous expansion due to strong growing demand. The Group
is currently the largest MSG producer in the Southeast Asian
region, and the largest supplier of lysine and cassava starch-based
industrial products in Vietnam. In 1995, Vedan acquired a factory in
Xiamen to focus on developing the PRC market. In 2004, the Group
further acquired the assets and MSG business of Shanghai Vedan
Foods Company Limited, which will be developed into its business
operations center in the PRC, signifying its determination and
commitment to become a major player in the PRC market. To ensure
the Group has a stable supply of starch and a strong production
platform for starch related products, Vedan Vietnam acquired Ve-Thai
Tapioca-Starch Co. Ltd. in November 2005.

Leveraging on our production facilities located in Vietnam and the
PRC, steady upstream supply of raw materials, our possessing of
advanced fermentation production technology and other biochemical
processing technology, coupled with the experienced management
team, the Group boasts strong competitiveness over its peers.
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For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021
us$'000 US$'000 Difference
FxEr FET =&
Revenue Wz 451,007 382,361 18.0%
Gross profit EH 43,349 60,373 -28.2%
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (B518) /&7 (4,384) 11,032 -139.7%
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners B AE (5518) &H (4,386) 11,014 -139.8%
Basic (loss)/earnings per share SREX (F518) /&BF (0.29)  0.72 US cents %Al
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share Sk#E (518 /&BF (0.29)  0.72 US cents Al
Final dividend proposed per share RIKESRKRARKS - 0.162 US cents Al
Total dividends paid and B REIK
proposed per share BRESEE - 0434 US cents Al
(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS REVENUE
7 T12) B 2
A A (53 il in Us$'000 T2t Wi in Us$'000 T3¢
25,000 500,000 451,007
360,741 382,361 1
20,000 16,650 400,000 ,
15,000 300,000
11,014
10,000 200,000
5,000 100,000
2022
0 0
2020 2021 | I 2020 2021 2022
-~
(4,386)
REVENUE BY PRODUCTS REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHIC LOCATION
BEROBEZWE & o8z W
12 months ended 31 Dec 2022 12 months ended 31 Dec 2022
BE_ZT__F+_A=+—HL+_EA ®HE_T__H+"A=+—HL+ZMEA
7.8% 8.4%
7.9% 8.0%
6.3% 8.0%
61.4% 43.2%
16.6 % 13.9%
18.4%
Nt Sirohand Malose el o 0.
BB RABREE o -
s [ i o
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Yang, Tou-Hsiung
L ELEY
Chairman /&

Armed with modern technology and
sound management, we have successfully created a number of
quality products to cater to the consumers’ tastes and demands. e
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHEE

Looking back at 2022, while the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
(the "pandemic”) on the global economy eased, transportation
between various countries gradually resumed and life returned to
normal with the “retaliatory consumption” of basic commodities,
there was also a squeeze on the supply of various raw materials,
coal, and petroleum due to the Russia-Ukraine war that broke out at
the beginning of the year which led to soaring raw material, energy
and ocean freight prices, and the risk of inflation also increased
immediately. Economic growth in the world’s major economies,
including the US, the EU, the PRC, Asia, and Central and South
America, has been significantly affected, adding uncertainty to the
overall operating environment. In addition, since the beginning of the
year, the interest rate hike in the US has had a direct impact on global
financial markets and exchange rates in various countries, hitting
the already fragile economic recovery. Vietnam, the Group's largest
market, has gradually recovered following the improvement in the
pandemic situation. However, the country’s overall economic growth
slowed in the second half of the year due to global inflation, financial
market turmoil and economic downturn experienced by major trading
partners, as a result of the rising raw material costs mentioned above.

The Group's revenue increased by around 18.0%, or approximately
US$69,000,000, from the previous period to approximately
US$451,000,000. Several of the Group’s major products, including
MSG, starch, starch sugar, soda, fertilizers and feed products
showed significant growth. In addition, gross profit for the year
was approximately US$43,349,000, a decrease of 28.2% from the
previous period, and gross profit margin fell to 9.6%, mainly due
to the significant increase in costs as a result of the soaring energy
and raw material prices during the year. Affected by the significant
increase in ocean freight rates and interest rates of borrowings, net
loss for the year decreased by approximately US$15,416,000 from
the previous period to approximately US$4,384,000, with net profit
margin down to =1.0%.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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EEFERNEEBRNIEST—EEEZT KAl
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4,335BE T BRATHAT%28.2% > EFIEERE
9.6% c EFTHREIEERAENEFRARMIME
AR R AKBIRA -RAR FREEE
KiE EFRBEERFIEKNE L5 BFERNFEER
BHA38EET RATH T ELA1,5428 %
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHEE

Most products reported improved sales in key markets. In the
Vietnam market, the increase in market demand for products such
as MSG, starch, soda and fertilizers as well as the rise in product
prices to reflect the higher costs resulted in a notable increase in
revenue of around 15.1%. Regarding the Group’s operation in the
PRC, the relatively late relaxation of pandemic control measures
affected the sales and transportation of various products, resulting
in a year-on-year decrease in overall revenue of around 1.2% in the
PRC. In addition, in view of the modest improvement in economic
conditions in Japan, the Group implemented a flexible sales strategy
to meet local demand. As a result, sales of various products such
as MSG, modified starch, feed and fertilizers, increased, and overall
revenue grew by approximately 32.2% year-on-year. In the ASEAN
market, sales of core products, including MSG, modified starch,
feed and fertilizer, increased due to a faster return of social growth
momentum and stronger demand, leading to a 23.8% year-on-
year increase in revenue in the region. In addition, as the pandemic
situation improved slightly in the US market, the demand for MSG,
starch sugar and modified starch rose, resulting in revenue growth
of approximately 38.7%. However, starting in the fourth quarter,
demand dropped suddenly as consumption turned conservative due
to the impact of sharply rising interest rates on the US dollar in
the short term. Subsequent sales momentum in the overall market
remains to be seen in the aftermath.

%EE%EEﬁ%ﬁmﬁzﬂﬁémﬁMk
LZEFERE -EHETE KB R BFiTH
ENEEREEATEE xwm;mﬁ%&m
BA LR EBEMEA HEWBERSY
151% EREBAEFPEHENEE > it iHE
PERANRRERG Y ESBERZHEA
BE > UNPEERERBRAIETBO1 2%
B BEATHENEE RELESREZA
HMAEMME RESEHFER ETEEZH
EXE FRFEEER WKFB  SERM L
FANEHESYERER BERE WKL E
#932.2% - MERBATH » AL EEBEMERR
ERRER TEMHEEES QEKBE &M
B ERER ZHEEHEEEM FERRIE
Bz E W AT HAE R23.8% o fRIL 2 4h > 7
EETH WABEHABE  HEB  BRHDE
HgERMERTMZERIEGM FEBIEMAY
38.7% AT FMNEFR  RETLEOEHRZH
FE CHBEEERT BXRER BERTHEE
ZHENENEFER-
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHEE

By product category, as the pandemic situation was relatively stable
during the year when compared with the previous period, demand
for the Group’s major products, MSG and seasonings, increased in
all major markets. Moreover, the selling prices were adjusted upward
due to the rising costs, and sales rose by approximately 22.0%
over the previous period. However, due to market competition, the
increase in selling prices failed to reflect the increase in production
costs, resulting in a notable decrease in profit, which was the
main reason for the sharp decline in profit of the Group during
the year. Demand for the Group’s other major products, modified
starch and starch sugar, increased during the year. Moreover, the
Group continued to promote new specification products and high-
value-added products, which recorded steady growth in Europe
and Vietnam, leading to stable growth in overall sales volume and
revenue of the Group’s modified starch and starch sugar products,
with the revenue increasing by approximately 10.8% against the
previous period. Currently, the Group attaches great importance to
the potential and development of such products in the market and is
committed to the development of such products and their extensions,
with the aim of developing diversified products and developing new
products with higher added value. In addition, the growth in market
demand in Vietnam for hydrochloric acid and soda products in the
specialty chemicals and the increase in their international prices
during the year drove the overall revenue of specialty chemicals to
increase by 32.7% compared with the previous period. Regarding
the Group’'s fertilizer and feed products, overall sales rose by
approximately 23.4% from the previous period due to the Group’s
efforts to secure new customers, meet market demand, consolidate
sales channels and improve the product mix, as well as the higher
selling prices of products driven by growing demand and costs during
the year. In addition, in order to capitalize on the rapid growth of
the consumer goods industry in Vietnam, the Group is cooperating
with internationally renowned brands in product distribution with
the aim of diversifying and expanding the Group's operations. In
regard to the trade products distributed by the Group in the PRC,
including bulk food ingredients and coffee beans, the sales volume
decreased due to the impact of the pandemic. Consequently, revenue
fell by approximately 11% during the year when compared with the
previous period.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHEE

Looking ahead to 2023, factors such as the ongoing Russia-Ukraine
war, instability in energy and raw material supply, global inflation
risks, and volatility in exchange and interest rates will continue
to bring a considerable degree of impact and complexity to the
economic and business environment. These uncertainties will also
affect the operating risks and opportunities in the coming vyear.
The Group expects that the uncertainty in the supply of various
international and local raw materials, energy and packaging materials
will continue next year. However, given the current market supply
situation, the prices of raw materials, energy and freight are likely to
decline slightly from their current high levels. This will help stabilize
the Group’s production costs and profit to some extent. However,
the risk of inflation will continue to rise and demand will still shift
to more conservative levels. In particular, Vietnam has been affected
by the global economic downturn and financial market volatility,
resulting in sluggish purchasing power. This will pose a challenge
to operations next year, hence the Group will monitor changes in
the market more closely and remain agile. The Group will also make
more flexible procurement arrangements to stabilize production costs,
adjust and strengthen sales strategies in a timely manner, accelerate
the development of new products and the formation of strategic
alliances, pay greater attention to fund management, make prudent
investment evaluations, save costs and monitor account receivables to
stabilize its operations.

Although Vietnam’s overall economic activity has slowed slightly
in the short term due to the aforementioned economic factors,
there is still tremendous potential for development once the short-
term economic volatility is over given its overall favorable business
environment and various trade agreements, such as EVFTA, UKVFTA
and RCEP, signed with countries and regions including ASEAN
member countries, the EU and the UK. Therefore, the Group will
remain cautiously optimistic and strive to stabilize and enhance the
flexibility and agility of its operations in order to seize opportunities
and respond to the rapidly changing operating environment. Building
on its solid long-term business foundation, the Group believes that
its businesses will continue to advance along the right development
track, and all members of the Group are well aware of the
opportunities as well as their responsibilities in the changing business
environment. The Group will strive to achieve greater breakthroughs
and developments in its performance and operations by executing its
established business strategies in a pioneering and pragmatic manner.

By Order of the Board

Yang Tou-Hsiung
Chairman

21 March 2023
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As a successful long-term player in a market with significant entry barriers,
Vedan International has distinct competitive advantages that add real
value to its products. With advanced expertise in large-scale fermentation
technology, starch processing conversion technology and chemical and
electro-chemical technology, Vedan International is developing new products
which represent the latest breakthroughs in industrial science and look set to
be major profit drivers in the future.

KBRS EZATRES MERERBlCIES BERAES
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN Rk

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In 2022, the COVID-19 pandemic situation gradually improved.
However, the outbreak of the Russia-Ukraine war led to soaring
global energy and raw material prices and a sharp rise in global
inflation risks. In addition, the US initiated a cycle of interest
rate hikes, giving little room for optimism. Global economic
growth decreased from 5.6% in 2021 to 3.4% during the year,
indicating that the path to economic recovery remains full of
challenges and uncertainties in various countries.

During the year, the Vietnamese government effectively
brought the pandemic outbreak under control and subsequently
opened its borders on 15 March 2022. The flow of people
and goods gradually resumed. Total import and export trade
volume increased from approximately US$668.6 billion in 2021
to approximately US$730.2 billion, with a trade surplus of
approximately US$12.0 billion, an increase of 18% over 2021.
Looking back at 2022, the Russia-Ukraine war impacted the
global economy, with a sharp rise in energy and raw material
prices leading to global inflation. However, the Vietnamese
Dong depreciated only slightly against the US Dollar by 1.97%
in 2022 due to the effective stabilization of the exchange rate
by the Vietnamese government. The Consumer Price Index
(CPI) increased by 3.15% year-on-year, below the 4% inflation
target. Compared with the global inflation rate of 8.8%,
Vietnam performed well in curbing inflation. Its overall GDP
growth was strong at 8.02%, better than the 6% expected
by the Vietnamese government, indicating the strength of the
recovery in Vietnam's economic activity.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENRRAN

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

The Group's revenue for 2022 was approximately
US$451,007,000, an increase of 18.0% or US$68,646,000
over the same period last year. The revenue growth was mainly
attributable to the increase in sales volume and revenue of
the Group's key products such as MSG due to the increase
in demand and sales prices, in addition to the rebound in
economic activity in Vietnam as compared with last year.
Nevertheless, as a result of the soaring raw material prices
and energy costs, the gross profit declined significantly during
the year when compared with the previous year. The Group
moderately adjusted the selling price of modified starch to cope
with the rising raw material prices and continued to develop
new products, resulting in overall revenue growth. With regard
to maltose, its orders dropped sharply due to weak market
sentiment in the US, resulting in lower sales volume and gross
profit. As for specialty chemicals, both revenue and profit grew
significantly over last year as the Group adjusted its selling
prices. Given the price competition among industry peers,
hydrochloric acid recorded an increase in sales volume, but
revenue and gross profit were lower than last year due to lower
average selling prices. Regarding fertilizers and feed products,
the Group focused on consolidating its sales channels and
adjusting the product mix and endeavored to develop higher-
margin products. In addition, sales volume and revenue of some
of the Group’s other products, including coffee and bulk food
ingredients, were lower than last year due to logistics issues
and a significant contraction in consumption in the PRC as a
result of the strict pandemic control measures implemented
in the country. The Group achieved growth in revenue during
the year but its profit declined due to rising raw material and
energy costs. The overall gross profit margin fell to 9.6% from
15.8% in 2021. Gross profit amounted to US$43,349,000,
a year-on-year decrease of US$17,024,000. Net profit
margin dropped to -0.1% from 2.9% in the same period of
2021. Net loss was US$4,384,000, a year-on-year decline of
US$15,416,000.

.

EGEE (@)
EE2022F & WEL451,007,000
Ex BREERBP LEA18.0%F LM
68,646,000 T EWIE EMETERE
BRTHBEKETBAREREELFA
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S ERE S

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Vietnam is one of the few countries that has been relatively
successful in containing the pandemic, with stable economic
growth over the long term. In the midst of the Sino-US trade
conflict, Vietnam has become a target for many companies
looking to relocate their production facilities. It has also actively
participated in regional economic and trade consolidation,
for example by signing free trade zone agreements such as
the Free Trade Agreement (FTA), the Comprehensive and
Progressive Agreement for Trans-Pacific Partnership (CPTPP)
and the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP)
with developed economies such as the UK, the EU and the PRC,
which is beneficial to the overall development of the country.
Furthermore, with the improvement of the pandemic situation
since the beginning of 2022, social distancing measures have
been gradually lifted and the economy has slowly recovered.
Vietnam's overall GDP growth was strong at 8.02%, better
than the 6% target of the Vietnamese government. The PRC
continued to adhere to its zero-COVID policy for most of
2022, which severely hit business activities. There was much
disruption in the supply chain, impacting the global economy.
As a result, the PRC's economic growth was only 3% in 2022,
a notable decline when compared with 2021 (8.1%). The PRC
has accelerated the easing of its lockdown policy since late
2022, but its economic growth has remained unsatisfactory in
the short term. It is expected to improve in the spring of 2023.
A more meaningful rebound is expected to occur in the second
half of 2023, with economic growth estimated at 5% in 2023.

The global economy was affected by rising raw material and
energy prices and the interest rate hike of the US dollar, which
raised the possibility of economic recession. The timing of the
end of the Russia-Ukraine war, the cessation of interest rate
hikes and developments in the PRC following the relaxation of
its restrictions are key to the economic recovery in 2023. Based
on the outlook of the impact of the changing international
economic situation on the Group, the Group will adopt a
steady development strategy to strengthen the consolidation
of its supply chain operation and management, seek strategic
alliances with industry peers or different industries, and
continue to step up efforts to develop high-value products in
order to enhance the Group’s core competitiveness and create
greater business value.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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BEEENRRAN

Il. BUSINESS ANALYSIS

(1) Sales Analysis by Market

s EESR

(=) HEHED

2022 2021 Difference
k- “E--F =8

US$'000 % Us$'000 % Us$'000 %
Country ETE TEr % FTEr % ST %
Vietnam gE) 194,999 43.2% 169,363 44.3% 25,636 15.1%
Japan H 83,083 18.4% 62,832 16.4% 20,251 32.2%
PRC HE 62,663 13.9% 63,447 16.6% (784) (1.2%)
ASEAN REEAR 35,991 8.0% 29,067 7.6% 6,924 23.8%
UsS =H 36,256 8.0% 26,132 6.8% 10,124 38.7%
Others HA 38,015 8.4% 31,520 8.3% 6,495 20.6%
Total A% 451,007 100.0% 382,361 100.0% 68,646 18.0%

Vietnam BE TS

Vietnam is the Group’s largest market. During the
year, revenue was approximately US$194,999,000,
an increase of approximately US$25,636,000, or
15.1%, when compared with the same period last
year, though its share of revenue slightly fell from
44.3% to 43.2%. The increase in revenue from
Vietnam during the year was mainly due to the
Group's price adjustments of MSG, modified starch
and soda products in response to rising costs, as
well as enhanced inventory control and production
efficiency, which effectively boosted sales volume
and revenue. In addition, the Group made efforts
to consolidate its sales channels and adjust the
structure of fertilizers and feed products during the
year, resulting in growth in both unit prices and
revenue.

HREAXRERF—AHIE
FEREUWLA194,999,000
Ex OREZFERAHEMLY
25,636,000 7834 15.1% > &
WG tE 44 3% A THRE
43.2% o F N 5 = Y
o EEREE - 24 R D A
BITEERREERAS M
BEEE RELCEFEEH
RAEENE BREFHE
EREWR B ERNEER
NUEGHEBKEFER
AN ERGE TEHEEE
BN R o
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EEEN Rk

Il. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)
(1) Sales Analysis by Market (continued)

2.

Japan

Japan is the Group’s second largest market. As
the country’s economy gradually recovered as a
result of the improving pandemic situation during
the year, demand from the MSG consumer market
rebounded, and the Group moderately adjusted
its selling prices to reflect rising costs, leading to
a rise in revenue. The Group also continued to
expand its customer base in the starch and fertilizer
product markets, promote cross-sector applications
and actively developed high-value-added products,
supporting the overall growth in revenue and
profit. Revenue for the year was approximately
US$83,083,000, an increase of approximately
US$20,251,000 or 32.2% when compared with
2021, and its share of the Group’s revenue rose
from 16.4% to 18.4%.

The PRC

During the year, revenue from the PRC market
was approximately US$62,663,000, a decrease of
approximately US$784,000 or 1.2% against 2021,
and its share of revenue declined from 16.6% to
13.9%. The contraction in revenue against the
same period last year was mainly due to the slow
economic recovery as a result of the implementation
of the zero-COVID policy in the PRC during the year,
which led to lower shipment volume and revenue
from various products.

The ASEAN Market

Revenue from the ASEAN market (excluding
Vietnam) amounted to approximately
US$35,991,000, an increase of approximately
US$6,924,000 or 23.8% relative to the same period
in 2021. Its share of the Group’s total revenue
climbed slightly from 7.6% to 8.0%, mainly due
to the growth in sales volume and revenue of MSG
and fertilizers. The ASEAN market has always been
a key market for the Group to aggressively develop.
The Group hopes to realize its industry advantages
and expand into this market with its core products,
seek new customers, explore new markets,
establish closer partnerships and broaden its sales
channels in a bid to achieve a breakthrough in sales
performance.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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BEEENRRAN

BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)

s EESR (@

(1) Sales Analysis by Market (continued) (—) TBHE DR @&
5. The US 5. E[EF
Revenue from the US market was approximately EETHEEREROA
US$36,256,000 during the year, an increase of 36,256,000 7T > 8220214 [
approximately US$10,124,000 or 38.7% compared HAHEAN4910,124,000E T3
with the same period in 2021, and its share of the 38.7% > ME WL EEH6.8%
Group’s revenue increased from 6.8% to 8.0%. The WESON FRERERE
increase in revenue during the year was mainly due BERKBEZTIHERIEM &
to the growth in market demand for MSG, which FEBRHESRIT EEE
pushed up selling prices, sales volume and revenue. BE2 LRk - ANEBBEIERBE
With the Group mastering key sales channels and EEHEBRARER BAE
customers, consolidating its production and sales HEBER FEBETHER
value chain, developing products to meet customer Ef URMERRERKRES
needs and improving product competitiveness, EGRBEN REBHEHRR
it will continue to monitor the sentiment and EFHEERREUAAREER
performance of the US market and support its FERm™S -
customers in expanding their market.
6.  Other Markets 6. EHmbEs
Other markets are mainly Taiwan, Korea and the EU. HtHmHFrEASE 8BE=H-
Total revenue during the year was approximately BMEMmG  FRGE KA
US$38,015,000, up by approximately US$6,495,000 #38,015,0003 75 > #2021
or 20.6% against the same period in 2021. Its share FHMNA6,495,000E T
of the Group's total revenue increased from 8.3% 20.6% > HEEEE W H
to 8.4%, mainly due to the significant increase in 8.3%ILES.4% » EUILME
revenue resulting from the rising market demand ERE MR HIHBEREFA
for modified starch. REXHARANBENIER -
(2) Sales Analysis by Product (Z) ERHEERH
2022 2021 Difference
ZEIZE ZET-F ER
Us$'000 % Us$'000 % Us$'000 %
Item BH TERT % TEn % TEn %
MSG and Seasonings Bk EAEEIAR 277,042 61.4% 226,991 59.4% 50,051 22.0%
Modified Starch, SRn
Native Starch and KR Bwn
Starch Sugar A 74,973 16.6% 67,684 17.7% 7,289 10.8%
Specialty Chemicals RbER 28,302 6.3% 21,330 5.6% 6,972 32.7%
Fertilizers and Feed AE B E
Products 35,634 7.9% 28,870 7.6% 6,764 23.4%
Others Hith 35,056 7.8% 37,486 9.8% (2,430) (6.5%)
Total At 451,007 100.0% 382,361 100.0% 68,646 18.0%
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EEEN Rk

BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)

(2)

Sales Analysis by Product (continued)

7.

MSG and Seasonings

During the year, revenue from MSG and seasoning-
related products amounted to approximately
US$277,042,000, a surge of approximately
US$50,051,000 or 22.0% when compared with
2021. The growth was mainly due to the rising
demand in the Vietnam, Japan, ASEAN and US
markets. In addition, the Group raised the selling
prices of its products to reflect the sharp rise in raw
material and energy costs, resulting in higher sales
volume and revenue. The revenue contribution from
MSG and seasoning-related products jumped from
59.4% in 2021 to 61.4%.

Modified Starch/Native Starch/Starch Sugar
Modified starch, native starch and starch sugar
products recorded higher total sales and profit
during the year, with revenue up by around
US$7,289,000 or 10.8% to approximately
US$74,973,000. This was attributable to the
stabilization of cassava raw material prices,
effective procurement strategies and the increase
in demand for organic products during the year.
The sales volume and revenue of native starch
and modified starch decreased in the PRC due to
the sluggish local market. However, the Group
continued to actively develop new products with
higher added value and deepen cooperation with
leading companies around the world, which points
to promising profit potential for the future. As for
starch sugar products, as sentiment in Europe and
the US remained subdued, customers reduced their
order placement leading to a year-on-year decline in
revenue.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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BEEENRRAN

Il. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued) — BESW @
(2) Sales Analysis by Product (continued) (Z) ERFEEDR @
3. Specialty Chemicals, Fertilizers and Feed Products 3. HFEEDEEEN

Specialty chemicals including hydrochloric acid,
soda and bleach are sold in the Vietnamese
market. Total revenue from specialty chemicals was
approximately US$28,302,000 during the year, an
increase of approximately US$6,972,000 or 32.7%
when compared with 2021, which accounted for
6.3% of the Group’s total revenue, up from 5.6%.

Soda product prices increased significantly during
the year, and revenue and gross profit surged
accordingly. Affected by low price competition,
sales volume of hydrochloric acid products rose
slightly, but selling prices dropped modestly due to
market conditions. Overall revenue and gross profit
also fell marginally compared with the previous
period.

As for fertilizers and feed products, sales volume of
solid fertilizers and feed products declined during
the year, and overall market demand remained
weak. However, the selling prices of certain
products were raised to reflect rising costs, which
boosted revenue. The Group actively launched
products with new specifications, effectively
explored new customers and improved its product
mix, allowing it to set higher product prices and
achieve revenue and profit growth. It will continue
to promote high-value-added specialty fertilizer
products and develop new sales channels going
forward. Revenue from fertilizers and feed products
increased by US$6,764,000 or 23.4% year-on-
year to approximately US$35,634,000, and its
contribution to the Group's total revenue rose from
7.6% 10 7.9%.

Other Products

Revenue from other products was approximately
US$35,056,000, a decrease of approximately
US$2,430,000 or 6.5% compared with 2021, and
the segment’s revenue contribution to the Group’s
total revenue fell from 9.8% to 7.8%. The decline
in revenue was mainly due to weak consumption
as a result of the strict pandemic control measures
introduced in the PRC and the drop in sales
volume of coffee beans and bulk food ingredients
distributed in the PRC.

WIEERBITERE &7
EHK MR EEEANEE -
BRETEREKREARNEGHDN
#28,302,0003 75 #2021
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EEEN Rk

MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY OVERVIEW

(1)

(2)

Cassava/Starch

For the 2021/22 production season, output in major
plantation areas such as Thailand, Vietnam and Cambodia
was expected to be stable. At the beginning of the
production season, cassava was still in short supply and
its price was at a relatively high level. However, as cassava
production increased at the beginning of 2022, the price
gradually returned to a reasonable level. In response,
the Group explored more new supply sources, seized the
right procurement timing and adjusted inventory levels to
control procurement costs in 2022 and improved profits.
In 2023, the Group will continue to strengthen its long-
term strategic supplier alliance, flexibly control the source
of raw materials and stabilize the procurement costs of
the supply chain.

Molasses

The global production volume of molasses in 2021/22
was 65,800,000 tons, up slightly from 64,530,000 tons
in 2020/21, an increase of approximately 1,000,000 tons.
The strong trend in molasses prices, which have remained
at historically high levels for a long time, is due to the rise
in fuel and ethanol consumption and the overall tightness
of the animal feed market, coupled with the high prices
of corn and wheat and the shift of certain molasses
exporting countries to non-exporting or importing
countries in 2021/22, resulting in an undersupply.

Global molasses production volume in 2022/23 is
estimated to reach 66,800,000 tons, slightly higher than
in 2021/2022. All other countries (except India) will not
export significant quantities of molasses, and India will
utilize a significant portion of molasses in its ethanol
production plan, which will result in higher demand in
sugar and molasses.

Overall, there was a small increase in total molasses
production in 2022/23, but the outlook for export
volumes of this product is not positive, as a considerable
portion of the increase in output will be used for ethanol
production. Market prices for molasses are expected to
remain firm. The Group will continue to closely monitor
changes in the international molasses market and actively
develop additional new supply sources to ensure stable
access to raw materials.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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BEEENRRAN

Ill. MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY OVERVIEW

(continued)

(3) Energy
Crude oil:

In 2022, the conflict between the West and Russia
intensified. Both sides used energy as a bargaining chip
for sanctions, which triggered drastic fluctuations in the
energy market and caused a further reduction in global
oil supply. International crude oil prices remained high
as a result. At one point, European ICE Brent crude oil
approached US$140/barrel, setting a new record since the
financial crisis in 2008. In 2021, the rise in international
crude oil prices was mainly due to the increase in
demand after countries lifted lockdown measures and
OPEC+ reduced production or resumed it slowly. The
increase in crude oil prices in 2022 was mainly because
the conflict between Russia and Ukraine blocked the
export of Russian natural gas and crude oil, resulting in
an imbalance in the supply and demand of energy and

inflation.

Coal:

International coal prices rose again in January 2022 after
Indonesia issued a ban on coal exports. In late February,
the outbreak of the Russia-Ukraine conflict triggered a
surge in natural gas prices, as well as global coal prices,
which soared to a record high of nearly US$400 per ton
in March 2022. As of May, coal prices in Europe and
Australia have rebounded again, and the price of high-
quality Australian coal climbed to an all-time high of
US$425 per ton. As of September, the price of high-

quality coal reached US$443 per ton.

In 2023, natural gas and coal prices are expected to
remain high and stabilize only in the second half of 2023,
depending on the development of the Russia-Ukraine

conflict.
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EEEN Rk

I1l. MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY
OVERVIEW(continued)

(3)

Energy (continued)
Electricity:

The Vietnamese government reopened its borders at
the beginning of 2022. To revitalize economic activity,
electricity tariffs remained unchanged and stable.
Moreover, plans have been made to upgrade electricity
engineering works to meet the demand for electricity
as production activities resume post-COVID. However,
with the influx of foreign capital and the impact of rising
international energy costs, the Vietnamese government
is considering raising the electricity tariff in 2023 in
response to rising energy costs and the lack of coal
supply, but it has also stated that it will carefully review
the possible tariff hike as it may trigger inflation.

The Group has been using a cogeneration power system
to ensure a stable supply of electricity. It will continue to
promote energy saving measures and increase flexibility
in procuring coal and natural gas to reduce the impact of
rising energy costs on the Group.

IV. FINANCIAL REVIEW

(1)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group had cash and cash equivalents, short-
term bank deposits and term deposits amounting to
Us$47,810,000, a decrease of US$21,934,000, or around
31.4%, when compared with the end of 2021. Total bank
borrowings amounted to US$59,621,000, an increase of
US$19,313,000 or approximately 47.9% from the end of
2021. The borrowings were mainly denominated in US
dollars, accounting for 94.5%

Trade receivables amounted to US$33,990,000, an
increase of US$1,826,000 or approximately 5.7% from
the end of 2021. Total inventory was US$140,527,000, an
increase of US$38,878,000 or approximately 38.2% from
the end of 2021.

During the year, the rise in short-term borrowings led to
an increase in current liabilities, and, as such, the Group's
current ratio decreased from 2.98 at the end of 2021 to
2.28. The Group’s financial structure remained healthy.
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BEEENRRAN

IV. FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
(2) Exchange Rate

Vietnam’s ample foreign exchange reserves have kept
the Vietnamese Dong (VND) stable in recent years. The
currency’s performance has been relatively robust when
compared with the currencies of other major ASEAN
economies such as Singapore, Indonesia and Thailand,
despite the impact of the pandemic and the appreciation
of the US dollar (USD). The central exchange rate for the
VND announced by the State Bank of Vietnam slightly
depreciated by 1.97% at the end of 2022. Vietnam
is expected to maintain its export growth and a trade
surplus in 2023. However, the VND will face increasing
pressure to depreciate in 2023 as the US raises interest
rates continuously and the US dollar strengthens. The
Group will closely monitor the interest rate hikes in the
US and exchange rate movement between USD and VND.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly engaged
in local sales with transactions denominated in RMB.
Affected by the interest rate hikes in the US, experts
forecast that the RMB will face depreciation pressure
in 2023. However, the currency will maintain a higher
degree of flexibility. At one point in the second half
of 2022, the currency depreciated to around RMB7.3/
USD, but rebounded to around RMB6.9/USD at year end.
Looking ahead to 2023, the currency will depend on the
interest rate hikes in the US and the economic recovery of
the PRC, and the Group will continue to monitor changes

in the exchange rate between RMB and USD.

(3) Loss per Share and Dividends

Basic loss per share were 0.288 US cents for the year. The

Board decided not to declare any dividend.

V. PROSPECTS

In 2022, the supply of energy and raw materials remained
unstable and inflation continued to be high due to the ongoing
impact of COVID-19 and uncertainty over when the Russia-
Ukraine conflict will end. In an effort to curb inflation, the
US has increased interest rates, which drove up operating
and capital costs of companies and increased pressure on
businesses. Downside risks to the global economy have risen

sharply, impacting economic recovery and growth.
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V. PROSPECTS (continued)

Despite the unprecedented economic environment and
changes, the Group will continue to improve the flexibility of
its overall operations, adjust its business portfolios and models,
strengthen its organizational operations to raise management
efficiency, actively develop new products, expand the scale of
production, focus more on meeting customer and consumer
needs, optimize its flexible cost structure and industry chain
integration, and implement its action plan to ultimately create
new growth drivers and improve its capacity to generate profit.

The main tasks and directions are set forth below:

Expand product lines and optimize the product mix,
partially reform existing products, study the expansion of
extended products, and gradually develop value-added
products. The Group will also increase the development
of highly functional and high-value-added products to
enlarge market share and boost profit from product sales.

Actively expand into new channels and markets, adjust
product positioning and sales tactics, look for cooperative
partners to expand market scale, and strengthen brand
positioning and competitive advantages so as to improve
the Group's results performance.

Continue to promote technological advances in
production, enhance production efficiency, improve
operational and management techniques and utilize key
technologies to enhance core competitiveness in order
to achieve the dual objectives of improving quality and
reducing costs.

Capture the market trends of bulk raw materials, actively
look for alternative raw material solutions, maintain
stable cooperative relations with domestic and overseas
suppliers and flexibly execute procurement strategies to
ensure a stable supply of raw materials.

Adopt the “co-opetition” strategy to boost product and
service value, leverage its production base in Vietnam to
actively develop the ASEAN market and the markets of
the FTA, CPTPP and RCEP, and via mutual support within
the Group, realize its core advantages and expand the
Group's business presence.
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V.

PROSPECTS (continued)

o Accelerate the formation of strategic alliances or
cooperative links with different businesses to jointly
develop markets through effective consolidation of
resources, and strengthen its research and development
(R&D) function to realize technological breakthroughs and
facilitate the upgrade and transformation of the Group,
in addition to the introduction of new products, the
expansion of its business scale and the improvement of
business performance.

o Establish a strategic organizational structure and
dedicated strategic teams to enhance the organizational
efficiency of all units, coordinate the operational action
plans of each company, integrate the Group’s resources,
explore strategic M&As and alliances, and continue
to expand the Group’s operations in order to improve
revenue, profit and economies of scale.

° Expedite the introduction of an electronic process and
information system for the management and application
of Big Data in order to obtain immediate feedback,
optimize business processes and respond to customer
needs in a timely manner.

o Adopt strategies for ongoing management of capital
allocation, improve the operational efficiency of assets
and reduce the risk of changes in financial markets amid
the volatile global financial markets.

The economic situation in 2023 is not promising. Variables
such as soaring raw material and energy prices and the Russia-
Ukraine war have brought great uncertainty to the prospects
of global economic recovery, hence the Group must remain
caution in its operations. However, with its existing operational
strategies, enhanced development of domestic and overseas
markets, well established sales network, advantage of exporting
an array of products from Vietnamese factories, and united
workforce committed to facing challenges, the Group is
confident that it can overcome the difficulties and leverage
its operational strengths to facilitate the rapid recovery of its
operations. The Group also hopes to achieve better results in
the future.

" RE (8

s MEREBEMBJEESF ARE
BERARMETS  RICHED
BE BHIT EEKMPIE HESE
BB - ERMERZES
EAKERBRELEEN -

e RBREBRMEABKERRE/NE
RASBAUEABNE REQRK
ETHAR BEEEER X
REHBRRBSR FERRE
EEE LUERREE W FIHA
MBI o

e MEEABFCHEENRR ETT
AREBENERERER  BSEIEFE
REF BIEREEBRE KF
RHBERATR

. BEESESHERER ARES
HEEBNE LERRSMT S
BB BESHTEEHNE
o

BE2023FEREFBFRYLEE > FEitr
RERBERMENSMUABRSEHIEHRE
EHY ARRKBEET S HRIBA
NAEEN SEKENEETERYH -2
M REHEEGENKERE iLEF
HMERITHENAEERRE BRIV
ERBRERRE MLBERIBEERN
HEONEEDS UREEBETITHELE B
BoEEAELOIRRBMAEE FHES
BEM BRmELER L HARKEB

BIfEAE -

Annual Report 2022 %R

27



HIGH QUALITY
HIGH-DEMAND
PRODUCTS

= 0O &

/=1 AR

EEREM




At the heart of Vedan International’s business success is a group of core

products with widespread applications and strong brand
recognition, one of the Group’s most important and well-guarded
assets. Its renowned “Vedan” brand MSG, for example, is considered
essential throughout the food processing industries across Asia for
its role in enhancing the flavours of a range of foodstuffs, and enjoys
a huge and constantly growing market throughout Vietnam,
the PRC, ASEAN countries, Japan and the United States.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, 80, the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company, as well as the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, has been a director of the Company since 2002. Mr.
YANG, Tou-Hsiung graduated from Taichung Min Der Commercial
Vocational High School. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung has approximately
60 years’ working experience in the MSG industry and is one of
the founders of the Taiwan Vedan Group. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is
responsible for formulating our overall corporate strategy. Mr. YANG,
Tou-Hsiung is also a director of Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion
Power Limited and King International Limited. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung
is also an executive director of Taiwan Amino Acid Manufacturers
Association.

Mr. YANG, Cheng, 68, an Executive Director of the Company, has
been a director of the Company since 2002. Mr. YANG, Cheng had
approximately 47 years’ working experience in the MSG industry.
Mr. YANG, Cheng is responsible for formulating our business
development strategy. Mr. YANG, Cheng is also a director of
Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited and King International Limited.
Mr. YANG, Cheng is presently the Chairman of Wanpao Asset
Management Co., Ltd., the president of Fongle Real Estate Co.,
Ltd., the commissioner of Industrial Development and Investment
Promotion Committee of Taichung City, the Executive director of
New Taiyuan Urban Development Association and the supervisor
of Taichung Culture & Education Foundation. Mr. YANG, Cheng
obtained an EMBA Degree from Xiamen University in the PRC in
2004.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang, 65, the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, has been a director of the Company since 2002. Mr.
YANG, Kun-Hsiang is responsible for overseeing the Group's
operations and strategic management. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
obtained a master degree in agricultural chemistry from Meiji
University, Japan. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has been involved in
the development of the business operations of Vedan Vietnam
since 1991. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang is currently a director and Vice
Chairman of Vedan Vietnam and also a director of Taiwan Vedan,
Billion Power Limited and Concord Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr.
YANG, Kun-Hsiang is also an executive director of Taiwan Amino Acid
Manufacturers Association and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has 36 years’
working experience in the MSG industry

Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen, 59, an Executive Director, has been a
director of the Company since 2002. He is also a director of
Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited, High Capital
Investments Limited and Chairman of Shanghai Vedan and Xiamen
Vedan (formerly known as Xiamen Maotai). Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen
has approximately 29 years’ working experience in the MSG industry.
Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen is responsible for coordinating our purchase
activities. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen obtained a bachelor degree in
mechanics in 1993 from Waseda University, Japan.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, 63, an Executive Director, has been a director
of the Company since 2012. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou had approximately
41 years' working experience in the food, beverage and consumer
products industry. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is a director of Taiwan
Vedan and is also a director of Vedan Vietnam, Shanghai Vedan,
Xiamen Vedan (formerly known as Xiamen Maotai) and Concord
Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou was the director of Ve
Wong Corporation (a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation).
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, 69, a Non-executive Director, a member
of the Remuneration Committee, has been a director of the Company
since 2002. Mr. HUANG s also the Consultant of Taiwan Vedan. Mr.
HUANG graduated from the department of accounting and statistics
of the National Taichung Commercial College, Taiwan in 1974. Mr.
HUANG has approximately 45 years’ experience in administration and
finance.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng, 62, a Non-executive Director, has been a
director of the Company since 2006. Mr. CHOU is the Supervisor of
Taiwan Vedan and an Independent Non-executive Director of Shin-
Kuen Plastics Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded company on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. CHOU was the founder member
of Legalway Law Firm, the director and legal consultant of Wincome
Incorporation and a supervisor of Shih-Kuen Plastics Co., Ltd. (a
publicly-traded company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation).
He has over 23 years of experience in the legal industry. Mr. CHOU
obtained his Bachelor of Law degree from Soochow University, Master
of Law degree from East China University of Political Science and Law
and Doctorate of Law degree from Peking University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, 61, an Independent Non-executive Director
and the Chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of each of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, has been a
director of the Company since 2002. Mr. CHAO obtained a bachelor
degree in law in 1984 and a master degree in law from Soochow
University, Taiwan in 1986 and a master degree in law from the
University of Houston in 1992. Mr. CHAO is an executive partner of
Jurist Law Offices, a law firm in Taiwan. Mr. CHAO is also a director
of Hua Yu Lien Development Co., Ltd (a company listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation, formerly known as Fui Industrial
Co., Ltd. and was renamed on 19 June 2013) and the Independent
Non-executive Director of Force-MOS Technology Co., Ltd (an OTC
company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. CHAO has
approximately 33 years’ experience in his practice.

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, 62, an Independent Non-executive Director,
a member of each of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee, as well as the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, has been a director of the Company since 2004. Mr.
KO graduated with a Bachelor of Business Degree from Feng Chia
University, Taiwan, and subsequently obtained a Master of Science
Degree in Accounting from the University of Delaware, USA. Mr.
KO has been the executive partner of Weyong International CPAs
& Co., Certified Public Accountants in Taiwan since 2000. Mr. KO
is also the Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of Kunyue Development Co., Ltd. (a
publicly-traded company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, 63, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee, has been a director of
the Company since 2008. Mr. CHEN, holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the Eastern lllinois State University, and
a Bachelor Degree from the National Taiwan University. Mr. CHEN
is presently the Chairman of Ray Wing Research and Investment
Corporation and also a director of Forcecon Tech. Co., Ltd. and
Tai-Saw Technology Co., Ltd., the Independent Non-executive
Director of Longwell Company and Pili International Multimedia
Co.,Ltd. (a publicly-traded Company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation). Mr. CHEN has more than 34 years of experience in
securities business in Taiwan and was the Vice Chairman and General
Manager of Yuanta Securities Investment Consulting Co., Ltd,. the
Chairman of Concord Capital Management Corp. and the Senior Vice
President of Concord Securities Co., Ltd.

Mr. HUANG, Chung-Fong, 67, an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee, has been a director
of the Company since 2018. Mr. HUANG holds a bachelor’s degree
in electrophysics and a master's degree in management science from
National Chiao Tung University in Taiwan. Mr. HUANG is currently
a technical expert in the rank of adjunct associate professor at the
department of transportation & logistics management of National
Yang Ming Chiao Tung University in Taiwan. He is also the president
of Citpo Technologies Inc. Mr. HUANG was the founder secretary
general of Chinese Professional Management Association of Hsinchu,
Taiwan and was the chairman of Provision International Inc. and Ecom
Software Inc. Mr. HUANG was the president of Weblink International
Inc., Taiwan Regional Operations of Acer Inc. and Lottery Technology
Service Corporation. Mr. HUANG was the vice president of Quality
Assurance, ITGO, Acer Inc. Mr. HUANG was also an adjunct
assistant professor in the Department of Industrial Engineering and
Management of National Yang Ming Chiao Tung University in Taiwan.

The relationships of the following directors are as follows:

- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are brothers.

- Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou are brothers.
- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are cousins of Mr.

YANG, Kun-Hsiang, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, as well as Mr. YANG,
Chen-Wen.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NI, Chih-Hao, 57, the Group's Chief Financial Officer and
the President of Vedan Vietnam and Financial Vice President, is
responsible for the finance functions of the Group. Mr. NI graduated
from University of Oregon, major in finance and marketing, and holds
a master degree in business administration from Tunghai University,
Taiwan. Mr. NI joined Vedan Group in 1993, and has been the
vice manager of business and foreign trade department of Vedan
Vietnam, special assistant to the chairman, vice president of financial
department, project manager of finance department of Taiwan Vedan
as well as the manager of the Group's Taiwan branch. Mr. NI has full
qualification in finance, marketing and executive administration, and
has accumulated approximately 30 years of working experience.

Mr. CHAO, Wen-Jui, 59, general plant manager of the production
management department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for
managing and overseeing all production departments of the
company. Mr. CHAO graduated from National Tsing Hua University
with a master degree in chemistry. Mr. CHAO joined Taiwan Vedan
in 1987, and was the vice plant manager of a recycle plant and
the manager of a MSG plant. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 2009
as the vice general plant manager of the production management
department. Mr. CHAO has over 33 years of working experience in
the MSG and food additive industry.

Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang, 61, Vice President of specialty chemicals
business department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the
marketing planning and sales management of the company’s specialty
chemicals products. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang graduated from National
Taiwan University, major in economics. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang joined
Taiwan Vedan in 1991 as the assistant manager of international
trading department. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang joined Vedan Vietnam
in 1996, and was the manager of amino acid business division and
marketing planning division. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang has over 32 years
of sales management experience in the food production industry.

Mr. KO, Chung-Chih, 60, Vice President of Vedan Vietnam, is
responsible for planning the overall management system and
overseeing the administration of the company. Mr. KO holds a master
degree in management from National University of Kaohsiung. Mr.
KO joined Taiwan Vedan in 1988, and had served as the supervisor
of the finance department. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 1991 as the
assistant manager of the finance department, and was subsequently
promoted to senior manager of the General Manager Office,
Corporate Administration Management Division. Mr. KO has 34 years
of working experience in finance and administration.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Yang, Tung, 53, the Group’s General Manager of Shanghai
Vedan. Mr. Yang graduated from Ling Tung University. He joined
Vedan Group in 1994 and has been the special assistant to the
chairman of Taiwan Vedan. He is also a director of Taiwan Vedan,
Vietnam Vedan, Shaghai Vedan, Xiamen Vedan (formerly known as
Xiamen Maotai), Billion Power Limited and High Capital Investments
Limited. Mr. YANG, Tung has comprehensive qualifications in
international trade, marketing business and operation management,
and has approximately 30 years of working experience.

Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta, 49, Vice President of the Group's Taiwan
Branch, is responsible for overseeing various aspects of the
finance, business and administrative function of the company. Mr.
YANG, Meng-Ta graduated from National Taiwan University with
a bachelor degree in civil engineering, and holds a master degree
in civil engineering from Pennsylvania State University. Mr. YANG,
MengTa is also the director of Vedan Vietnam, Shanghai Vedan and
Xiamen Vedan. Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta joined Taiwan Vedan in 2001,
and was the supervisor of consumer product business department,
international trade department and finance department. He was
subsequently promoted to the top management of Taiwan branch.
Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta has accumulated extensive experience during his
service in various departments in the food production industry, and
has 22 years of management experience.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella, 47, is a Director, Corporate Services
of Tricor Services Limited ("Tricor”), a global professional services
provider specializing in integrated Business, Corporate and
Investor Services. Ms. WONG has over 24 years of experience in
the corporate secretarial field and has been providing professional
corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as
multinational, private and offshore companies. Ms. WONG is a
Chartered Governance Professional and a Fellow of both The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute (HKCGI) and The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom. Ms. WONG is a holder
of the Practitioner’s Endorsement from HKCGI. (Note: The Company
has engaged Tricor as external service provider and appointed Ms.
WONG as the Company's company secretary since 1 April 2012.)
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The Group always believes that high-level corporate governance
standards and a sound and efficient board of directors are the
crucial foundation for the assurance of the Company’'s effective
operation and sustainable development. In addition to mitigating
operational risks, pursuing performance excellence and enhancement
of the shareholders’ interests by making significant efforts through
continuous improvement of the corporate governance and internal
monitoring system, we also fulfill the environmental and social
responsibility of the Group in the ordinary course of business, which
has become a power for the advancement of society.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CULTURE AND PURPOSE/
VALUE/STRATEGY

The Company is committed to ensuring that its affairs are conducted
in accordance with high ethical standards. This reflects its belief that,
in the achievement of its long-term objectives, it is imperative to
act with probity, transparency and accountability. By so acting, the
Company believes that shareholder wealth will be maximised in the
long term and that its employees, those with whom it does business
and the communities in which it operates will all benefit.

Corporate governance is the process by which the Board instructs
management of the Group to conduct its affairs with a view to
ensuring that its objectives are met. The Board is committed to
maintaining and developing robust corporate governance practices
that are intended to ensure:

- satisfactory and sustainable returns to shareholders;

- that the interests of those who deal with the Company are
safeguarded;

- that overall business risk is understood and managed
appropriately;

- the delivery of high-quality products and services to the
satisfaction of customers; and

- that high standards of ethics are maintained.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are disclosed based
on the principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The Group
commits to maintaining and ensuring a high level of corporate
governance standards and continuously reviews and improves our
corporate governance and internal controls practices, and the Board
endeavors to take the necessary actions to ensure the compliance
with the provisions of the CG Code introduced by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

Save and except for code provision F.2.2 as set out below, the
Company has complied with the provisions of the CG Code as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
during the reporting period:

In respect of code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. YANG,
Tou-Hsiung, the Chairman of the Board was not able to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 24 May 2022 due to
business commitments.

DISTINCTIVE ROLE OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO")

The positions of Chairman of the Board and CEO are held by Mr.
YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang respectively. The
Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board in
establishing and monitoring the implementation of strategies and
plans to create values for shareholders.

The CEO is responsible for managing the operation of the Group's
businesses, proposing strategies to the Board and the effective
implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by the Board.

THE BOARD

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes
responsibility for its leadership and control and be collectively
responsible for promoting the Company’s success by directing and
supervising the Company's affairs. Directors take decisions objectively
in the best interests of the Company.
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The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business and regularly reviews the contribution required from a
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time performing them that are
commensurate with their role and the Board responsibilities. The
Board includes a balanced composition of Executive Directors and
Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) so that there is a strong independent element on the
Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

YANG, Tou-Hsiung (Chairman)

YANG, Cheng

YANG, Kun-Hsiang (Chief Executive Officer)
YANG, Chen-Wen

YANG, Kun-Chou

Non-executive Directors
HUANG, Ching-Jung
CHOU, Szu-Cheng

Independent Non-executive Directors
CHAOQO, Pei-Hong

KO, Jim-Chen

CHEN, Joen-Ray

HUANG, Chung-Fong

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the
section headed “Profile of Directors, Senior Management and
Company Secretary” on pages 30 to 34 of this Annual Report. The
relationships between the Directors are disclosed in the respective
Director’s biography under the section “Profile of Directors, Senior
Management and Company Secretary” on pages 30 to 34 of this
Annual Report. Save as disclosed above, there is no relationships
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s)) between the Board members.
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The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The
Board considered that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant
expertise to the Board and its deliberations. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs
with one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise and the
requirement of having sufficient number of INEDs representing one-
third of the Board. None of the INEDs has any business or financial
interests with the Group nor has any relationship with other directors
and confirmed their independence to the Group.

The Company has established a Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism during the year which sets out the processes and
procedures to ensure a strong independent element on the Board,
which allows the Board effectively exercises independent judgment to
better safeguard Shareholders’ interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board effectiveness,
maximise strengths, and identify the areas that need improvement
or further development. The evaluation process also clarifies what
actions of the Company need to be taken to maintain and improve
the Board performance, for instance, addressing individual training
and development needs of each Director.

Pursuant to the Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism, the
Board will conduct annual review on its independence. The Board
Independence Evaluation Report will be presented to the Board
which will collectively discuss the results and the action plan for
improvement, if appropriate.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all Directors has
completed the independence evaluation individually. The Board
Independence Evaluation Report was presented to the Board and the
evaluation results were satisfactory.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the Board Independence
Evaluation Mechanism and the results were satisfactory.

The Board met regularly during the year. The Board’s primary
function is to set and review the overall strategic development of
the Group and to oversee the achievement of the plans to enhance
shareholders’ value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the
Executive Directors. The Board met four times during the year. The
NED and INEDs may take independent professional advice at the
Group's expense in carrying out their functions.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and
providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent
judgment on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances for discharging their duties to the
Company.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Group has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference as suggested under the former Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the then Listing
Rules. The relevant terms of reference was revised on 25 December
2018 to comply with the existing Listing Rule. The Audit Committee
comprises Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-
Ray and Mr. HUANG, Chung-Fong, all Independent Non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. CHAO, Pei-
Hong. Each member brings to the Committee his valuable experience
in reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control
and financial issues of the Group who among themselves possess
a wealth of management experience in the accounting profession,
commercial and legal sectors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended
31 December 2022 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr.
CHAO Pei-Hong, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, the Non-executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. KO, Jim-Chen.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
determining/reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for
all directors and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Company, and the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and senior management and other related
matters.

The remuneration of the senior management (excluding Executive
Directors) of the Company, whose biographical details are included
in section headed “Profile of Directors, Senior Management and
Company Secretary” on pages 30 to 34 of this Annual Report, during
the year falls within the following band:
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The Company's remuneration policy is to ensure that the
remuneration offered to employees, including Directors and senior
management, is based on skill, knowledge, responsibilities and
involvement in the Company’s affairs. The remuneration packages
of Executive Directors are also determined with reference to the
Company’s performance and profitability, the prevailing market
conditions and the performance or contribution of each Executive
Director. The remuneration for the Executive Directors comprises
Director’s fees/salary, discretionary bonus and allowances. The
remuneration policy for Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors is to ensure that Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors are adequately compensated for
their efforts and time dedicated to the Company’s affairs, including
their participation in Board committees. The remuneration for the
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
mainly comprises Director’s fee and allowances which is determined
with reference to their duties and responsibilities by the Board.
Individual Directors and senior management have not been involved
in deciding their own remuneration.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, the
Executive Director, Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen and
Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of directors, reviewing the board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”) and the Director Nomination Policy and assessing
the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy in accordance with the
requirement set out in the CG Code. Such policy aims to set out the
approach towards achieving diversity on the Board.

In assessing the Board composition and recommending candidates
of directors to the Board, the Nomination Committee would
consider a number of perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity
Policy, including but not limited to skills, regional and professional
experience, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, gender
and other characteristics.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant
criteria as set out in the Director Nomination Policy that are necessary
to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity,
where appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, to consider the qualifications
of the retiring directors standing for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting and to review the Board Diversity Policy and Director
Nomination Policy.
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Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
reviews regularly the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to ensure that
the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and
is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection practices
at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately structured
so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

(A) at least 1 of member of the Board shall be female;

(B) at least 55% of the members of the Board shall be non-
executive Directors or independent non-executive Directors;

(C) at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors;

(D) at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications;

(E) atleast 27% of the members of the Board shall have more than
23 years of experience in the industry he/she is specialised in;
and

(F)  at least 36 of the members of the Board shall have China-
related work experience.

The Board of Directors will continue improving the diversity goals of
the Board. And The Board of Directors will progress of identifying
suitable female professionals for appointment to the Board on merit
against objective criteria by 31 December 2024.
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Gender Diversity
The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group.
The following table sets out the gender ratio in the workforce of the
Group, including the Board and senior management as at the date of
this Annual Report:

(¥ lE 27w
FRBRERFTERZBEBRIMLERNZ AT
KFFBBEAFERSANREAEEST (81
EFERESHREER NMRILEER

Female Male

Z% B4

Board 559 0% (0) 100% (11)
Senior management SR EEE 18% (22) 82% (103)
Other employees HMET 20% (754) 80% (2,976)

Up to the date of this Annual Report, the Nomination Committee is in
progress of identifying suitable female candidate(s) for appointment
to the Board on merit against objective criteria.

The Board of Directors plans to achieve at least 8% (1) female
director members by end of 31 December 2024. The Board believes
that the current gender diversity of female senior management and
female employees of the Group is reasonable and appropriate. The
Group will continue to create a workplace environment with equal
employment opportunities for female.

Details on the gender ratio of the Group together with relevant data

can be found in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
page 69 of this Annual Report.
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The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets
out the selection criteria and nomination process and the Board
succession planning considerations in relation to nomination and
appointment of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the
Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The nomination process set out in the Director Nomination Policy is as
follows:

Appointment of New Director

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may select
candidates for directorship from various channels, including
but not limited to internal promotion, re-designation, referral
by other member of the management and external recruitment
agents.

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon
receipt of the proposal on appointment of new Director
and the biographical information (or relevant details) of the
candidate, evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set
out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship.

(iii) If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank them by
order of preference based on the needs of the Company and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable).

(iv)  The Nomination Committee should then recommend to the
Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable.

(v)  For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder for election
as a Director at the general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should make recommendation to Shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of Director at the general meeting.

EFEEERANERERETEAARREESR
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Re-election of Director at General Meeting

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should review the
overall contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Director and the level of participation and performance on the
Board.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should also
review and determine whether the retiring Director continues to
meet the criteria as set out above.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should then make
recommendation to Shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of Director at the general meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect
a candidate as Director at the general meeting, the relevant
information of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular to

Shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice
of the relevant general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules
and/or applicable laws and regulations.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the criteria for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

Character and integrity;

Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age
(18 year-old or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service;

Requirements of Independent Non-executive Directors on the
Board and independence of the proposed Independent Non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no change in
the composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. During the year, the Board
reviewed the Company's corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code"”) and Written Employee Guidelines, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The principal businesses of the Group are manufacturing, R&D and
sales, of which the Group has not engaged in any high-risk and
highleveraged investment. The members of the Board and the senior
management have not engaged in any conduct of business which is
beyond the risk acceptance level of the Company.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Board of the Group oversees the Company to establish an
appropriate and effective risk management mechanism and internal
control system. The Audit Committee of the Board assists the Board
to oversee the management of existing or potential risks in the
Company. The management of the Company constantly supervises
risks and the implementation of the internal control system to
guarantee its effectiveness.

According to the characteristics of the industry in which the Group
operates, a designated internal audit department and personnel are
set up and appointed in each operating region with an operating
cycle of control customised for the regions to carry out regular
audit based on an annual plan and professional division of labour.
Analysis on the seriousness and deficiency rate of each operational
risk will be made, the results of which will be promptly reported to
the management of the Company and subsequent improvements
will be followed up. In addition to the monthly submission of audit
reports to the Audit Committee for review, the audit department also
presents major audit findings to the Board for examinations by the
members of the Board in order to effectively mitigate the operational
risks of the Group.
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The major scopes of work of the risk management and internal
controls of the Group are summarised as follows:

o Financial and financing cycle management — Alleviate risks
through stringent internal controls and legitimate taxation
planning applicable locally, credit risk management and control,
evaluation and prediction of factors attributing to financial
crisis; regularly assess capital position in markets, changes in
exchange rates and bank interest rates, and prudently manage
the fund allocation of the Company.

o Sales and payment collection cycle management — Oversee the
due execution of the procedures in the sales business, including
orders, credit provision, delivery, payment collection or refund
and customer complaints so as to minimise the risks in relation
to operating revenue.

o Procurement and payment cycle management — Perform
internal controls on operating procedures in relation to
supplier management, purchase requisition, price negotiation,
contracting, quality check for purchased products or product
returns, verification on payment or purchase discounts in order
to ensure the openness, fairness and incorruptibility of the
procurement system.

o Investment cycle management — The Group has established
the “Investment Review Board” to rigourously evaluate mid-
to-long-term investment or the subject matters of strategic
alliance and to timely deal with investment projects.

o Information risk management — Maintain the soundness of the
information management system of the Company, manage
and safeguard the security of network information and
swiftly provide the management with effective information on
operational management.

o Legal affairs, intellectual property rights and R&D cycle
management — The legal affairs department of the Group
collaborates with professional legal counsels to achieve risk
mitigation, transfer or aversion and to secure law compliance
by offering education, training and consultation in relation
to indentures, product liabilities, legal disputes and litigation,
patents, trademarks, intellectual property rights and other
relevant matters.
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o Environmental protection management for production cycle: e

Implement all environmental protection stipulations and plans
in accordance with the local regulatory requirements of the
operating regions; and establish special units to plan, execute,
supervise and track all environmental protection measures in
order to assure the fulfillment of environmental protection
responsibility.

o Occupational safety and hygiene management for production e
cycle — Conduct review and risk analysis on the detrimental
level of abnormal environmental safety and hygiene incidents;
and require the relevant departments of the plants to formulate
improvement measures.

TEBRRZREFREEE  RBEEERY
EHZERER RERRRBREREH
FE O UIREEBEMUFE BT - BHESA
BB IRIRIG RAER I - U REIRIRR
EHEE-

TERBRZBEZEHLEEE -HHR
LHERBERZBEREETRI DM
R M ERBEERBPIGTEREE
T ©

The main courses of study taken by finance personnel of the Group ZAEBHEEHEHIEAENR2022E8TEEEIE

stationed in the plant site in Vietnam in 2022 are as follows: FaTF

Date of Course Name of Course Hour of Study

EEEE HRIEHTE EERFY

2022/4/25 Cash Receipts and Expenditure Management Measures 6
R W ERBHE

2022/4/29 Salary and insurance costs 6
HERFRBREHR

2022/5/20 Measure on Receipts and Payments through Bank 6
BBRITU ATRIEENE

2022/5/24 Purchase requisition progress inquiry 2
EREBEEEDH

2022/8/16 Fixed Assets Management Measures 6
B & EBEEME

2022/5/23 Inventory method 6
EF BT A

2022/9/22 Accounts Payable Request Process 6
FETIRFREBRRAE M2

2022/9/24 Necessary knowledge for foreign currency transactions through bank payments 6
SMIERR 5 3B ERIT AT AR 8 R0 3

2022/10/18 Measures for the Management of Customer Credit Lines 6

ERREBREEEMNE

The main courses of study taken by finance personnel of the Group ZANEBFEBEMFAENR2022ETEEERE

stationed in the plant site in the PRC in 2022 are as follows: FWT

Date of Course Name of Course Hour of Study

SRR HRIERHTE EERFY

2022/03/18 Continuous Education on Accounting in Songjiang District 12
WIEgsEEHRS

2022/06/24 Continuous Education on Accounting in Xiamen District 12
EfEgsEEHS

2022/08/26 Accounts Receivable Operation Specification 4
FEUIRFRIEE IR EE

2022/11/18 Training on Knowledge of Taxation 4
575 R0 1 51
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During the year under review, all Directors have reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system
of the Group, including the resources on accounting and financial
reporting functions of the Company, the qualification and experience
of staff members and the training programmes participated by the
staff members and the relevant budgets. The Board considered the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group are
adequate and effective. The Group reviews its risk management
and internal control system on annual basis in order to optimise its
effectiveness and in turn heighten the overall corporate governance
standard of the Group.

The Company has in place the Whistleblowing Policy and system for
employees of the Company and those who deal with the Company
to raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the Audit
Committee about possible improprieties in any matters related to the
Company.

The Company has also in place the Anti-Corruption Policy to
safeguard against corruption and bribery within the Company. The
Company has an internal reporting channel that is open and available
for employees of the Company to report any suspected corruption
and bribery. Employees can also make anonymous reports to the
internal audit function, which is responsible for investigating the
reported incidents and taking appropriate measures. The Company
continues to carry out anti-corruption and anti-bribery activities to
cultivate a culture of integrity, and actively organizes anti-corruption
training and inspections to ensure the effectiveness of anti-corruption
and anti-bribery.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company had no
non-compliance cases in relation to bribery and corruption.
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MEETINGS ATTENDANCE

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings,
the Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of the
Company held during the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in
the table below:

i Es
BEEENRAATINBE_SE__F+_A1
=+ HIEEERGTEZEEHE EFETZ
EEEEMRREATHEREBROT

Attendance/Number of Meeting

HEE/ ERRY
Audit  Remuneration Nomination  Annual General

Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

B28 BitZ88 HWzEe REZBE  REAFAE
Executive Directors HiTESE
YANG, Tou-Hsiung (Chairman) BBl (28 3/4 NAFER NARER 111 0/
YANG, Cheng B I 4/4 NAREA NAREA NAREA 0/
YANG, Kun-Hsiang (CFO) BRE (THEH) 414 NAT B NARER NARER 101
YANG, Chen-Wen BRX 414 N/ATIE NAFRER NARER 0/
YANG, Kun-Chou Rl 4/4 NATIE NAFREH NAR B 0/
Non-executive Directors EHTES
HUANG, Ching-Jung BRE 4/4 NATE 1n NAFREH 17
CHOU, Szu-Cheng AHE 4/4 NATEH NATREH NAREH 0/
Independent Non-executive BiERTES

Directors

CHAO, Pei-Hong HIER 4/4 2 17 111 0/
KO, Jim-Chen I 414 2”2 11 10 111
CHEN, Joen-Ray BB 414 2 7 10 01
HUANG, Chung-Fong g 414 2 NAREA NARER 0/
Notes: B 5E :

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung authorized Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang to exercise the voting
right on the first board meeting.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

In respect of code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors of the
Company have developed and refreshed their knowledge and skills by
reading books and articles relating to legal and regulatory updates.

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and
comprehensive induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

BEREEEREGHEAENE —REFETTRT
fERRHE

EEEIN
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Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional EEFEZHEBEMNZSEZIEXRE BRI FH

development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. HAN#H i AE -

The training records of the Directors for the year ended 31 December ®HE_Z_-__F#+_A=+—HLEE %
2022 are summarized as follows: EIlEREENT !

Directors Type of Training "o ) 1Bl g B
Executive Directors HITEE

YANG, Tou-Hsiung A&B ¥ SR LE A&B

YANG, Cheng A&B % IE A&B

YANG, Kun-Hsiang A&B PRI iE A&B

YANG, Chen-Wen A&B R A&B

YANG, Kun-Chou A&B 12 355 A&B
Non-executive Directors FEHITEE

HUANG, Ching-Jung A&B i A&B

CHOU, Szu-Cheng A&B =L A&B
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHTEE

CHAO, Pei-Hong A&B B R A&B

KO, Jim-Chen A&B &8 A&B

CHEN, Joen-Ray A&B R B I A&B
HUANG, Chung-Fong A&B =B A&B

Note: Miat -

Types of Training ENEER

A:  Attending training sessions, including but not limited to briefings, A: HERIIRR QEEFERER AT &
seminars, conferences and workshops ZEM IR

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and  B:  RI:EABRAETRIE LS $R4% - #9735 R MR T
relevant publications L7

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION BT

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non- iR#E FHRAE3I13(E A AT EEBREILIE
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant #HITEERIHEBIM AXATRAEAFRERIL
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the JEHITEEHEB/IIMN

Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS JEHITESE
The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive JESITES (BIEBIUIEHITES) 2HESE

Directors) are appointed for a specific term of three years, subject to FHNAEIF AN IREHEREREBEES-
renewal after the expiry of the current term.

Code provision B.2.2 states that every director, including those {EEATFAZFAMEXB.2.2E:TH S4E
appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by FE (BEMUESEEHRESEINES) RIVES=F
rotation at least once every three years. Each of the Non-Executive #®RERIFE—R - KAATKIENTESAS=F
Directors of the Company is subject to retirement by rotation once  #R{EIR{F—K o

every three years.
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COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules on terms no less exacting than the Model Code as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor. During the year under
review, the Group is required to pay approximately US$345,000
and US$4,000 to the external auditor for their audit and non-audit
services, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the Company’s accounts for the year ended 31 December
2022. The reporting responsibilities of the independent auditor of the
Company on the financial statements are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 116 to 122.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella of Tricor Services Limited, external
service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. NI, Chih-
Hao, Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Ms. WONG has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 December 2022.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date version of the
Company's Articles of Association is also available on the Company’s
website and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's website.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT TO CONVENE AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholders’
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All resolutions
put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
after each shareholders’ meeting.
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Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. The Company do not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. Depending on the financial conditions of the Group
and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy,
dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board during
a financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be
subject to the shareholders’ approval.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address:  5/F, Manulife Place, 348 Kwun Tong Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

(with attention to Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella,
Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2528 3158

Email: vdi@vedaninternational.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group's business performance and strategies.
The Company is endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the annual general meeting, Directors (or
their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet Shareholders and
answer their enquiries.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy. The
policy aims at promoting effective communication with Shareholders
and other stakeholders, encouraging Shareholders to engage actively
with the Company and enabling Shareholders to exercise their rights
as Shareholders effectively. The Board reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the Shareholders” Communication Policy and the
results were satisfactory.

The Company has established a number of channels for maintaining
an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders as follows:

(a) Corporate Communication

“Corporate Communication” as defined under the Listing
Rules refers to any document issued or to be issued by the
Company for the information or action of holders of any
of its securities, including but not limited to the following
documents of the Company: (a) the Directors’ report, annual
accounts together with a copy of the auditor’s report and,
where applicable, its summary financial report; (b) the interim
report and, where applicable, its summary interim report; (c) a
notice of meeting; (d) a listing document; (e) a circular; and (f)
a proxy form. The Corporate Communication of the Company
will be published on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website
(www.hkex.com.hk) in a timely manner as required by the
Listing Rules. Corporate Communication will be provided to
Shareholders and non-registered holders of the Company’s
securities in both English and Chinese versions or where
permitted, in a single language, in a timely manner as required
by the Listing Rules. Shareholders and non-registered holders
of the Company's securities shall have the right to choose the
language (either English or Chinese) or means of receipt of
the Corporate Communication (in printed form or through
electronic means).

(b) Announcements and Other Documents pursuant to the
Listing Rules
The Company shall publish announcements (on inside
information, corporate actions and transactions etc.) and other
documents (e.g. Memorandum and Articles of Association) on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website in a timely manner in
accordance with the Listing Rules.
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(c) Corporate Website

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

Any information or documents of the Company posted on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website will also be published
on the Company's website (www.vedaninternational.com).
Other corporate information about the Company's business
developments, goals and strategies, corporate governance
and risk management will also be available on the Company’s
website.

Shareholders’ Meetings

The annual general meeting and other general meetings
of the Company are primary forum for communication
between the Company and its Shareholders. The Company
shall provide Shareholders with relevant information on
the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely
manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information
provided shall be reasonably necessary to enable Shareholders
to make an informed decision on the proposed resolution(s).
Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings
or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at the meetings for
and on their behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings.
Where appropriate or required, the Chairman of the Board and
other Board members, the chairmen of board committees or
their delegates, and the external auditors should attend general
meetings of the Company to answer Shareholders’ questions (if
any).

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Enquiries about Shareholdings

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company's branch share registrar, Tricor
Tengis Limited, or call its hotline at (852) 2980-1333, or go in
person to its public counter at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

Enquiries about Corporate Governance or Other Matters to be
put to the Board and the Company

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries. Shareholders may send any enquiries to the Board by
email: vdi@vedaninternational.com or by post to 5/F, Manulife
Place, 348 Kwun Tong Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong (with
attention to Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella, Company Secretary).

Webcast
Webcasts of the Company’s interim and annual results briefings
are available.

Other Investor Relations Communication Platforms
Investor/analysts briefings, roadshows (both domestic and
international), media interviews, marketing activities for
investors and specialist industry forums etc. will be launched on
a required basis.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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INTRODUCTION

With the sharp rise in inflation rate following the Russian-Ukrainian
War and the sudden shortage of traditional international energy
supplies such as oil and natural gas, the threats to global crop and
supply chain security as well as economic crisis have greatly increased.
In order to maintain the economy and ensure short-term energy
security, major manufacturing countries in Europe, the Americas and
Asia are striving to develop sustainable energy solutions, while some
countries have also restarted using fossil fuel power generation as
a transition, which has a great impact on the emission reduction
process acknowledged in the Glasgow Climate Pact and makes the
goal of halving carbon emissions by 2030 and transitioning to the
net zero emission by 2050 even tougher. Given that global emissions
reductions were not as expected, the 27th Conference of the Parties
to the United Nations Climate Change Conference in 2022 (COP 27)
also called on countries to make more ambitious emission reduction
commitments, emphasizing that limiting the magnitude of global
warming to 1.5 degrees is still feasible.

As an international corporate citizen, Vedan International Group
pays constant attention to the issue relating to climate change
and supports the civil notion of environmental protection, energy
conservation and carbon reduction and earth preservation with
practical actions. For many years, the Group has complied with
the national standards and regulations applicable to all production
bases and has formulated environmental policy which includes
environmental protection in daily management with all-staff
education in daily operation concerning energy conservation in
respect of self-initiated carbon reduction and energy efficiency
enhancement while participating in ecology-care activities and
proactively developing green economy with significant importance
attached to comprehensive development of corporate social
responsibility in hope to maximise its local corporate influence and
make valuable contribution to the local environmental protection.

Vedan International Group has established the “Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee”. The committee members practically
promote environmental education with combination of regional
production and sales strategy and the concept of environmental
protection and earth preservation and implements sustainable
environment plans with regular meetings to review the achievements
under the respective indicators. In this report, the Group truthfully
discloses the implementation of CSR. In 2022, the Group’s
performance in emissions management and energy consumption
management was affected by the energy crisis, COVID-19 and
its production mode. In the future, the Group will implement the
corporate governance policy in accordance with the laws and strive to
achieve the most outstanding operating efficiency of the Group with
an aim to realise mutual benefit with the environment.
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INTRODUCTION (continued)

To uphold the mission of sustainable operation, corporate social
responsibility of the Vedan International Group entails not only
environmental protection and energy conservation education,
but also maintenance of sound corporate governance and risk
management, provision employees with a safe and healthy working
environment where they can fully exploit their potentials, and balance
of the interests of employees, customers, supply chain, investors
and the overall development of the community. We undertake to
make our best endeavour to constantly contribute to economic
development, environmental protection for the earth and society
through good and solid corporate governance.

51= (&)

REKBEEENED  EEHETEETHRAR
BREBMS F7TRERERE ERMEH
Bz UEERE2NABAEEREREE-
REBT—EAZ2RBRASURCEZFENN
ITHFRFE UTHREST -FA HEE - REA
RitEERERZHEIHMNE  ROIRERTE
EEORFEBENTEEL DBELENRE:
EREBLAMIKRBEFREBEANHE-

The Vietnam Plant (Primary Production Base) Promoted Park-like Construction in
Factory Areas with Colossal Tree Plantings to Conserve the Ecology

TELEEMUERERTIRARL XREEHMFREEARER

This report has been prepared in compliance with the requirements
of the Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting
Guide under Appendix 27 and the principles of the CG Code under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
for the purposes of general disclosure responsibilities. The period and
areas covered by this report are as follows:

FREGKBEE BB AR5 AT LA R B &
THERBGRE L ERERREIES) K
BHI(EEEATR) ZRABIT—RIRESR
FoAREREHERBIBUT :

Period covered

From 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022

2= HA 73752022 1B 1HE2022F12831H
Areas covered The production bases in Vietnam and China and the business footholds of
HEE S branches in Taiwan and Cambodia covered by Vedan International Group

FABERERRESR PREEEM SENREARERDACEEEM
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{ENVIRONMENT)
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

The Group upholds the concept of “care for environment and
sustainable operation” and proactively carries out the efficiency
management of water resources, carbon reduction management
and waste management, while initiating energy management
system and continuous management of power consumption, and
adopting energy-saving electrical equipment to enhance the energy
conservation performance in the offices, as well as promoting
parklike construction in factory areas with colossal tree plantings to
conserve the ecology.

In respect of environmental protection and energy conservation, the
Group undertakes to carry out the following actions:

(1) Emission management — Striving to reduce discharge of
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste

o Employee safety, environmental protection and resource
conservation are the prime principles of all operating
activities of the Group. In the ordinary course of business,
the Group shall, as long as technically practicable, provide
treatment for, and secure the reduction of, emission
of exhaust gas, wastewater and waste, and achieve or
overachieve the provisions of the prevailing national laws
of the places where its production bases are located and
the requirements of internal standards.

° The Group regularly reviews the progress and
effectiveness of each resources management plan every
year and improves the deficiencies to ensure that there is
no substantial impact on the surrounding environment in
the factory areas.

. In 2022, the emission standard of each emission
of the Group was in line with the requirement of
environmental impact assessment for all production
bases. The Vietnam plant (primary production base of
the Group) has obtained the Environmental Protection
Permit issued by the Vietnamese government in 2022,
and strictly implemented the requirements as stipulated
in the Environmental Protection Permit and relevant
environmental protection laws and regulations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(1) Emission management — Striving to reduce discharge of (1)
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste (continued)

° The concentration system in production plants were
reformed for the purpose of reducing the consumption of
steam energy. In addition, enhancing the connection of
various wastewater treatment systems and the collection
of various types of wastewater is also expected to
achievebetter water pollution prevention and pollution-
free discharge.

° According to the statistics, the types of emissions
produced in the production process of the primary plants
in 2022 and the relevant data are set out below:

IRIR R5E (48)
R | BEIRIE  KREE (B)

FRMER-SHRLVEK BEREAER
Mz HE (48)

e HHEEBRERBAMETHE
HENARLEZAERERE It
Sho NS EREKRERRZE
EoREREEKZWE R
B SRAZEIBFNRER
BEEIS M

. KRGt 202 FEHRELEERTE
ZHER R ERBESFIMT

2021 2022 Difference Unit

Type of emissions BER 2021% 2022 ER B

Total volume of wastewater BEKEBHMRE GIHK) 4.71 5.70 21.02% m?/ton
discharged (m3)/product /EREE (AIF) UBK/ AW
output (ton)

Wastewater - Chemical Oxygen BERk—E2BEAE(COD) (AF) 8.26 9.09 10.05% kg/ton
Demand (COD) (kg)/product /EREE (A1) NN
output (ton)

Air emission — Sulphur oxides (SOx) ERHM—REEYSOx (AFT) 3.16 4.93 56.01% kg/ton
(kg)/product output (ton) /EREE (A1) YNTN

Air emission - Nitrogen oxides (NOx) | Z=RIFR—FALYINOX (AF) 6.28 5.39 -14.17% kg/ton
(kg)/product output (ton) /EREE (AH) NN

Total greenhouse gas emission BERBEHRE 844,261.02 | 1,477,348.00 74.99% tonCOze

AMECOze

Total emission intensity of BERBARRERE 1.52 2.66 75.00% | ton COze/ton
greenhouse gas AMECOL/AME

Total hazardous waste BEEEYRE 47,456.29 70,315.66 48.17% kg AfF

Total non-hazardous waste BEEEYAE 71,272,766 70,818,192 -0.64% kg Afr

Hazardous waste intensity BEBEEYEE 0.09 0.13 44.44% kg/ton
(kg/ton product output) RF/AEERES) NN

Non-hazardous waste intensity BRERENEE 128.12 127.38 -0.58% kg/ton
(kg/ton product output) RF/AEERES) NN

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

(continued)

(1) Emission management — Striving to reduce discharge of (1)
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste (continued)

Explanations on major differences in 2022 as compared to

IRIR A€ (48)

R | BEIRIE  KEEE (B)

FRMER-SNHRLVEK BEREER
Mz B (48)

2022F B2 EZ2FEEZRRA ¢

2021:
Difference

Type of emissions BHES #E | Explanation for difference EEHH

Total volume of wastewater BkEEME CIA%K) / 21.02% | Our wastewater usage increased in FR02EMBEESEERLRA
discharged (m3)/product output EmES (A1) 2022, which was mainly due to the BUEBER SHEKERE LA
(ton) commencement of production of multiple B2001 EAREER=SAMBIR 5

customised starch related products. Also, KEBZREHR202F(E-
as compared to 2022, the load on our

wastewater treatment system in 2021 was

lower due to the implementation of the

“three-on-site” (on-site production, on-site

dining and on-site accommodation) policy in

response to the pandemic.

Wastewater - Chemical Oxygen Bk—{E2ERE(COD) 10.05% | Our chemical addition increased in FE202FHREESBRRLRA
Demand (COD) (kg)/product (RF) /EREE (AH) 2022, which was mainly due to the BUARER ERLERTMEN
output (ton) commencement of production of multiple M ERMABEKCODEE Lo

customised starch related products, resulting
in an increase in the chemical oxygen
demand (COD) concentration of wastewater.

Air emission - Sulphur oxides (S0x) | ZRHHH—MREAIEHSOx 56.01% | Our use of coal with higher sulfur content | FR02EERERSHAHE021E
(kg)/product output (ton) (BF) /EREE (A1) in 2022, as compared to 2021, resulted in | & BEREEEERFHEEZS0x

higher SOx density in the air emission even | & L##8% BHKERNF EHAE
after treatment; however, we still managed | MiBERIE®E 2 EEHALRERL.

to meet the local emission standards in

Vietnam, and passed their tests during the

year.

Total greenhouse gas emission RERBASNE 74.99% | As the Vietnam plant obtained the HRERER2025£12 ARG RERE
Greenhouse Gas Emission Inventory BERE H022E-HLNIS0 14064-
Certification in December 2022, the results | 1:2018BEREREREZLRAE

Total emission intensity of BERBOHHRERE 75.00% | o the ISO 14064-1:2018 Greenhouse Gas ZoEE
greenhouse gas Emission Inventory Report were used as the

basis for disclosure from 2022 onwards.

Total hazardous waste BEEENLE 48.17% | From July 2021, we had delays in project R0 FTR R BAUEBNRERZ
repair and maintenance plans as we YEMRER SRIRBEREHE
followed the epidemic prevention policies 5 BARBZAZHEMEERE

Hazardous waste intensity (kg/ton | BEBENZE 44.44% | released by the Vietnamese government, BHEENRETEE.

product output)

and licensed hazardous waste clearing
and transportation contractors were also
unable to promptly carry out clearing and
transportation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

IRIGIRE ()
R | BEIRIE  KREE (B)

(2) Resources usage management - Promoting energy (2) EBREASE-HEEERE BREK
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of B A
resources

62

The Group advocates and implements the 3R policy
(Reduce, Reuse, Recycle) and recycles and reuses its
resources to achieve the goal of reducing materials
consumption and waste generation.

The Group implements green procurement policy to
procure suppliers to minimise their impacts on the
environment.

By implementing ISO 50001 Energy Management System,
the Group has established an energy management
system in the primary production bases and formed the
Energy Management Committee which is responsible
for the systematic management of all equipment in daily
operation in order to enhance the equipment efficiency
in a continuous manner. The Group has also implemented
energy saving and carbon reduction plan to rationalize
energy consumption and reduce energy cost.

In 2019, the Vietnam plant (primary production base of
the Group) improved the concentration system in the
production process in production plants and reduced
the use of steam energy while also reducing water
consumption for cooling down.

The Group proactively implements the resources recycle
policy which recycles the condensation produced in the
concentration process of production and reuse the same
in the production process. The amount of condensation
that can be recycled for every ton of products in 2021
was 3.45KL.

In 2022, the packaging materials used by the primary
production bases of the Group in the production process
of main products can be classified into FIBC bags, paper
bags, carton boxes, plastic cylinders, etc. Towards the
goal of recycling and reusing the packaging materials
used for the finished products, the Company has recycled
and reused the plastic cylinders used for containing
maltose. According to the statistics in 2022, the recycling
rate reached 86%.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

ERTHEEHITIRBIE(Reduce,
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

IRIGIRE ()
R | BEIRIE  KEEE (B)

(continued)
(2) Resources usage management - Promoting energy (2) BREASE-HEEERE BREEK
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of BAAE @
resources (continued)
o The total consumption of energy used in the primary o Q02 FEL EEMBIRERERE
production bases in 2022 is as follows: EMRAWT
2021 2022 Difference Unit

Types of usage FHEE 20214 20226 ER B

Indirect energy - Unit consumption REER-SHEMRE 842.74 797.50 -5.37% kWh/ton
of electricity (total electricity (BHEAE (TR FRAOE/
consumption (kWh)/production JEREE (AH) N
output (ton)

Indirect energy - Unit consumption of | BERERE-—4£EMBEMEE 48.65 57.61 18.41% kg/ton
biofuel (total biofuel consumption (EEMNERE (R NN
(kg)/production output (ton) /ERES (AH)

Direct energy — Unit consumption of | HiZfER—EREMNRE 538.03 472.93 -12.10% kg/ton
coal (total coal consumption (kg)/ (BRiEmE (AF) / NN
production output (ton) EmEE (AH)

Total water consumption aEkE 7,431,697 6,756,946 -9.08% m? I F K

Water consumption intensity FKBE WRFEKE (IHK) /S 1336 12.15 -9.02% mé/ton
(total water consumption (m3)/ EREE (R VW /N
production output (ton)

Total packaging materials used FRNEENREE-XTE 55,622.90 73,389.60 31.94% kg AF
- FIBC bags

Total packaging materials used FRNEENREE-HE 398,626.38 391,303.45 -1.84% kg AF
— Paper bags

Total packaging materials used FRNEEYREE-HH 2,834,930.85 | 3,081,226.90 8.69% kg AF
- Carton boxes

Total packaging materials used FRNEEMREE-2BR 296,805.00 245,337.00 -17.34% kg AF
- Plastic cylinders

Intensity of packaging materials used | ERNEBEMREE-XEE 4.64 4.32 -6.91% kg/ton
— FIBC bags YNIP@/N]

Intensity of packaging materials used | fERMBEYHBE—FR 9.38 9.44 0.67% kg/ton
— Paper bags NSNS

Intensity of packaging materials used | fERIIBEYREE -4 70.83 70.49 -0.48% kg/ton
- Carton boxes YNIPN

Intensity of packaging materials used | fERMBEYHEE—LBRF 40.86 41.00 0.34% kg/ton
~ Plastic cylinders YNT/N
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

(continued)

(2) Resources usage management - Promoting energy (2)
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of

resources (continued)

Explanations on major differences in 2022 as compared to

IRIERE (48)

BRA (@)

B BEIRIE KEKE (B

BEREREE-HBEHAERE BREI

2022FMHE2021FE 2 FEEERA

2021
Difference

Types of usage ERER #£E | Explanation for difference EEHH

Indirect energy - Unit consumption | F&AEIR— £ BRI B AL 18.41% | In 2022, the unit consumption of biomass F2022FHREESERREER
of electricity (total electricity A2 GEMNaRE fuel was higher than that of general BURRER RFELENNENRE
consumption (kWh)/production (AF) /ERES (AH) fertilizer feed products due to the B-RREANERER ERNA0DE
output (ton)) commencement of production of multiple Bk Tl ESul=) AR

customised fertilizer feed related products.
Also, the frequency of bucket elevator
failures in 2022 was higher than that in
2021.

Indirect energy - Unit consumption | fERMaENHIEE 31.94% | Our shipment volume decreased in 2021 POV ERESHERRNERZEE
of biofuel (total biofuel -X%8 due to a shortage of packaging manpower | BFEER ERBASEANEHREE
consumption (kg)/production in the plant and a shortage of shipping HERNAT MEEE TR 20228
output (ton)) containers as we followed the epidemic BEMELREERS HANVERE

Direct energy - Unit consumption | EBHBEYEE KR 8.69% | Prevention policies released by the e

of coal (total coal consumption
(kg)/production output (ton))

Vietnamese government. With the gradual

restoration of the normal production mode,
the use of packaging materials increased in
2022.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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RIE-HERERHS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(3)

Environment and natural resources management -
Enhancing efficiency of energy consumption, caring for
environment and protecting natural ecosystem

In order to combat the global warming and devote our
efforts against the climate change, the Vietnam plant
(primary production base of the Group) obtained the ISO
50001: 2011 Energy Management System Certification in
October 2016, the ISO 50001: 2018 Energy Management
System Certification in July 2021 and the ISO 14067-1 :
2018 Greenhouse Gas Emission Inventory Certification
in December 2022. We established an impeccable
equipment maintenance and examination system through
a high standard certification inspection. The usage
of energy consuming equipment has been gradually
optimised, which facilitated reasonableness and efficiency
of energy consuming equipment, reduced energy costs
and effectively controlled greenhouse gas emissions.

Based on the differences of soil and changes in climate
among different business footholds globally, the Group
adopts environmentally friendly designs for its plants and
grows a variety of appropriate and diversified plants and
trees in the surroundings and at the same time promotes
park-like construction in factory areas. Various animals
are commonly seen in the landscaping wildlife ponds at
certain business footholds. The Group aims to bring land
greening, carbon reduction, biodiversity and ecosystem
and environmental protection into its daily operation.

With reference to the international environmental
education regulations, the Group merges the national
environmental protection concept into the employee
concept through daily trainings and enhances the
knowledge, skills, attitude and values of the employees
in respect of environmental protection while promoting
environmental protection, safety and hygiene propaganda
and continuously universalising civic environmental
protection education.

Since 2017, the Vietnam plant (primary production
base of the Group) has planned to use non-burnt bricks
equipment which recycled coal ash in electrical boilers
into non-burnt bricks and building backfill materials.
Being in line with the national development policy, it
reused and recycled waste and used such equipment
and technical skills to enhance reuse of resources, which
conserved energy and reduced consumption and brought
significant meanings to earth preservation. In 2022, the
plant has produced a total number of 220,000 pieces of
non-burnt bricks and has reduced the coal ash by 283
tons.

IRIGIRE ()
KR | BEIRIE O KERE (8

(3)

RERRABREE—RARREAY
> BEREFRESAER

AREEZHEBEL HREREE
BE—MHMON EEBTELEER
MEEREER2016F 108 INE
ISO 500018EREE A& #8201 1HRZS
Z 2% WE20214F07 BEIRISO
5000188 R B A#M2018RE 2
2 LIKRTE20228F12BEEISO
14067-1 12018 BERBEBERE
BRSIZENIERIZ BiITE
HNREREHEZEHGFE BPHE
ERBZER RERBEES
BEWERA BREERMRE UB
MEERERBEER

ReEKEERMIERREELZ
R EERERRERER
REHREBEREAESEN K
MEYMREA EITIRQEL
BREEBMREZERERBMIT
FREBLEY  EEFBE MR
B EMEHEMREBRBFREN
HEH-

SEERIRBEHRFER EEARKEH
RERFREZMSMASIESHN
HEEI BESTHIRBEFREN
MEE -CEREER LiER
BRRZBEEERY FHEZRL
RIRREF -

ERETEBELEEEMBERER2017
FRERBIRIEERFE > B IERMBIE
ZHERR D BRARIEEREER
EYR - RBEMBERERBR
REEEYBINR ZRBERIE
ARG MER{CBHA B AR
BORELIHBMAFTEANESZ
20225 BEENEREIER  H
283MERYIE SR IR D= o
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RIE-HERERERS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) IRIZ(RE (48)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation K BERIR KELE (@
(continued)

(3) Environment and natural resources management - 3) BRERXABFREE-RAEBEERAN
Enhancing efficiency of energy consumption, caring R, THIBIERERNRERE (B)

for environment and protecting natural ecosystem
(continued)

o In 2022, the primary production bases of the Group . Q02FEEFERELEBERIRIER
organised a total of 43 training courses in relation EHEEBABIRRELS219
to environmental safety and hygiene with 6,649 BREBMAREG6,649N FHEA
participants and the average training hours were 11.91 FREHAN VMR T HiRE2
hours per person every year. The contents of the courses ABEFIMT

are summarised as follows:

No. Course Name

EHR RIERE

1 Groups 1 - 6 Training Targets about Labour Safety under National Requirements
BRERZHLE~6HNIRER

2 Waste Management and Resources Recycle Course
BEEYEE  BREIWRRE

3 Training for Safe Operation of Pressure Equipment
Bh®EZ2RFEIIR

4 Training for Overhead Operation Safety
EEEEZ DN

5 Fire Drills
B BNl AR

6 Education and Training on Rescue and Salvage Operations
R BBEBHTIR

7 Electricity Safety Training
BEZ2I%

8 Training for Safe Operation and Maintenance of Lifting Equipment
EEREZEIRENEEIR

9 License Training for Loading Equipment and Overhead Crane Operator

mENER > RERIFA SRR

Total Total training hours Total participation Average training hours
for the year of employees

A&t 2 F 4RI R B X BmBEAR BT TFIYZINEH
79,208 (hours) 2,310 (persons) 11.91 (hours/year)
79,208 (1)\B¥) 2,310 (A) 11.91 U,/ 4)
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RIE-HERERHS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

(continued)

IRIGIRE ()
R | BEIRIE  KEEE (B)

(4) Internal inspection enhancement and cycle improvement (4) mMEABEZEARIREE
e The Vietnam plant (primary production base of the EEFIZ4EENUEREESRE
Group) implements the Environmental Management MHMITIRIEEIERHISO 14001)>
System (ISO 14001), Occupation Health Safety BEZE2HBEEERHKSO
Management System (OHSAS18001/ISO 45001), and 45001~ BETRBEE R (SO 50001)
Energy Management System (ISO 50001) and Inventory HAERBEEEERAUSO
and Management System for Greenhouse Gas Emissions 14064-1) EHAEZE A EEE
(ISO 14064-1) every year, and regularly reviews the RMITH > TRBEEhEL > FF
progress and effectiveness of all plans and proactively BUCEL S EERKREERLE
improves the deficiencies in order to continuously improve HimaRo
and govern with high-standard international regulations
and conduct self-reflection.
In 2022, in respect of all laws related to environmental 2022 EEAMAIRMGHEEEE R
protection as well as the air monitoring, discharge of HZER BRK - BEEMSE BFE
sewage and waste disposal, the Group met the national BEEEMZBERZE
standard of all the places where its production bases are
located.
In 2022, the external inspection and environmental ONFEFELEEMIREBELTEHE
examination in respect of environmental safety and e BETR ISR FE 1% SR IR IR A R AR 5T AN
hygiene and energy in the primary production bases are T
as follows:
No. Name Result
EHR %iE BER
1 First Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
F—FIRIEWA =R
2 Annual External Inspection (ISO14001& ISO 45001) Pass
FEIMERFERZ(SO 14001&ISO 45001) Bk
3 Second Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
BFRIBEA =R
4 Annual External Inspection (ISO 50001) Qualified
FEIMERFERZ(1SO 50001) =y
5 Third Quarter Environmental Examination Pass
B=FIRF A b Gl
6 Fourth Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
B IUFIRIE A ai&
7 Annual External Inspection (ISO 14064) Pass
FESMBFERZ(SO 14064) s

Note: The Group’s production bases in China and business
footholds in Taiwan and Cambodia are principally engaged
in sales and light industry trade. The primary production
base of the Group is the Vietnam plant and therefore the
environmental emission and energy data disclosed in this
report mainly concern the Vietnam plant.

B EETERE aERRFEE
BRMEZEFHIEUHERES
BRI ERZIEZEEREMDE
R AR EPTIRE IR HE
W BERBUR BB R & 2 M 5t
AE-
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RIE-H1ERERHRS

{SOCIETY)
EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits

To gain trust from the employees, the Group maintains sincere
communication, proactively cares for the employees and values
employees’ benefits and opinions. The Group supports the
international labour and human right standards and achieves the
goal of "building corporate harmony and enhancing employees’
benefits” through three measures, namely “full compliance with the
labour laws, continuous optimisation of the safety and healthiness
of the working environment and proactive implementation of
employees’ training and communication”, which help build a sound
labour-employer interrelationship and maximise the benefits of the
Group and society.

The Group undertakes to earnestly implement the following
employee relations policies:

(1) Employment principles - Fair employment conditions,
compliant and reasonable remuneration

° The Group considers its employees to be its most
important cooperative partners. The employment of
an employee is based on the ability-oriented and fair
employment principles. There is no discrimination in
each division and department in terms of recruitment,
employment, promotion, training and reward. Upon
employment, the remuneration of an employee shall
be based on an equal pay for equal work principle and
there shall be no bias or discrimination against different
identities such as race, religion, nationality, gender or
disability in terms of appointment and promotion.

° The Group has long been complying the national labour
laws of the places where its production bases are located
to systematise the remuneration and report to the
competent authorities of the places where the enterprises
are located.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

{SOCIAL &)
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RIE-HERERHS

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’

Benefits (continued)

(1) Employment principles — Fair employment conditions,
compliant and reasonable remuneration (continued)

BTIEMREEHN (8

B BUGEME - BESTEN (@)

(1) ERRA-2ATFZEEGHESRSE
ZIREN (48)

° In 2022, the Group had 3,855 employees in aggregate. °
The statistics of employee turnover rate by gender and

geographic region is set out below:

2022 E BB T 4% $3,855M1 0
UT#HREMEN #ES D5 A X
et HEE AKX

Total number

Male in Female in of employees
The Group’s primary base each region each region in each region
EEFEEM ZEEBBET EEBRET ZEBRETHAY
The Vietnam plant # & 2,941 700 3,641
The China plant FEIR&E 121 66 187
Foothold in Taiwan &8 9 7 16
Foothold in Cambodia S3H 215 B 8 3 1"

Total average
resignation
rate of male
staff per month

Total average
resignation
rate of female
staff per month

Total average
resignation
rate per month

88T ZBT | of each region
The Group’s primary base BRm= PR = ZEABREE
EERTEEM R Wy HEig
The Vietnam plant #E K& 1.40% 1.24% 1.37%
The China plant 1Bl & 1.38% 0.41% 1.04%
Foothold in Taiwan & &% 2 1.11% 2.39% 1.73%
Foothold in Cambodia 3 IH 2 2.84% 0% 2.12%

Annual Report 2022 %R

69



70

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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wmE

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(2)

Employees’ benefits - Enhancing benefits and good
working conditions

The Group attaches importance to gender equality
at work and has included such into the standards of
the Company. It complies with the local governmental
regulations. Provisions such as maternity system
management measure, paternity leave and menstrual
leave are clearly stipulated.

The Group has formulated relevant regulations which
provide the managements served at the primary
production bases in Vietnam and China with benefits,
such as meals and free transportation.

Employees’ benefits and working hour management
systems have been established for all operating areas
of the Group in compliance with the local labour laws,
including minimum wage, annual leave and other
statutory benefits. All are implemented in accordance
with local laws and regulations of each operating
location.

In 2022, in addition to the fixed monthly salary, the
Group’s employees can receive appropriate year-end
and performance bonuses based on the department or
individual performance. The Vietnam plant, the primary
production base, conducts promotion assessment twice a
year in order to encourage the talents to excel themselves
with a friendly management approach. In addition, the
overall salaries of all staff were raised in 2022 as in line
with the basic wage adjustments in Vietnam.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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RIE-HERERHS

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(3)

Labour communication - Strengthening communication
channels and valuing human rights

The Group provides diversified channels for internal
communication and opinion expressing which allows
it to persistently understand employees’ real opinions
and recommendations on each aspect of the Company
through diversified means such as the proposal system,
suggestion boxes and employee satisfactory survey, and
to make improvements based on the problems raised by
the employees upon discussion.

The Group respects the right of employees to form
associations and organise unions upon their own free
will in accordance with the laws, and regularly convenes
labour conferences to share opinions with the labour
representatives and directly respond to the queries raised
by the employees. Meanwhile, it regularly organises
“Employee Forum” with the labour unions which allows
the labour unions to promptly reflect each problem raised
by the employees and constantly follow up the execution
progress of each discussion topic.

The Group has reported its internal regulations to
the competent authorities in the countries where its
production bases are located. Furthermore, it has
established the “Incentive and Disciplinary Committee”
comprising labour unions, legal personnel and relevant
competent units to deal with the matters of the reward
and punishment on the internal staff of the Company in a
transparent and open manner.

The Group attaches importance to labour interests. The
Vietnam plant (primary production base of the Group) has
coordinated with international or local review institutions
to regularly carry out audits and collect employees’
opinions on labour management and relevant issues in
order to protect the relevant interests of the employees.

BT ERAEN (B
B BUGEME - BESTEN (@)

(3)

HEBRE-NMRBEEE -ERAE

EERMSTHNABBERARKRE
B OEBREBREFE -ERM B
IwnEBEERESESTAN THE
IHRABEERNAEEERAR
HoOUHHETRENBEETS
i AR E B KR

EEEE S TREAMGHRER
ITENEN BEEHARFHA
EOHESPHARETERRM I
EREBEIZRE -BEREHA
TEeEHESRMSEXER) &
TERKRENNRREETIZEE
B R EEM S BEEZ AT
EE-

EEHLEEEMBERESHEAS
BABDAR BARFUIE EHA
ERAMENTEREEANERT
REEEET  UBRLRANE
BRARRNBETIZHEER -

EEERF LD TEEEEM
HEBRektERAEMZEEER
i - EREREE SHEETIHE
HEEMBZER REEIZME
R -

Annual Report 2022 %R

71



72

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE-H1ERERHRS

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(4)

Establishment of safe and healthy working environment
- Ensuring Company'’s safety to maintain employees’
healthiness

Adhering to the concept of “ensuring Company’s safety
to maintain employees’ healthiness”, the Group places
significant importance on the promotion of occupational
safety and hygiene. All of its policies, which are in
compliance with the relevant laws applicable to the local
operating area, have formed a safe working environment
to its employees, clients, underwriters and relevant
personnel.

The Group offers labour insurance and health insurance
applicable to the local operating area to each employee
and arranges regular health check for the employees in
an endeavour to look after the physical and mental health
of all employees. Moreover, the Group cooperates with
professional medical institutions to find out whether an
employee suffers from an occupational disease based
on the differences of each business division in order to
safeguard the healthiness of the employees.

In order to carry out the propaganda of the concept
of environmental protection, safety and hygiene, in
addition to organising environmental safety education
programmes for the management level and the
employees from time to time, the Group has also merged
the concept of environmental safety and hygiene into
major corporate events (for example, participation in tree
planting activities organised by environmental protection
units under local governments, and reception of
government agencies or academic groups for visits of the
sewage treatment system of the Company, etc.) in order
to create an impact by combining environmental safety
education with operating activities.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF
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RIE-HERERHS

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(4)

Establishment of safe and healthy working environment
- Ensuring Company'’s safety to maintain employees’
healthiness (continued)

The Group regularly inspects the progress and outcome
of every environmental protection, safety and hygiene
plan and continuously improves those plans in accordance
with the requirements. The department in charge of
environmental management implements and supervises
various safety and hygiene drills in the factory areas
targeting at the harm of special or major equipment in
the factory areas, and performs precaution inspections,
such as fire safety equipment, use of chemicals and safety
inspections on electrical equipment to avoid risks of
potential disaster.

In 2022, there were 6 cases of work injury in the Group’s
primary production bases, which resulted in a total of
1,536 lost working hours due to work injury. Among
which, a total of zero hour of traffic accidents were
happened outside the factory area (accounting for 0%),
whereas a total of 1,536 hours of work-related accidents
occurred within the factory area (accounting for 100%).
The Group will continuously minimise the occurrence of
work safety accident within the factory area every year
through rigorous safety education, management system
and equipment.

The Vietnam plant (primary production base of
the Group) has comprehensively acquired various
management system certifications including 1SO 14001,
ISO 45001, ISO 50001, FSSC 22000, HACCP, ISO 9001
and so on. Meanwhile, it adheres to the standards of
the management systems and frequently carries out
inspections and guidance with continuous improvements.

BT ERAEN (B
B BUGEME - BESTEN (@)

(4)

ERZ2HEERNIFRE-QAT%ZE>
2ERE (@

EESFEHBARZHERIENE
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RIE-H1ERERHRS

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(5)

Development and training — Talent cultivation and
establishment of learning and growing environment
which employees can follow

The Group believes that talents are, above all, the
greatest assets of the Company. The nurture and
development of talents are valued and each employee is
provided with comprehensive educational training and
promotion system to satisfy their needs from different
countries and regions, which allows all employees to
deploy their skills and unearth their potentials.

The Group regularly convenes meetings of the education
and training committee while proactively organising
professional courses and language courses based on
the job requirements of each department and regularly
conducting language and computer skill assessments to
improve occupational skills of the employees.

The Group formulates the “Annual Plan for Education
and Training” every year. To enhance the diversification of
learning, in addition to assigning employees to training
institutions to participate in various education and
trainings, the Group also engages professional lecturers
to hold a variety of seminars in the factories from time to
time and nurture its employees based on their aptitudes
so as to boost their potentials and enhance their work
passions and at the same time raise their sense of
belonging to the Company.

Based on the global operating strategy of the Group,
it continues to cultivate talents for its future senior
management and strategically nurtures employees
possessing high potentials with emphasis on specific
trainings to heighten the professionalism and regularly
updates on their promotion and development to ensure
the instantaneity and integrity of its talent reserve in a bid
to satisfy the needs for the long-term business growth of
the Group and enhance the core competitiveness of the
organisation.
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EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(5)

(6)

Development and training — Talent cultivation and
establishment of learning and growing environment
which employees can follow (continued)

In 2022, there were a total of 77,352 hours of education
and training courses organised by the main production
bases of the Group with average training hours of
approximately 23.19 hours per person every year,
representing increase of 291% in training hours per
person as compared to 2021. In 2022, total hours of
middle and senior management personnel of the Group
taking occupational training courses were 12,325 hours
(middle management officers) and 5,850 hours (senior
management officers), respectively, increased by 303%
in training hours taken by middle management officers
and increased by 135% in training hours taken by senior
management officers as compared to 2021. The Group’s
supplementary courses (especially courses related to labor
safety and health) for those not organised in 2021 due to
the impact of the pandemic are the main reason for the
increase in training hours.

Labour standards — Ensuring compliance with labour and
safety laws

The Group strives to comply with all labour laws
applicable to the operating areas and achieve the goal of
“establishing a safe and healthy working environment”
by three aspects, namely “ensuring the compliance with
labour laws, constantly reviewing the development plans
and prohibiting the violation of human rights”.

The Group adheres to the principle of employment
freedom and refuses to hire forced labour and child
labour. All employment shall be based on the employees’
own free will and imposition of mandatory measures
on employees in violation of laws or human rights of
employees is prohibited.

The Group accepts inspections on its labour safety and
hygiene system carried out by government authorities
or external independent inspection units to ensure all
operating activities are in compliance with the local
government decree and international standards.
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EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(6) Labour standards - Ensuring compliance with labour and
safety laws (continued)

° The Group has an internal legal affairs department which
is not only responsible for revising the internal regulations
and systems of the Company in accordance with the
decrees issued by the government, but also for educating
the employees to understand and comply with the labour
laws through its education and training system.

° Implementation of an annual external audit on human
resources recruitment agencies which cooperate with the
major production bases of the Group so as to ensure such
external agencies do comply with labour and safety laws
and regulations.

(7) Continuous review on development plans in pursuit of a
better safety and health management system

. The fundamental obligation of the Group is to provide
its employees a safe and healthy working environment.
A specialised department for the management of
environmental safety and hygiene has been established
within the Group which is responsible for supervising
the management system for environmental protection,
safety and hygiene, formulating all safety and hygiene
management regulations, and set up the system of
safety manager in each plant, regularly reviewing the
improvement recommendations put forward by all units,
examining the abnormal incidents on environment,
safety and hygiene and analysing the causes thereof, and
suggesting feasible improvement proposals or refined
engineering designs to the Group in an endeavour
to assist the Group to continuously heighten the
management standards.
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RIE-HERERHS

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(7)

(8)

Continuous review on development plans in pursuit of a
better safety and health management system (continued)

° Annual targets of management on environment, safety
and hygiene have been set in each factory area of
the Group in accordance with local regulations. The
occurrences of abnormal incidents on environment,
safety and hygiene have been effectively reduced
through an implementation of environment, safety and
hygiene inspections, education and trainings and regular
inspections on working environment in order to maximise
the working efficiency of the employees in a safe and
healthy environment.

° In addition to self-initiated inspections on environment,
safety and hygiene by each unit of the Group, the internal
inspection department also regularly reviews all operating
control on environment, safety and hygiene in the factory
area and the relevant operating environment to ensure
the implementation management systems such as I1SO
14001, ISO 45001, ISO 50001, FSSC 22000, HACCP, ISO
9001, etc.

Winning the recognition of Vietnamese governmental
authorities

For six consecutive years (from 2017 to 2022), our Vietnam
plant (primary production base of the Group) have been
granted the “Exemplary Enterprise Award for Commitment to
Workers” by the Vietnam General Confederation of Labour, The
Ministry of Labour, Invalids and Social Affairs and the Vietnam
Chamber of Commerce and Industry, in recognition of their
relentless efforts to improve the material and spiritual life of its
employees while actively improving their working environment,
giving full play to their talent and skills and striving to achieve
the goal of sustainable development together with them.
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RIE-H1ERERHRS

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers

Under the primary condition of stable quality and honesty in the
process of determining the suppliers, the Group selects its suppliers
across the globe as if deciding a long-term cooperation partner.
Under the gradual surge of green energy awareness across the
globe, the Group also wishes to promote the relevant environmental
protection concepts or practices to the upstream suppliers through
its supply chain management strategy of green products and
encourage the suppliers to actively cooperate and participate in the
environmental protection movement with its influence as a local
enterprise in hope to establish a green supply chain in the food
industry with its suppliers and improve the performance of the Group
and its suppliers in terms of social and environmental responsibility.

The raw material suppliers of the Group include manufacturers and
distributors. Engineering constructions are undertaken by engineering
contractors of construction and machinery. The Group adopts
standardised procurement model which not only includes comparison
of quality, cost, service, technology and delivery, but also includes
linked management for the information of suppliers to ensure the
integrity of the long-term information storage and flexibly updates
the changes in procurement demands so as to reduce procurement
risks.

The cooperation agreements between the Group and its suppliers or
contractors firstly requires the suppliers to faithfully carry out every
transaction in accordance with the contracts and not to damage
the interests and image of the Group. No suppliers shall engage
in transfer of personal benefits or involve in loans, leases and
investments for any non-business purposes with employees of the
Group or their families, relatives and friends. Meanwhile, the Group
also takes into account of appeals lodged by the suppliers against the
employees of the Group who may have breached the procurement
rules, and carries out investigations to safeguard the interests of the
suppliers in a bid to build a harmonious trading relationship between
both parties and establish an open, fair and just procurement
management mechanism.
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RIE-HERERERS

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (continued)

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers (continued)

We undertake to implement the following supply chain management
policies with considerable efforts:

(1) Regular supplier assessment mechanism for purpose of
improving management system of both parties

° The Group has established a system for inspection upon
delivery, regular inspection and assessment, and explicitly
has required the suppliers to cooperate with the Group’s
investigation in the factories based on the “Suppliers’
Annual External Assessment Programme”. The top priority
is to guide the supplier to improve the deficiencies
found in the inspection and assessment. After notifying
suppliers the items which require improvement, regular
investigation shall be continued and gradings will be
given in order to improve the management system of
both parties and ensure its business relationships with
quality suppliers. In 2022, the Group has completed the
annual assessment on suppliers according to the plan.

° The procurements of new raw materials or newly added
suppliers of the Group are all subject to the examination
and qualification judgement based on the “Assessment
Form for New Supplier” in order to ensure the standards
of the Group’s procurement management.

(2) Continuous promotion and encouragement to suppliers
for implementation of their own management systems

° In order to carry out safety management for contractors
and prevent constructional safety incidents, the
Group not only continuously reminds and informs
the contractors of the relevant safety management
requirements, but also conducts on-site supervision over
the operation safety of the manufacturers and procures
them to implement their own management to prevent
safety hazard to workers or damage to the environment
arising from improper operation.

° The Group also requires engineering contractors
to comply with and undertake to abide by all
requirements under the “Management Measures for
Safety and Hygiene of Contractors” and the policies
and requirements under ISO 14001 and ISO 45001 of
the Group and concurrently requires contractors to
assign safety management personnel and engineering
supervisors to the construction sites to confirm the safety
before, during and after the construction in order to
ensure the operation safety and environmental hygiene.
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RIE-H1ERERHRS

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (continued)

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers (continued)

(3)

Continuously maintain the proportion of green
procurement

In principle, if the suppliers in the country of the Group’s
business footholds or the neighbouring countries share
the advantages in delivery time with the same favourable
conditions in terms of quality, service and price, priority
would be given to the local raw material suppliers and
contractors in order to reduce the carbon emission in
the process of transportation and jointly achieve green
efficiency.

In addition to continuously facilitating the replacement of
old and high-consumption equipment with new models
through plans on manufacturing process improvement
or special projects, the Group also participates in
various exhibitions of innovative technology and new
energy conservation equipment from time to time in
hope to continue to manufacture with relatively high
efficiency equipment, reduce energy consumption per
unit, reduce the cost of electricity used for operation,
thereby implement energy management and enhance the
competitiveness of the Group in the industry.

The Group advocates green procurement policy and
gradually carry out the environmental protection
concept of “low pollution, recyclability and resources
conservation”. We support ecologically friendly products
and green energy, and give priority to recyclable,
degradable, reusable and recoverable products in
response to the international environmental protection
standards. In compliance with the local environmental
protection regulations, we encourage suppliers to actively
develop green products so as to minimise the damage
to the environment. All in all, we make a contribution to
take the eco-friendly pledge for all mankind.

In 2022, the Group's primary production bases
maintained a green procurement policy to achieve a
carbon emission control. Specific accomplishments
include: (a) continuous efforts in procurement at local
production places; (b) maintain the use of biomass energy
and production use unit demand purchase; (c) completion
of 100% procurement target for electrical appliances
with energy-saving labels.
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RIE-HERERERS

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Policy: Comprehensive Quality Management to Live Up to
Customers’ Satisfaction

High quality is an important core capability which the Group has
always maintained. In order to give customers full confidence in
the quality of the products, the Group continues to improve quality
control and achieve customers’ expectations through high standards
of quality control to create quality products and live up to customers’
satisfaction.

We undertake to implement the following product responsibility
policies with considerable efforts:

(1) In compliance with national quality and safety regulations

° In order to maintain the core competitiveness of the
product quality, the Group continues to maintain various
food safety management systems, including GMP+Feed
Safety Assurance, ISO 17025, HACCP, ISO 9001 and
FSSC 22000, and to enforce them on relevant production
aspects so as to enhance its competitiveness and satisfy
customers’ requirements on quality and the requirements
of food safety standards. In addition, the Group decided
to implement the new agreements and rules on relevant
foods announced by the governments during 2022, and
internal education training was implemented to ensure
that the new agreements were fully carried out.

° The Group ensures the quality of every product it
produced is in compliance with all requirements of
relevant local laws applicable to the operating areas.

o In 2022, the Group has fully implemented the monthly
review of the validity period of various intellectual
property rights in a bid to ensure the due completion of
registration procedure for renewal before expiration.

o The shipment of each batch of the products is subject to
a random inspection conducted by the Group. The fail
rate of the Group's product in the random inspection
was approximately 0.4% in 2022, and it was maintained
to enhance the system for the traceability of source
management.

o The Group performed a product recall drill in July 2022
for every main product (MSG, flavour seasoning, modified
starch, maltose syrup, rice protein, animal and plant liquid
and solid feed, and Cha Cha Spiced Sunflower Seeds),
enabling it to face potential circumstances with ample
experience.
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RIE-H1ERERHRS

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

Policy: Comprehensive Quality Management to Live Up to
Customers’ Satisfaction (continued)

(2)

Preservation of customers’ interests and consolidation of
customer relations

As the Group weighs its customer relation management
system, it has established feasible and effective customer
communication channels to understand the needs and
questions of customers. The Group has established the
“operating procedures for toll-free customer service
hotline”. Through the toll-free customer hotline, the
Group ascertains the procedures and scope of customer
service operation and matters which require customers’
cooperation in order to ensure customers’ interests as
well as to safeguard the interests of the distributors and
agents.

Addressing customers’ opinions and feedback and the
quality issues, each business unit has formulated standard
operating procedures in compliance with the local laws,
according to which it promptly provides proper responses,
makes reports and puts forward solutions through the
communication channels specified in the official website
of the Group and sales personnel to achieve the goal of
customer satisfaction.

Addressing customers’ data protection and privacy
management, the Group carried out 6 internal
inspections in 2022 (one inspection in every two months)
to ensure that the management measures are duly
implemented by every department.

The distribution partners around the world are important
market vanguards of the Group which help the Group to
deliver its brand value to the potential customers at every
corner of the world. The Group organises distribution
partner meetings or product launching events from time
to time to share the analysis on the overall market trend
and its marketing strategies in order to assure customers’
satisfaction and establish a long-term and stable market
operating foundation for the Group.
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RIE-HERERHS

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND PREVENTIVE MEASURES
Policy: Upholding Integrity and Formulating Standards

The Group highly values operation in good faith. It has established
a designated inspection unit, in addition to the establishment of a
transparent and open communication platform. The Group requires
its employees to comply with the regulations of integrity and also
reinforces the propaganda on a regular basis to prevent corruption
and fraud.

The Group requires all employees to abide by the prevailing
government regulations in each operating area and the internal
regulations of the Company in an endeavour to procure employees
to safeguard the Group’s reputation with the highest moral standard.
For the implementation of the Group’s anti-corruption policy, penalty
shall be imposed on inappropriate conducts in accordance with the
relevant regulations of the Company, while local legal proceedings
shall be instituted on a serious breach.

The Group shall implement the following policies with considerable
efforts to enforce the regulations of integrity on employees:

(1) Continuous propaganda of integrity

The Group requires every employee internally, and reminds all
customers, suppliers and all third parties involved in business
transactions externally not to obtain commercial benefits
directly or indirectly through malfeasance or bribery. It has also
established standard operation procedure systems for business,
procurement and finance departments to prevent employees
from abusing their power for personal gains which would result
in conflict of interests.

(2) Establishment of transparent and open communication
platform

Integrity is a major criterion of the Group's assessment on its
employees and employees who reported corrupt conducts shall
not result in any implication to their salaries and promotion
prospects or be subject to other unfavourable penalties.
There is a feedback channel which allows all employees to
report corrupt conducts to the management directly through
diversified means, where the whistle blower shall be protected
by the Group’s system. No employee in the Group was subject
to legal proceedings regarding corrupt conduct in 2021.
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RIE-H1ERERHRS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer

The Group provides special care to the relatively underprivileged
minority in society and gives long-term and appropriate support and
positive encouragement. With a thankful heart, the Group is willing
to be a cheerful corporate volunteer and communicate with the
community benevolently so as to requite the public for the support to
the Company.

Through internal coordination and planning of the public relations
department, the Group has been devoting itself to public welfare
activities, such as providing international medical support, taking care
of the impoverished families, promoting environmental protection
and energy conservation education and sponsoring outstanding
poor students for a long period of time in hope for encouraging
more enthusiasts to carry out charitable work and radiating
warmth to every corner in need through our modest contribution
and increased participation. Vietnam Red Cross awarded the “Red
Cross Outstanding Contribution of Business Enterprise Award” to a
Vietnamese company under the Group for multiple times, indicating
that the Company’s active participation in the public welfare has
obtained recognition by international charity and aid organisation.
The followings set forth a summary of the Group’s community
development and participation in public welfare:

(1) Continuous international medical support

Given that international human care has always been the
benevolent activity which the Group pays attention to, other
than sponsoring the “Agent Orange Victim Fund” and the
“Child Protection Fund”, the Vietnam plant (primary production
base of the Group) cooperated with the Government of Dong
Nai Province, Taichung Veterans General Hospital, Taiwan and
Huei-Kong Social Welfare Foundation for eight consecutive
years to carry out international medical support activities which
benefitted over ten thousand people. In 2022, in response to
the “Month of Humanity (A#Z B) ] event organized by the
Vietnam Red Cross, the Vietnam plant worked together with
the University Medical Shing Mark Hospital to provide a caring
and free clinic for 200 people in Dong Nai Province.

(2) Continuous promotion of study encouragement

In order to incentivise impoverished students, the Group
not only entered into the “Industry-University Collaboration
Memorandum” with numerous higher education institutions,
but also regularly carried out study encouragement in
accordance with the local government policies and gave
scholarships and donations for construction of schools in a bid
to provide better education to outstanding students in order to
encourage students to study hard.
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RIE-HERERHS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE
(continued)

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer (continued)

(3)

(4)

Encouragement to employees to participate in social
welfare activities

The Group always encourages its employees to participate in
all kinds of public welfare activities and several directors of
the Group and their families have set an example by working
as long-term volunteers of medical institutions and hospice
centres in an endeavour to motivate more employees to unite
their power through personal actions and serve the public with
contribution to society.

In 2021, affected by the Covid-19 pandemic, social distancing
was implemented nationwide, which reduced the frequency
of people’s going out and affected their willingness to donate
blood, and thus triggered a blood inventory alarm. In view
of this and in response to the initiative of “Blood Donation
with Love (—i@M &5 E) > the Vietnam plant organised
a “Humanity Blood Donation (AZE38IM) | event in 2022
in cooperation with the local government. In addition, the
Vietnam plant organised a “Weekend Prevention of Dengue
Fever Disease GER TR & B EAR) J activity for 57 schools in
2022 in cooperation with the Red Cross of Long Thanh County.

Continuous charity and public welfare activities

To demonstrate the spirit of fraternity and help impoverished
families, the Group adheres to the concept of gaining healthy
lives through flavourful and delicious food and organises
various activities such as “Spreading Warmth at the End of the
Year”, “Gratitude Fund”, “Building Warm-Hearted House” and
“Poverty Fund” every year to provide the most appropriate
support to the needy.

BFEEERRENEREORDSED
Worked together with the University Medical Shing Mark Hospital to
provide a caring and free clinic in Dong Nai Province

HEEEAZE T (B)

BEREMEGUE HKB/EEST (@

(3)

(4)

ERETZ2HAMEAWED

EERRXHETHETI2EBHREE
B EESUEFERAERAERS SN
T RAEEBEKE TEREKEN
ST HEHESME SHEZETH
BEG RBABDBRLE -

£2021F > ZCovid-19E BRI E 2
BITHRER BERRLVING B E
BMERE MBEEFRLIHR 20225
BARERSE BTN AERm
g EEI—FHM BDE] o tbsh> 2022
FHEREHRARNGA+FTE A7
BRBRNGERTER S ERRRIEE

RBEETREQAHED

77 HERREE B FEIRIERH
KE AEREXREMBERBELEEN
B3 EESFEEM RRERE - TH
RERES BREBE - THEBEE
EIEZTHEY AFIRFREREE
8917 Bh -

M ¥ ET MAM -
:j l-!l.! NHAN DAo [Hed

# i

FMMEMES BR—RBD -BOE

Initiative of “Blood Donation with Love”
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RIE-H1ERERHRS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE
(continued)

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer (continued)

(5)

(6)

Facilitation of environmental protection and energy
conservation education

In order to enhance the awareness of the importance of
energy and climate change issues among all people, the Group
cooperated with the local government and international
organisations every year to promote the concept of forest
conservation by organising different activities such as “Green
Sunday”, “Tree Planting”, “Environmental Protection Drawing
Competition” and “Classification of Household Waste”,
and sponsor a variety of environmental protection funds in
an endeavour to facilitate environmental protection, forest
conservation, forest expansion and improve the ecological
environment.

Generation of a centripetal force towards society by
culture education

The cultivation strategy of the Group is to rapidly and fully
integrate into local culture where it operates. As such, the
Group provides various recreational activities and supports the
relevant activities of local governments, such as celebrating
local festivals, participating in the International Women's Day,
tug-of-war competitions for employees, commending senior
employees, establishing party organisations and organizing
activities in a bid to enhance a sense of belonging of the
employees to the local culture and earn recognition of the
Company from communities.

HELEREB QI @)

BE:REMEUE HKA/EEST (@

(5)

(6)

EEIRIRAEREE

ARERVENERRREEEREN
EE KESFRGEMBTEMKRERK
EREESEMEMNTRE BMSE &
®BEH) - TE  IREREBELE - TE
ERR DR EE T HEKBIRGFE
T ARERE  EMEMBEARTMER
REEERRIEME o

U EHEFRFLEREON

RAEMREENERERE HEEEE
REMTERMAEEGHE M EE
RHUIBXREHURE S EMBFN
HEAES AW EHXEAESE =N\
BREEH BTIHRAILEE -ERETER
HES M BAMS EEEHE M
EIXE THEMCHIERER > [t
BHEHATNBRR -

RIZFERETL REEKRRALH
Commending senior employees to
bolster teamwork cohesiveness and spirit

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIFR (R BRRAF

FERDEE) MK
Organized tree planting activities
to protect the earth
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RIE-HERERHS

PROSPECTS

“Care for environment and sustainable operation” is the operational
mission of the Group and also a commitment and fundamental
responsibility of us as an international corporate citizen to the
environment and society. In process of the preparation of the
disclosure in this report, we have reviewed the actual actions taken
by the Group in a new perspective for implementing the three
sustainability measures, namely sustainable environment, public
welfare, and sound corporate governance. The Group will continue
to improve and formulate the most complete development solutions
which integrate operating procedures, and will continuously strive for
corporate excellence, facilitating social development and creating a
better environment.

With reference to the relevant regulations and international
standards, the Group will continue to review the hindrances and
risks to be involved in the future corporate governance, social
development and environmental protection. It will also formulate
mid-to-long-term improvement strategies and action plans as soon
as possible with effective communication with the stakeholders of
the Group, including employees, customers, suppliers, investors and
the community, that enable them to understand and support every
practical action taken by the Group for the environmental, social and
governance in order to face the trend of the macro-environment and
challenges together in a prudent manner and seek the best way for
coexistence and mutual prosperity.

The Group believes that the fulfilment of social responsibility is the
critical driving force for the sustainable growth of enterprises in the
21st century. In the future, we will continue to integrate the core
competence of biotechnology with social responsibility and develop
green economy. The Group expects not only to continue to grow
and develop in the food industry, but also to have a significant
influence — It will also focus on climate change, including issues such
as carbon reduction in an endeavour to contribute to the sustainable
development of the environment of the earth and create a better
home together.

RE

MZEIRIE KECE  RAEBAOKE €
S REREELARBIRIT AT GRAEN
BEXAER-RZMAZBKEFIREENERE B
MREEEHNBERXERE HELET S
REztEELR=-EXEEINERER LK
FENE BIURTHBAESEERENER
FEBAFBEREEIHMEE REHL S
ERIAIGSRIENHEE-

FEERSEZHMERKBEREE FERS
EERKRAEGXEE - HERRARIBRERN
REHBENEEARE BRERBAPRANER
BRTBHAE TAMBENRERZFZ/HE
ABEEIT - FFR -HEE KREAKRKTE &
ZTRIXFERTRRE HEREBNEE
FR HEZEEHRRENBZERE 8
REFHENREER

EEEEEEHEER REREEETT —HiL
KERRNBABER DR RFRFEER
EMEMZOENEHLEERES ERGE
BE SERETEERmEERURELER
X BEREEENTEN ERRARRBREL
BREARERENR T HEAMIKIRIE X E
ERB HRIEFRE-
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

The Group's compliance of General Disclosures and KPIs: ERETREEMEAREVIEEZETE
7

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, BRIE -2 REARBREIESI ) Z2HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHR - EE - —RRBREARERER

Compliance as disclosed
“Comply or explain” Provisions in this report

TRBTrLARRE) FBEEERBEZETER

A. Environmental

IRIE
A1 Emissions: General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)
HEm — %% EE (2016.1.1%E %)

Information on:

BRBRBEREHB RAKRIMHNGFS AERESER

MNELEEW .
(a)  the policies; and As stated in the section
(@) B & headed “Environmental

Protection (1) Emission

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a management” in this

significant impact on the issuer report e
(b) BFHBETABEAXEZNMEREERRROINER Mk E S NRITFREO)HF
MBI B EH RN

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

Note: (1) Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated
under national laws and regulations.

2 (WERIIREEAStY REtYRENMZREREERRIRE
SpEE Y/

Note: (2) Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous
oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur
hexafluoride.

2 QRERBEE_StHK - BR-Staa - a/amtay - 281t
R 7S ®mACH

Note: (3) Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.

2 QFEERERMERKKRAMmMATES-

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk /3 EIFE (18%) BRAT



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE- g RERHE M

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#)

(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHB EE - —RRBEREARERIER

“Comply or explain” Provisions

TRET R
KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
RAREIEIR(2017.1.1£E30)

KPI A1.1: The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

RSRERUERA | R E R BB -

KPlI A1.2: Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

FARERIERA1.2 RERBASNRE UEHE) &k WER) &
EWUESESEMN SERHEHE) o

KPI A1.3: Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FARBENEEAM I MEEEEEEYRE CIEHE) &k (N8
A ZE (UAEESEM §EREE) °

KPI A1.4: Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

FARERIERA 4 FMEERSEEYEE UETE) K (W3
B EBE MUSESEMN SERKHEAE) o

BRI - ERERBEIFS ) Z2HER

Compliance as disclosed
in this report

FBEEERBZETER

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report

M EE RIBHRE)HF
WA E R SRR

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report
MREE"IRIEFEN)HE
W E R E UM

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report
MRES"IRIEREN)HE
WY E IR = E R

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report
MIREE"IRIFFREN)HE
W ER " E RN
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIF- (1 ERERHRE M

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (€))

(continued)

A2 Use of
Resources:

BiRERA :

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHR - EE - —RRBREARERER

“Comply or explain” Provisions

TRBTrLARRE)

KPI A1.5: Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved.

RASRAERUGERRA S fUREHE R ERNEE RS R

KPlI A1.6: Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
FARERIEREAI 6 HIREEEREEEEYNG E  REE
EENEHERFAERR-

General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)

—ARIKEE (2016.1.1%%)

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

ERERER (BIEER KREMEME) AIEER -

Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in
buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

2 BERUAREE #F EH BF BEFfAEF

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk /3 EIFE (18%) BRAT

BRI HERERRSES)ZHER

Compliance as disclosed
in this report

FBEEERBEZETER

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report
MREZ " RIBHRE)H
WA E R SRR

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report

M EE " RIEFRE)HE
WY E R EEHRUM

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report
MBEERIBERE()E
RERAEE ZEHMR



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE- g RERHE M

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (&)

(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHB EE - —RRBEREARERIER

“Comply or explain” Provisions

BT

KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
RARRAESISHZ (2017.1.1%30)

KPI'A2.1: Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

RARAMIERA2. REBVEONEERSHEEERWE R
Fom) REE UTETERSH REE MUSESE[ 811
BhstE) o

KPI A2.2: Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).

RASRERUERA2.2 ( BFEKERBE MMUSESE M-
i) o

FIERE

KPI A2.3: Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.
RARENISIRA2.3  HHtA

EIR e A 2 a5t B S FRIS AR ©

KPI A2.4: Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

RASEABMIGIZA2.4 © U REVE
FRKM B RFAIEHR -

KRB EAERE UKk

KPI A2.5: Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
RARAENIERA2.S | HmATAESEMENEE (UMEH) &
(WNER) SEEEMfhE-

BRI - ERERBEIFS ) Z2HER

Compliance as disclosed
in this report

FBEEERBZETER

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report
MREEREFREQ)E
BERAEE ZEEHMM

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report
MBEERIERE()E
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ E=4-kven

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report
MBEZIRIERE(2)E
B R EE EEHMTL

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report
MEEREFREQ)E
BERAEE SRR

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in

this report
MMESE"RIFEFRE(2)E
BEREE EHfuR
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

A3 Environment
and Natural
Resources:

RIERRAER :

()

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHR - EE - —RRBREARERER

“Comply or explain” Provisions

TRBTrLARRE)

General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)

— AR EE (2016.1.1% %)

Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

HEETABRRERRABERERERTENBR-

KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
R AR IE1R(2017.1.1E30)

KPI' A3.1: Description of the significant impacts of activities on
the environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

FARERIERAS  HAEREHHRIERRABRNEATLE
RERRERARTZENTH

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk /3 EIFE (18%) BRAT

BRI HERERRSES)ZHER

Compliance as disclosed
in this report

FBEEERBEZETER

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (3) Environment
and natural resources
management” in this
report

MBEE"RIERE IR
BRAABRER"EM

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (3) Environment
and natural resources
management” in this
report

MR EERIEHRE (3) IR
BRRAABREE"EM



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(RBE - HERERABRSEIINZHEBR
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures THREEREZ

[RETHEE BEKE E1TIER;

B. Social &

I. Employment and
Labour Practices

— BAREIER General Disclosure

B1 Employment: (effective from 2016.1.1)

it - —HRKE (2016.1.15%)
Information on:
ERHMcEE BERSH

IR RE TEHE 2
i RERUKREMEERE
A

=

the policies; and As stated in the section
Bk & headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report

=

(b) compliance with relevant

e
. BHMMEBRD"EE
on the issuer st
b) BFHETABEATE '
BRI A B RRAINER o

relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
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RIF- (1 ERERHRE M

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (€))

(continued)

B2 Health and

Safety:
BEAZE:

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions
IRETHER

General Disclosure
(effective from 2016.1.1)
—RIRE (2016.1.14 %)
Information on:
BRREZ2TERERRERE
ERGHEMREEN

) the policies; and

BiR 5 K

D

D

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer

b) BFHETABEATE
HIER A B RRBIER o

relating to providing a safe
working environment and
protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk /3 EIFE (18%) BRAT

KPIB1.1

R EMIERB

KPIB1.2

R EMIERB1.2

Recommended Disclosures
BEHE
Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

Total work force by gender,
employment type, age group
and geographical region.

BUER BESE FRANK
HEESNESEH-

Employee turnover rate
by gender, age group and

geographical region.

BRIEH FRANRMER DK

BERKLLR-

BRI HERERRSES)ZHER

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
THREEREZ
[@1T1ER

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report
NMBREEEIERA
BRI ERE R =
;i

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report
NMBREETETEHRA
BRI ERER ZH
g

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report

MEEEBTERA
BRHOEEZ2HRE
W TIERIR S HRUR



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

B(RIE-HEREBBRSHESNZHER

(&)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions
IRETHER

Recommended Disclosures

BEKE

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

KPI B2.1
RS R 151RB2.1

KPI B2.2
B AR 1517B2.2

KPIB2.3
B R AN IE1RB2.3

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities.

RIFMGEMETHABRLE

%o

Lost days due to work injury.

RIGRAIFRE-

Description of occupational
health and safety measures
adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.

BAFMRANEERRERE R
1 URAERRITREE R %

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
THREEREZ
[@1TER

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report
MFLEETETERA
BRI REZ 2 AR
M TIERIR S HAU
As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report
MEEEBTERA
BR4)ERZ 2 AR
M TIERIR S HR
As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report
MEEEBTERA
BRHOEEZ2ERE
W TIERIR S HRR
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RIF- (1 ERERHRE M

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (€))

(continued)

B3 Development

and Training:

B3ZR R :

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions
IRETHER

General Disclosure

(effective from 2016.1.1)

— R E(2016.1.1.5%)
Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
BERRARERTIGREN
K138 Ko % AR RO BRER o Hh it 1B 3
o

Note:  Training refers to vocational
training. It may include
internal and external courses
paid by the employer.

i BIEERERI UEEH
EBEMENRIMIRE

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk /3 EIFE (18%) BRAT

KPI'B3.1

RS EAIE1RB3.1

KPI B3.2

PR EMIERB3.2

Recommended Disclosures

BEKE

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BRRE-MRENER

The percentage of employees
trained by gender and
employee category (e.g.
senior management, middle

management).

BURRESERN WERER
E-HREEEZ) B 2R

EEBALL.

The average training hours
completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
Rt RESERNR D 4k
BRMFHIN TS

BRI HERERRSES)ZHER

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
THREEREZ
[@1T1ER

As stated in the section
headed "employees
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
MEEEBTERA
BRIOGZEBALIE

As stated in the section
headed “employees
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
MBREETETHEHAA
BRG)EREEIE
As stated in the section
headed “employees
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
NMBREEEIEHRA

BHC)RRAZI =



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(RBE - HERERABRSEIINZHEBR
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures THREEREZ
RETFHER BEHE BiT1ER
B4 Labour General Disclosure
Standards: (effective from 2016.1.1)
B4¥ T #48 : — R E(2016.1.1.5%)
Information on:
BRABILET RSB TH
(@) the policies; and As stated in the section
(@) BR; R headed “Employee

Practice and Benefit (6)
Labour standards” in

(b) compliance with relevant this report

laws andl reg_ulatioqs that MEpEEIETHEER
have a significant impact BRI (6)% T B S
on the issuer st
b) BFHETABEARE
HIERE B RRBIRVER o
relating to preventing child and
forced labour.
Recommended Disclosures - KPI
BRRE-HRENER
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to  As stated in the section
AR B IEIER4.1 review employment practices to  headed “Employee
avoid child and forced labour. Practice and Benefit (6)
BaliRsREEAREMLES  Labour standards” in
BIRAEIH o this report
NMBREEEIERA
&H(6)% TR Z&
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to  As stated in the section
RSB AI512R4.2 eliminate such practices when headed “Employee
discovered. Practice and Benefit (6)
HRELRERBERFERERM  Labour standards” in
TR RERE 5 o this report
NMBREEEIEHRA
&RI(6)5 T 28I H
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

B5 Supply Chain
Management:

HEEER:

BRI HERERRSES)ZHER

()

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions
IRETHER

General Disclosure

(effective from 2016.1.1)

— MR E (2016.1.1%%)
Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of the supply chain.
EEMEBNRERT T AR
o

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk /3 EIFE (18%) BRAT

Recommended Disclosures

BEKE

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

KPI B5.1
B B 151285, 1

KPI B5.2
R S& AR 2 15 17B5.2

Number of suppliers by
geographical region.

SR b S
Description of practices relating
to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, how
they are implemented and
monitored.
BOERERREENEN [
HYTEHBANGEEHE
UREHABHANRTRERR
e

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
THREEREZ
[@1T1ER

As stated in the section
headed “Supply Chain
Management” in this
report

MEEE MMEREE)
BEfL

As stated in the section
headed “Supply Chain
Management (1), (2)
and (3)" in this report

MBEEHERER
(ONO)-EMES:Ten



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(RBE - HERERABRSEIINZHEBR
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures TREERTEZ
IRETRER EERE [@1TER
B6 Product General Disclosure
Responsibility: (effective from 2016.1.1)
EmAE: —RIEE (2016.1.1%5%)

Information on:
BRHMREERTRENEER
Z2 EE BERMEEEMN

RFEHA AN
(a) the policies; and As stated in the section
@ BE; & headed “Product
Responsibility (1) in
this report
(b) compliance with relevant MBEETERERM)
laws and regulations that EX-0E 6

have a significant impact
on the issuer

b)) BFHETABEARE
HERERRARNNER -

relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and
services provided and methods
of redress.
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RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, BRI -HERERBREIESI ) Z2HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (€))
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
THREEREZ
[@1T1ER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions
IRETHER

Recommended Disclosures
BEHE
Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold  As stated in the section
PR AN IE1E86.1 or shipped subject to recalls for headed “Product
safety and health reasons. Responsibility (1) in
BEFEEXEREYTEARE  this report
HEFEMMALKNESL NREEEREE0))
BERGL
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service ~ As stated in the section
SRR I51Z86.2 related complaints received and headed “Product
how they are dealt with. Responsibility (2)" in
REMRERKRBHOZFAE  this report
MRS %o MBEEERREQ)
EX-0E 6
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating ~ As stated in the section
R REMIE1E86.3 to observing and protecting headed "Product
intellectual property rights. Responsibility (1) in
HhREERFENAEERRE  this report
HYE o MEEEERER()
EEfn
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance  As stated in the section
Rl 4B I512R6.4 process and recall procedures. headed “Product
BHESREBEREMELIKE Responsibility (1)" in
Fe this report
MEEEEREE()
B
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data  As stated in the section
PR ENIE1286.5 protection and privacy policies, headed “Product
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RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(RBE -t ERERREIESI N ZHEBR
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures THREEREZ
IRETH R BEHE BiTIER
B7 Anti-corruption: General Disclosure
R&S: (effective from 2016.1.1)

—RRIEE (2016.1.14£%)

Information on:

BRMLEER 95 REFERS

EETE
(a) the policies; and As stated in the
@ HE; R section headed "Anti-
corruption and
Preventive Measures” in

(b) compliance with relevant this report
laws and regulations that MEREERESMAE

EER

have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b) BFHETABEARE
WA RRAINER

relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.
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RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(RBE - ERERKREIESNZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (€))
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
THREEREZ
[@1T1ER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions
IRETHER

Recommended Disclosures
BEHE
Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal As stated in the
PR ENIE1ER7.1 cases regarding corrupt practices  section headed “Anti-
brought against the issuer orits corruption and
employees during the reporting ~ Preventive Measures in
period and the outcomes of the (1) this report
cases. MEEEREGHSE
RESHARZTAREESR (1) EHHH
it B EENE SRR Y
BRFMER
KPI B7.2 Description and preventive As stated in the
RSB AERI51ZR7 .2 measures and whistleblowing  section headed “Anti-
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RIE- g RERHE M

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#)

(continued)

1ll. Community
= HE

B8 Community
Investment:

HERE:

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions
IRETHER

General Disclosure
(effective from 2016.1.1)
— R E (2016.1.15%)

Polices on community engagement
to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the
communities” interests.
BRMUHBSHRT BEEME
HEZFENRFHEREHGS
B BRI HAER o

KPI B8.1

RSB 5 1RBS.1

KPI B8.2

R EIE1RB8.2

Recommended Disclosures

BEKE

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

Focus are as of contribution
(e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health,

culture, sport).

SIEAMER (WHE RRES
EHISR BR N8B

B) o

Resources contributed (e.g.
money or time) to the focus

area.

TEEIRRABHRER (L7

KB o

B(RIE-HEREBBRSHESNZHER

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
THREEREZ
[@1TER

As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare” in this
report
MESEHELEHR
BERH I BHAM

As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare (1)-(6)"
in this report
NMBREEMHELER
BER#H(1)-6) JEH
As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare” in this
report
MBREEMHELEHA
BENT BHRULE
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Report of Directors

EFEHRS

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and
the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the production of fermentation-based
amino acids, food additive products and cassava starch based
industrial products. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in Note 9 to the accounts.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these
activities during the year under review.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Preface
For review of the Group’s business, the description about major risks
and uncertainties and business prospects, please refer to “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
Report.

Subsequent events after year end date
No major event that influences business operation of the Group has
occurred since 31 December 2022 (the balance sheet date of the
financial year) until the date of this report.

Analysis of key financial performance indicators

For detailed key financial performance indicators that reflect business
performance of the Group, refer to “Financial Highlights” on page 5
in this Annual Report.

Corporate environmental policy and performance

Environmental protection has always been a key target that the
Group is concerned and works hard on. The Group has worked
out an environmental policy and included environmental protection
in daily management in accordance with related environmental
protection laws and regulations applicable to the production
base. The Group has also helped every employee cultivate their
environmental protection awareness, strengthen the environmental
protection concept, prevent environmental pollution, and cherish the
earth’s natural resources, so as to conserve energy, reduce carbon
footprint, and jointly build a sustainable green enterprise.
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Report of Directors
EEERE

In line with the national policy for production base, the Group
regularly holds all kinds of environmental safety drills and review
meetings to enhance the disaster response capability of employees,
creates a safe industrial environment for all the employees, and
actively strives to become a model enterprise in labour safety and
health.

The Group will continuously promote its environmental protection
policy to meet the following requirements:

1. Comply with or surpass provisions of the related laws and
internal standards.

2. Carry out corporate activities in light of the principles of paying
attention to personal safety, environmental protection and
resources conservation.

3. Minimize the emission of waste gas, waste water and waste
material as far as technically feasible.

4. Advocate recycling of resources to achieve the objective of
reducing material consumption and waste.

5. Include the concept of environmental protection, safety
and health in employee training and carry out all kinds of
environmental safety and health activities.

6. Check the progress and implementation effect of each plan on
an annual basis and improve deficiencies to achieve the purpose
of continuous improvement.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group constantly updates related laws and regulations applicable
to the production base (in Vietnam and China) and ensures
compliance with them. The Group’s assets are located in Vietnam and
China respectively, while its income mainly comes from operations
of the Vietnam plant. During the year under review, the Group
observed the applicable laws and regulations of the country where
the production base is in all the aspects of significant influences.

Major relationships with employees, customers and suppliers
The Group energetically cultivates local talents of the production
base to become major officers, and provides outside training or
internal training specific to expertise of employees so as to enhance
professional functions of all employees. The Group promotes park-
like construction of plants, offers an elegant working environment
and employee dormitories, sets up books, recreation, balls and
other facilities, and organizes comprehensive and attractive welfare
and recreational activities for employees. The Group has been
implementing its corporate citizenship concept and recruiting
outstanding talents to support its sustainable operations. Neither
strike nor major occupational hazard cases ever occurred during the
year under review.

FEFEBTEEEMZBERBER EHEMS
RIRDRERENE RAEEETI X ERE
B BE2ETXZ2RE BHEFIIN
AEHLZEFHENDEHIE

FEERGRERD ZIRBFRERE !

1. MENEBHARESRREREZEZR.

2. GEFPFLUEIRAELRE RERBEKRR
BERZRAET

3. ERMATZEER @RV ER
BEK > REEEYME SRR

4. REBERZEOWEFAA LUEMRE YA
HEEHEZBR -

5. RERF - ZERBEZBEIMASIZI
B UMERRBRLHEY -

6. SBEEHRELBERFHNEERAITH
Mo WFRERKREITNE  UERFBEREZ
BAYo

BTFERRER

FEEFEBENEERE N (BrkPE) BAN
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The Group has established sound interactive relationships with
suppliers to realize efficient cooperation and jointly meet the business
requirements of all the customers. The purchase department of
the Group regularly reviews the supply quality with suppliers, and
examines all the production processes of the supply plant on site to
ensure stable and high purchase quality of the Group. Prior to each
purchase project, the Group has clarified the Group’s regulations
and standards to the supplier; all purchase processes comply with
the principles of openness, fairness and justice, and agreements are
signed to ensure rights and interests of both parties.

The Group highly values the opinions and views of all customers,
learns the consumption demand trends of customers by using
different methods and pipelines, analyzes customer feedback
regularly, and adjusts the production and marketing plan flexibly to
meet requirements of all the customers and enhance the Group’s
performance gradually. The Group carries out strict control and
inspection of product quality in accordance with international food
regulations so as to provide customers with products and services
of the best quality. The Group signs sales agreements with all the
major customers and distributors and maintains good cooperation
relationships with them by observing the standard sales procedures of
the Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 125.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 0.162 US cents).

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2022 amounting to US$149,000

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company's share premium reserve
(subject to the Cayman Companies Act and the articles of association
of the Company) and retained earnings available for distribution to
the Company'’s shareholders are set out in Note 33 to the accounts.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company's shares during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND MAJOR CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the percentage of revenue
from sales of goods or rendering of services attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers combined was less than 30%.
Information in respect of the Group’s major suppliers is as follows:

- The percentage of purchases attributable to the largest supplier
16%

- The percentage of purchases attributable to the five largest
suppliers combined 47%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(who to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued shares) had an interest in these major suppliers.

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 3,855 employees,
3,641 of whom were employed by subsidiaries in Vietnam, 187
by subsidiaries in the PRC,16 by the Taiwan Branch and 11 by the
Cambodia Branch. The Group’s employees are remunerated in
accordance with prevailing industry practices, and with reference
to the financial performance of the Group and performance of
individual employees. Other fringe benefits such as accommodations,
meals, insurance, medical coverage and provident fund are provided
to employees to ensure staff loyalty and the Group’s competitiveness.
To enhance the quality of human resources, bolster the professional
skills and management abilities of employees and build localised
workforces, the Group provides job rotation as well as internal
and external training courses and seminars on professional skills,
languages, etc.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
YANG, Tou-Hsiung
YANG, Cheng
YANG, Kun-Hsiang
YANG, Chen-Wen
YANG, Kun-Chou

Non-executive Directors
HUANG, Ching-Jung
CHOU, Szu-Cheng

Independent Non-executive Directors
CHAO, Pei-Hong

KO, Jim-Chen

CHEN, Joen-Ray

HUANG, Chung-Fong
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According to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Yang, Cheng, Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou, Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung and
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. All such Directors being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 30 to 34.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of Directors of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), were as follows:—

REBEFRBDZEBEEMAET(NF HIEKL
E-HHNEE TEREEERRBIFEER
RERBDEERREEARE LRERET -FIA
ZEEENAERKERERE R

EEREREEERERE

t

EFEREREERBNBEFEHINE30E3M4E

EERMNARM B REHESEZEmN
e

RZBE_Z_F+ZRA=+—H HFRAVEER
FABRHEEAEEZE (EERESFRHAE
1EBIBXVER) Z B0~ MR R EEE P
BzEE=mWT -

Interests in shares

RGO ZEDR
Number of Percentage of

issued shares
of the Company

ordinary shares
(Long Position)

Name Capacity TiEREE HERTBEIT
i g1 (F &) BB
Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%
HEEESE controlled by him (Notes 1 and 3)

RHERZ X #E (fF5E1/3)
Mr. YANG, Cheng Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%
BIESE controlled by him (Notes 2 and 3)

RHERZ X #E (M sE2523)
Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung Beneficial owner 200,000 0.01%
ERERELE BHEEAA
Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong Beneficial owner 500,000 0.03%

HIERTE B@mBEAEA
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Notes:

1. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was entitled to exercise or control the exercise of
more than one-third of the voting power of King International Limited
("King International”). Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was therefore deemed to
have interest in the 169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King
International.

2. Mr. YANG, Cheng was entitled to exercise or control the exercise
of more than one-third of the voting power of King International.
Mr. YANG, Cheng was therefore deemed to have interest in the
169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King International.

3. The interests that Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng had in
the 169,730,196 shares were of the same block of shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange; nor had they been granted such rights.

DISCLOSURE OF CHANGE OF DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes and
updates in Directors’ information during the year ended 31 December
2022 are as follows:

Mr. YANG, Cheng no longer serves as the Chairman of Vedan Culture
and Education Foundation from 2022.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang no longer serves as the President of Vedan
Vietnam concurrently from August 2022.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou no longer serves as a Director of Ve Wong
Corporation (a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation) from August 2021.

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung no longer serves as the Vice President of Taiwan
Vedan from August 2022.

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray was appointed as a Director of Tai-Saw Technology
Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded company on the Taiwan Stock Ex-change
Corporation) from July 2022.

Saved as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
change in the Directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of the
2021 annual report of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. YANG, Cheng, Mr. YANG,
Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial period of three years
commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service agreements may
continue thereafter from year to year until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party to the
other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at any
time thereafter.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed period of three years commencing on 8 March
2021.

Each of Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung and Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for an initial
term of one year commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service
agreements may continue thereafter from year to year until
terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by either party to
the other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at
any time thereafter.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2021.
Mr. Chou and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chou do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chou’s appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by either
party to the other.

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2021.
Mr. Ko and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of the
original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Ko do not agree to extend, the
service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original term
or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service agreement.
During the renewed term, Mr. Ko's appointment may be terminated
by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by either party to the
other.
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Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2021.
Mr. Chen and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chen do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chen’s appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by either
party to the other.

Mr. HUANG, Chung-Fong has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of two years and five months. commencing
on 23 October 2021. Mr. Huang and the Company may, upon or
before the expiration of the original term or any renewed term (as
the case may be) thereof, agree in writing to extend the term of the
service agreement for another year. If the Company and Mr. Huang
do not agree to extend, the service contract shall lapse upon the
expiration of the original term or any renewed term (as the case may
be) of the service agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Huang’s
appointment may be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice
in writing by either party to the other.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the service contracts detailed above and continuing
connected transactions detailed below, no director had a material
interest in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty; provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to any of the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company
has not entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body
corporate to manage or administer the whole or any substantial part
of any business of the Company during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with Vedan Enterprise Corporation (“Taiwan
Vedan”)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company entered into
the following transactions with its substantial shareholder, Taiwan
Vedan, a connected person of the Company, which constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company and were subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

RHERERXS
BERBEERMGARLR (TREKMA) Z2X5

BE_E__F+__A=+—HLEEFE xR
BHEEFERRABEALSEKRIET T
R MzERZENEAEBT LEHRAE14A
ERRAAEREZFERERS  £AFTF
B EHRAE VAT ERFH B RIKEE !

Note Us$'000

M 5% FE

A.  Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan Group A. AEEKAEEHEEESR (i) 10,416

B.  Technological support fee paid to B. MAEKMAZM (ii) 2,139
Taiwan Vedan RiTZiE&

Notes:

Confirmations

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2022 have been reviewed by Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. The Independent Non-executive
Directors confirmed that the aforesaid connected transactions were
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) on normal commercial terms or better; and (c) according
to the agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a
whole.
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The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group on page 112 of the annual report in
accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 32
to the accounts. Save for the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above, none of these related party transactions constitutes
a connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules which
requires to be disclosed.

Save for the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
and certain other continuing connected transactions/connected
transactions which is exempted from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, during the reporting year,
there were no other transactions which constituted connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions that were subject to
the reporting requirements under the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the requirements for connected
transactions in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 214 of the annual
report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

So far as known to the Company, as at 31 December 2022, other
than the interests of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as disclosed above, the following persons had interests in the shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRMNRGZERNRE

BARBMA R-_BE__F+-A=+—
H BREXFRBEAADEFHARSTHRAES
MmN UTALTRERBRMDPHERERE

BERAERGIE xvﬁﬂ’%z& B3N EZIENA
BAARKENED  HIAERBRBES

REAGIEGIE336IRFIFE 2 B L MBI ¢

Number of
ordinary Percentage of
shares issued shares
(Long Position) of the Company
Name Capacity ZiEREE HERTE
Ry 514 (#FR) BITRMBESL
Billion Power Limited (“Billion Power") Beneficial owner 512,082,512 33.62%
BEREAA (Note 1)
(BFEET)
Vedan Enterprise Corporation Interest held by its controlled 512,082,512 33.62%
("Taiwan Vedan”) corporation (Note 1)
R ERMERAT (T&EK) REZESZEEZ#ER (MFEE1)
King International Beneficial owner 169,730,196 11.15%
BHEAA
Concord Worldwide Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
BmEAA
High Capital Investments Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
BHEAA
REECERMNBRAS Beneficial owner 83,348,000 5.47%
BmEAA
Notes: Mk -
1. Billion Power was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Vedan. Taiwan 1. Billion PowerZ &EBKANEZEMB AR > K

Vedan was therefore deemed to be interested in these 512,082,512
shares held by Billion Power.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Company, as at
31 December 2022, no other person (not being a Director or chief
executives of the Company) had any interests or short positions in
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Five Directors of the Company, namely, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
YANG, Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG,
Kun-Chou were also directors of the Group’s controlling shareholder,
Taiwan Vedan. In addition, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, YANG,
Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG, Kun-Chou
indirectly held approximately 19.77 percent., 9.89 percent., 6.18
percent., 8.24 percent, and 6.18 percent. interest in Taiwan Vedan,
respectively and they were therefore considered as having an interest
in Taiwan Vedan under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Taiwan Vedan Group is principally engaged in, inter alia, the
production of food additive products, including MSG products, and
beverages in Taiwan, which may compete with the Group’s business
operations in respect of the product portfolio of the Group (“Product
Portfolio”).

Since Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and YANG, Cheng are both
responsible only for the overall strategic planning and the business
development of the Taiwan Vedan Group and the Group and the daily
operations of the Group are managed by Messrs. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
and YANG, Chen-Wen together with an independent management
team. In Taiwan Vedan, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is mainly responsible
for the sales of the products of the Company and products of other
companies which the Company acts as an agent within Taiwan.
In the Group, he provides guidance and assistance for selling the
Group's products in Vietnam and the PRC markets. Taiwan Vedan
and the Group are operated by separate sales teams which are
independent of each other, while market segmentation shall comply
with the details of the territorial delineation agreement signed by
the Group and Taiwan Vedan. The Directors are of the view that
the management and the operational functions of the Group are
independent of and separate from those of other members of the
Taiwan Vedan Group.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the Independent Non-
executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the Company would
on a regular basis review the business and operational results of the
Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s business operations in
respect of the Product Portfolio is and continues to be run on the
basis that it is independent of, and at arm’s length from, that of
Taiwan Vedan.

AUDITOR

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board
YANG, Kun-Hsiang

Director and Chief Executive Officer
21 March 2023
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VEDAN INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Vedan International
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), which are set out on pages 123 to 213, comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

116  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIRE (#288) BIRAR



Independent Auditor’s Report
A RVR e R e

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to revenue FHFITEZBstPRINBAEEAFTERBANIKE

recognition.

Key Audit Matter
RSB EE

E

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB N RIEMRBENEE

Revenue Recognition

Wy s 52

Refer to note 2.20 and note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

A2RREMBRRME2. 20Kk MeES-

The Group recognised revenue from sales of goods
amounted to approximately US$451 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022.
RBEE-ZEZZ_F+"A=+—HLEE> E£ER
RIHEERmZWEHLNIS1BEEETT

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised at the
point in time when or as the control of the products
is transferred to the customer. The risk and reward of
ownership have been transferred to the customer upon
delivery of products or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

HEEMZWENERZEFREERER P AR R
RoEAENARKERENERRNTEX EEEAER
B BERMAENRECRERREBRERP
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Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition
included:

FRPIARMKRDERNEFEE !

1. We understood and evaluated the revenue recognition
policy of the Group by reviewing the sales contracts
entered with the customers on a sample basis and
discussed with management.
EMALMEREREERITINHESAREEIERE
e TRRRGHE BEBMNNERESIEER-

2. We understood, evaluated, and tested the relevant
management'’s controls in respect of the Group's
revenue recognition process.

RMETH MRS ERAEEEH SEEMWK
70 P ST M A2 ER EN A9 42 6l FE i o

3. We tested revenue transactions recognised in relation
to the sales of goods by examining, on a sample basis,
the relevant supporting documents including sales
orders, goods delivery notes and invoices.
BMELMEREAAIEXY (BIEHETE -ER
HEBEREDR) AEANHEERERNRERS -
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Key Audit Matter
RSBt EIE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KBt R ERR S E1E

Revenue Recognition

Wiy 2o FE BT

We focused on this area due to its financial significance
and high volume of transactions involved. As a result, a
significant amount of effort was spent on auditing this
area.

HAEMBEEURIRRER S BMEINZAE-
At HEPIRAKRSTEESNZ S E

4. We confirmed the balances of trade receivables with
selected customers, considering the significance of the
balances and the nature and characteristics of those
customers.
RMASCHERFBIRREZET EFEEIZ
EERERNEEMURE AR

5.  We tested sales transactions recorded before and
after the balance sheet date, on a sample basis, by
reconciling recognised revenue with the goods delivery
notes to assess whether revenue was recognised in the
correct reporting periods.
EMBanERINTHEREEE BHEAERE
EBEXRHAERENHERS IR ERSEN
ERRR S AR

Based on our audit procedures performed, we found that
the Group’s revenue recognised was supported by the
evidence that we obtained.
RIBRFFAAITHESRREF RAUFR > RABENEEX
7 EEEEINKE-
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AR 2 ETE

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Chan Chiu Kong, Edmond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2023
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

. = ==
ITEEEEER
As at 31 December
®+ZHA=+—H
2022 2021
S —E-—F
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
B 5% FET FET
ASSETS =13
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERZE 6 152,074 158,339
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 7 5,152 4,841
Intangible assets EREE 8 2,080 2,100
Long-term prepayments REAFEMIRRIE 13 1,301 2,718
Investment in an associate R—EBEQ[TZ
®E 10 4,174 4,702
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 164,781 172,700
Current assets RENEE
Inventories 78 12 140,527 101,648
Trade receivables FEUN B 5 BR 7R 13 33,990 32,164
Prepayments and other receivables A TRIE e B Ath FE LU
I 13 18,738 11,449
Amounts due from related parties EWEREALTRE  32(d) 126 1,442
Structured bank deposits EEMRITER 14 - 2,533
Pledged bank deposits RIRITER 14 - 1,075
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 14 47,810 66,136
Total current assets MENEEME 241,191 216,447
Total assets BEEHEE 405,972 389,147
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the KABHEE AEMN
Company 1
Share capital [N 15 15,228 15,228
Reserves i 16 276,260 286,561
291,488 301,789
Non-controlling interest JEIER RS 230 228
Total equity R ARRE 291,718 302,017
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mAEERFER

As at 31 December

w+=ZB=+—H
2022 2021
S —E-—F
Note Uss$‘000 Us$'000
B 5% F= FET
LIABILITIES I=RE
Non-current liabilities EREER
Bank borrowings RTEE 18 3,431 8,647
Lease liabilities HEESR 7 3,035 2,650
Deferred income tax liabilities IRIEFRISR AR 19 577 1,665
Retirement benefit obligations BAENEE 27 1,526 1,505
Total non-current liabilities ERBAEELLE 8,569 14,467
Current liabilities mENERE
Trade payables FET B ZBRFR 17 27,591 17,510
Accruals and other payables FEStER &
HE N FRIE 17 20,140 21,316
Amounts due to related parties FESEREALRIE  32(d) 149 517
Bank borrowings RITEE 18 56,190 31,661
Lease liabilities HEsE 7 443 369
Current income tax liabilities BNHRFR S M B E 1,172 1,290
Total current liabilities eI BEEEE 105,685 72,663
Total liabilities B{ELHEE 114,254 87,130
Total equity and liabilities EEKkaERE 405,972 389,147

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction it SEABREERMERIM S — 4
with the accompanying notes. R

The consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to 213 were #RE123E213BE Y S BEREENR S

approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2023 and were == -+—HEZEZESZHTHTHA
signed on its behalf. TRKREZ

Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang

iR AL A

Director Director

E2 EE
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Consolidated Income Statement

ralER
Year ended 31 December
HE+-_HA=+—HIEE
2022 2021
—E=Z —E-—F
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
B 5% FET FET
Revenue &= 5 451,007 382,361
Cost of sales tHE A 21 (407,658) (321,988)
Gross profit EF 43,349 60,373
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAX 21 (24,566) (23,121)
Administrative expenses THHRX 21 (22,118) (23,905)
Other gains- net Hihzm— 558 20 219 1,635
Operating (loss)/profit B (5B518) 5 (3,116) 14,982
Finance income AU A 398 569
Finance costs 7B N (951) (336)
Finance (costs)/income — net B (Zd) WA
— 3 EE 22 (553) 233
Share of post-tax loss of an associate EhE—REBE AR
FRINBEIE 10 (528) (201)
(Loss)/profit before income tax FRFrEM A (5i8)
it F (4,197) 15,014
Income tax expense R 23 (187) (3,982)
(Loss)/profit for the year EEE (BB1B) EF (4,384) 11,032
(Loss)/profit attributable to: UT&FHEMN (B18)
waF
Owners of the Company KABBEBA (4,386) 11,014
Non-controlling interest JEER S 2 18
(4,384) 11,032
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/ KATHEE AEMGL
profit attributable to the owners £E B8 Eiz
of the Company during the year =i (B8 B
(expressed in US cents per share) (A ZREEWHIR)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share SRES (518) B 25 (0.29) 0.72
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share SREE (58 B 25 (0.29) 0.72

Bl m REERARRME—HBE

i

The above consolidated income statement should be read in i
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERmR

Year ended 31 December

BE+-B=+—ALEE

2022 2021
—T—C BT —F
USs$°000 US$'000
FE7T TFE7T
(Loss)/profit for the year EEE (B51R) HF (4,384) 11,032
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hith2m (#5518 WA -
Item that may be reclassified to B EH R EEEm 2 EH
profit or loss
Currency translation differences BE R ERE (3,449) 907
Other comprehensive (loss)/income TEERREEMEZE (BEB)
for the year, net of tax A (3,449) 907
Total comprehensive (loss)/income TEEZ2M (FB58) WA LEEE
for the year (7,833) 11,939
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for UTRAEIEREERE (5Gig)
the year attributable to: WA 8%
— Owners of the Company —XRBEB A (7,835) 11,921
— Non-controlling interest — IR 2 18
Total comprehensive (loss)/income TEEZ2@E (F518) WAL
for the year (7,833) 11,939
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should — _E#tt 47 & & E U &% 2 FE & [5) 48 B8 0 5 —
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B8 o
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Consolida:ced Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEmEER

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAFEEAER
Non-
Share Share  Exchange Merger  Statutory  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interest Total equity

ke REE  EREE  AHEE  AERE  REERA @it FEREE  EDEE
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TEn TEn R TEn TEn TER TER TEn TEn

Balance at 1 January 2021 RZBZ-F-F—HZ

&R 15,228 47,358 9,876 79,994 828 147,776 301,060 210 301,270
Comprehensive income 2EHA
Profit for the year EEER - - - - - 11,014 11,014 18 11,032
Other comprehensive income Hit2EKRA
Currency translation differences ERER - - 907 - - - 907 - 907
Total comprehensive income 2ERALE - - 907 - - 11,014 11,921 18 11,939

Total transactions with owners BREAZERSE

Dividends (Note 24) &S (fzt24) - - - - - (11,192) (11,192) - (11,192)
Reallocation of statutory reserve E - - - - 46 (46) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2021 ZFZ-%+ZB=1+-H

Zmuiﬁ 15,228 47,358 10,783 79,994 874 147,552 301,789 228 302,017
Balance at 1 January 2022 RZEZZF-A-H

2R 15,228 47,358 10,783 79,994 874 147,552 301,789 228 302,017
Comprehensive loss 2EEHR
Loss for the year AEEBE - - - - - (4,386) (4,386) 2 (4,384)
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EHE
Currency translation differences EREE - - (3,449) - - - (3,449) - (3,449)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEGEEE - - (3,449) - - (4,386) (7,835) 2 (7,833)
Total transactions with owners BRBEAZERSE
Dividends (Note 24) RS (Hz24) - - - - - (2,466) (2,466) - (2,466)
Reallocation of statutory reserve ENNRATRE - - - - 2 (27) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2022 RZE-Z%+-B=1+-H

2EH 15,228 47,358 7,334 79,994 901 140,673 291,488 230 291,718

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be b ¥t 4% & # % & h 3% FE & [ 48 A B 55 — 4
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

m7l' == EE%/}ILE%E

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E-= ZEI—F
Note Us$°000 Us$'000
B 5 FE73 TEx
Cash flows from operating activities RETHEEZ
HEmE
Cash (used in)/generated from £% FrA) EEZ
operations Re 29(a) (22,257) 31,846
Interest paid [SEEIRS (1,122) (469)
Income taxes paid BENRER (1,335) (6,505)
Net cash (used in)/generated from &R (FRA)
operating activities EEZRE R (24,714) 24,872
Cash flows from investing activities REEFHEEZ
HEmeE
Purchases of property, plant and BEME BERKE
equipment (11,390) (11,393)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant Hj’iﬁf@ﬁ B K
and equipment BB REMIE 29(a) 20 77
Purchases of intangible assets BERTEE 8 (20) (17)
Proceeds from disposal of short-term HERBRITERRK
bank deposits and pledged bank BIEHIRITERZ
deposits FriSRIE 1,075 20,742
Proceeds from disposal of structured HEGEEMEIRITER
bank deposits ZFr3RIE 2,527 5,455
Proceeds from return on structured bank 3 45 M 84777 2K
deposits B3R 2 Fr{S 718 58 145
Interest received BUF S 393 569
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing R&E &8 (FrAR) /E4XZ
activities RERER (7,337) 15,578
Cash flows from financing activities MEEFHEEZ
HEmE
Dividends paid BFKRE 24 (2,466) (11,192)
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITEERERIE 29(b) 131,036 73,424
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITEE 29(b) (111,498) (79,487)
Principal elements of lease payment HEMRZAEID 29(b) (644) (375)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEBEE FrH) 2
financing activities H& 35 16,428 (17,630)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERREEEYW (L)
cash equivalents IR EE (15,623) 22,820
Cash and cash equivalents REVZRERIRESE
at beginning of year B 14 66,136 42,359
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash HEkREEEMZER
and cash equivalents (518) /Wi (2,703) 957
Cash and cash equivalents RERZHAERREE
at end of year B 14 47,810 66,136

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M EE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacture and sale of fermentation-based food additives,
biochemical products and cassava starch-based industrial
products including modified starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium
Glutamate ("MSG"), soda and glutamic acid (“GA"). The
products are sold to food distributors, international trading
companies, and manufacturers of food, paper, textiles, and
chemical products in Vietnam, other ASEAN member countries,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), Japan, Taiwan, and
several European countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
10008, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman KY1-
1001, Cayman Islands.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars ("US$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are
for the group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of non-current liabilities
and plan assets of defined benefit plan and the structured
bank deposits which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(@)  Amendments to standards and accounting
quidelines adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments
to standards and accounting guideline which are
mandatory for the Company for the first time for
the financial year beginning on 1 January 2022:

Annual improvements Annual improvements

project
(Amendments)

HKAS 16
(Amendments)

HKAS 37
(Amendments)

HKFRS 3
(Amendments)

HKFRS 16
(Amendments)

AG 5 (Revised)

to HKFRSs 2018-2020
(amendments)

Property, plant and
equipment: proceeds
before intended use

Onerous contracts — cost to
fulfilling a contract

Reference to conceptual
framework

Covid-19-related rent
concessions beyond 2021

Revised accounting
guideline 5 merger
accounting for common
control combinations

The adoption of the above amendments to
standards and accounting guideline did not have
any material impact on the current period or any
prior periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERFETHHREE (@)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

early adopted.

2.1 REUEE (B)
The following new standards, amendments to (b)
standards, interpretation and practice statement
(together refers as “Amendments”) have been
issued, but are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2022 and have not been

NTFAEBEMERZ-ZT
F-RB—BRRBZHMBEE
B R ER > TR AT IR Z 3
FEQERZETT R RER
EERZER (BAMERTE) -

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
RTIBEERZERE
ZEEHRBER

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 (Amendments)

ERGHERSE 1K

ERMBRESERFEER

258 (BET )
HKAS 8 (Amendments)

BB G ERIEE (BFT4)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

ERGEERE129 (BFT40)

HKFRS17

BARAMBRESENE 7R

HKFRS17 (Amendments)

ERMBREENE17R
(EET %)

HKFRS17 (Amendments)

ERBMBHREERB 1798
(EFT %)

Disclosure of accounting policies
(amendments)
B BURIRE (BT )

Definition of accounting estimates
(amendments)

Bt ER (BETA)

Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single
transaction (amendments)

FREE—XRZNEEREEREZ
HERRIEFRIE (IBET4)

Insurance contracts

REEL

Amendments to HKFRS 17

ERUVBREENE 17 (B5T40)

Initial application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — comparative information

BREMNE BV BRESENBE TR
BEEMBREENFOR—LRER

1 January 2023

—E_=%F—HF—H

1 January 2023

—E”_=F—8A—H
1 January 2023

—_E”_=%—H—H
1 January 2023
—E=F—H—H
1 January 2023
—E=F—HF—H

1 January 2023

—E”_=F—8A—H
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

The following new standards, amendments to
standards, interpretation and practice statement
(together refers as “Amendments”) have been
issued, but are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2022 and have not been
early adopted. (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M SE

2

RRBERTEGHHRBE (B)

2.1 REEE (B
b)) UTAHABEGER-ZTZCZ
F—B—BHBZzHMBREE
iR E R TRE IR BT 2 B
HEANERZETEA RER
ERAR (HREAMERTZ) o
€=

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
RTIBEERZEBRAE
ZEEHRBENR

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

EAGHERE IS (BFTE)
HKAS 1 (Amendments)

SR GEAFE IR (BFTA)
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

ERAUBHREERNF 1637
(CHEN)
HK Int 5 (Revised)

ERRBEST (BFT4)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

ERMBHRSENB 109K
ER G 2R 552858
(5T )

Classification of liabilities as current or
non-current (amendments)

BEBESBARIERE (BET4)

Non-current liabilities with covenants
(amendments)

WA RENIETRB AR (B5T40)

Lease liability in a sale and leaseback
(amendments)

ERMARNBEERR BTH)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)
presentation of financial statements
— classification by the borrower of a
term loan that contains a repayment on
demand clause (HK Int 5 (Revised))

BEHEREEST (BT MBHRERZ
2 - REEAHEBIREREEBKRX
ZEHERZDE (BEBREESHR

(1&5T4))

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint
venture (amendments)

REEHREBMERTRNGERE BN
BEHESHTE (BTAH)

1 January 2024

—_ZE”-_WmHE—HF—H
1 January 2024

—E_NMF—A—H
1 January 2024

—EmMFE—-—A—H

1 January 2024

—E_WE—HB—H

To be determined

FEE

The directors of the Company have assessed the
financial impact on the Group of the adoption of
the above Amendments. There are no Amendments
that are not yet effective and that would be
expected to have a material impact on the Group
in the future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions. The Group intends to adopt the
Amendments when they become effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUEERTEGHHREE (B
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 AHEAMESET
2.2.1 Business combinations 22.1 EBEH
The acquisition method of accounting is used to AEBRBWESS AR
account for all business combinations, regardless BEEASHAR mMARmKE
of whether equity instruments or other assets are AT A EMEE pUKEE
acquired. The consideration transferred for the — B AT ERNAE
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the: BiE:
e fair values of the assets transferred . e R 8 ENATE
o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the . WU BRI ER AP
acquired business EENEE
. equity interests issued by the Group . AEBCEITRE
. fair value of any asset or liability resulting . RARBLHELENE
from a contingent consideration arrangement, MEEXEBENAF
and B &
e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in o MBARMEMERIFEE
the subsidiary. HEENAFEE-
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and i 2T S B B P W B8 /Y T o8
contingent liabilities assumed in a business NEEKRFAZENEBERR
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured RERE YFRKEBBRNR
initially at their fair values at the acquisition TEStE o D EBIINE LR
date. The Group recognises any non-controlling Gh o AN EE B IR YR (B A1) Uk B B 25
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by- BAFERIEEREREMN
acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non- WHEERTHNEEZE
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the ML IR R B E RN
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets. ERIFEER S o
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. U BEMERAR AN TR E L R SR 8 o
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AR E MR R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERFETHEHREE (@)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 EHEMNFMESEG (@)

(continued)

2.2.1 Business combinations (continued) 2.2.1 EFEEH (#B)
The excess of the: BHTIEE:
0 consideration transferred, . Fregse &
e amount of any non-controlling interest in the o RBWEERNEMIE
acquired entity, and EREGEEE &
0 acquisition-date fair value of any previous . BEMSHKEEREN

E fry B #E W 8 B HR Y

equity interest in the acquired entity over

the fair value of the net identifiable assets N BB W P U RS Ol
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those MNEESEAFEZE
amounts are less than the fair value of the net DEABEAKR MZ
identifiable assets of the business acquired, EEBRENRMUEER
the difference is recognised directly in profit NA#HNEESRENA

TE RAEMEZERKE
BEREZAREAEE
BE-

or loss as a bargain purchase.

HIERE D RERBELES
B HEREEMZHRMEERR
AENRE -FIAMBEXEZ
EREMNEEERAR BIRE
BENERRAFE B
EEREFESRBMERDN

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an

independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUEERTEGHHREE (B
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 AHEMNFMESEG (@)
(continued)
2.2.2 Subsidiaries 222 B A
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured WEARAXERHEESR
entities) over which the Group has control. The BRI ER (BEEHE
Group controls an entity where the group is HER) MAERERIEN
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from FE2HEEBEBZUERIHRE
its involvement with the entity and has the ability MR R #ER > U rTERHEE N
to affect those returns through its power to direct FEZERNEIUALESR
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully R e BN BREFER TS
consolidated from the date on which control is HoMEBAR B HEH R
transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated FTHAEEEHRZERAS
from the date that control ceases. R IR R & IEERELE

AR

The acquisition method of accounting is used to AEBRBWESHERE
account for business combinations by the Group. BEHARC

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised REBRZ  ERRERAR
gains on transactions between group companies BB 2 ARERKEHETF
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated Hif-MRIFBRARZIRECE
unless the transaction provides evidence of an EEELRAEZEE T
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting RERBETEHE - WEA
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where AZEHBEECRMERE
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies B URARRFENEEFIRM
adopted by the Group. ZHEKo

Non-controlling interests in the results and MEABSEERERPIE
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in ERERDINREGEERER
the consolidated income statement, statement of TEHKER ETREHRRE
comprehensive income, statement of changes in EBERPERE-

equity and balance sheet respectively.

2.2.3 Associates 223 BERE
Associates are all entities over which the Group BEABIEMAERNEERSEH
has significant influence but not control or joint BEEAXENEEESIER
control. This is generally the case where the Group HEAEHEZ2EBR-BEE
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. EEFE20%E50%KRERE
Investments in associates are accounted for using g IR EER R T %
the equity method of accounting (see (iii) below), RAEERE REEA AT &
after initially being recognised at cost. BEMEEgsE (BT i)
NN
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AR E MR R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUEERTEGHHRBE (B
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 EHEMNFMESEG (@)
(continued)
2.2.4 Equity method 2.2.4 %
Under the equity method of accounting, the REEDZGHE BEVNLT U
investments are initially recognised at cost and RASFER > HEB&RARBUNIE
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share mABRAERDHERE
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the FRUEEBREN S W
investee in profit or loss, and the Group's share HM2EBRARNBEDENEER
of movements in other comprehensive income DEREEFEME2AEAKA
of the investee in other comprehensive income. &S - BB E AT
Dividends received or receivable from associates are HREHIBAREREEN
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of o

the investment.

Where the Group's share of losses in an equity- MAEEEGEEZARKE
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest ZEEERABEENRZE
in the entity, including any other unsecured long- Bzi#n SETEEMEIR
term receivables, the Group does not recognise HRIABKHIE  ZEETRE
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or RiE—P R BRIEEHER
made payments on behalf of the other entity. HMBRAESEHEL M
o

Unrealised gains on transactions between the AEBEEBMEATZEN
group and its associates are eliminated to the RERXZWRERAERT
extent of the Group's interest in these entities. ZEBRNERD T UEE
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the FERRBRECHEESE
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of HIRREZEE TRIRER
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity- BB TR T LA 8 o 2R A BRAR
accounted investees have been changed where RELFZEHBEERHKE
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies RIS UREGRATEAEEF
adopted by the Group. BRAN Z BUE ©

The Group determines at each reporting date FEERSREAHEER
whether there is any objective evidence that the BERAFZREESTEREM
investment in the associate is impaired. If this EHAERE METRESE
is the case, the Group calculates the amount B AEEGEEE AT
of impairment as the difference between the CleEEHREEZEZ5E
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying BRESH IREERmER
value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share L — RS R RRE
of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the consolidated BB R ERERE

income statement.
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AR E MR R M EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3

2.4

2.5

Separate financial statements of the Company
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in
consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's net
assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors of the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

2

RRBERTEGHHRBE (B)

2.3

2.4

2.5

AT ZBIUMBIRER

RE QB ZRERZR AR ES]
BRoMAEFHAE  URBEHK
AREEITIMEEZREEF B
AT BEEREEGZREMSE
BRRZEEHEIRBHEBEWRRE
W B EEARR

HIREBBMBABDETEIRREH
B2 2EWARE HHBILHEH
BERAKREZREAEBERRKRES
ZREE (BERE RRESHHR
RZREE AERBRMERR
ZREWRKREREERKREET
AR -

DEBER S
EENMZERAXNARMTER
EERREZABE2R —NK-8F
DEERMEEEDMERZE
BEERRECERNATEER
TEZ-

MBI

(a) WEERZHENE
FEBBBERZMBRERAR
BEZER DRZIBEBEL
EECEERERREZEE
(TThEEE®)) st RERM
BREUEQABDZINESR
REEEZE2REBETE
Bl e
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AR E MR R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERFETHEHREE (@)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
2.5 SMEE ()

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)  Transactions and balances b) XZRAEE
Foreign currency transactions are translated into SINERBHEARRT SR E
the functional currency using the exchange rates EEEZHEEBHZRITE
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or EMERNEGE A L3
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign SEEREFEEREERZH]IY
exchange gains and losses resulting from the SNEHEZEREERERA
settlement of such transactions and from the MES ZINEWEHEE > 5
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary RixE R R AT R
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign HARIEEFASERRER
currencies are recognised in the consolidated ENHAIAKREERFREN
income statement, except when deferred in equity BRI o
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.
All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented FIEEREBEASRER
in the consolidated income statement within ‘other AR TE M — B8 R 2
gains — net’. Flo

(c)  Group companies (c) HEEFERF

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

FEERAER (HPILEE
HEREFERRBREZRE
BRZE® NIFAHRERE
WA —HZBEER HEE
M BRI UT 5 A
HREREE:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet - BEEEABBERZEE
presented are translated at the closing rate at REaBARBRZEES
the date of that balance sheet; EREEHAZHNTHER

e ;

- income and expenses for each income - BEHRERZWAKRE

statement are translated at average exchange HEERBITHEXIR

rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of

BoBRIFIETFIHERR
REREMRIRER S H

the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, ZRITEERMBRZER
in which case income and expenses are B ARBRTS5H
translated at the rate on the dates of the ZERTELZEWRATM
transactions); and 52 4
- all resulting exchange differences are - FELZFEESER
recognised in other comprehensive income. HEHEMEE KA FRE
= o

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

— Properties 15-50 years
— Plant and machinery 10-20 years
— Motor vehicles 5-8 years
- Office equipment 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘other gains — net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.

2

RRBERTEGHHRBE (B)

2.6

ME - -BERRE
ME -BERRHE (ERIRZRIMN
B E LA R T ITE R R
BEERIR - ELERFTBEERER
RBEENHX -

REFREEAMZRKEER
HAREERARER  BEEF 5
SFEEBZAAR FERERZ
A ABEEZREENER R
—BBYEE WMER) - MEEHk
BEE MBS ONKREmEDRHE
BDoFTEHMEERREERER 13
REEZVEHABA  RiGalaE
KA -

ME-BERXEBEHFEDIRE
MEAEHGS I ERFRRAERE
DEEEFFEESE HIWT:

— W 15-504F
— R B R 1 25 10-204F
! 5-84F
—MAERE 5-84F

BEZFGREERAIERAFEHIN
BREVRTFUBSHARAE (A
A e

i) & 7 AR T (B 3R i 51 B9 T Uk [0l R 28
R RIE Z B9 IR E (B 1 32 2 4
HEHEAREIRER (i5E2.8) ©

HEZREBHEBRASRERER
EEMFIEBRMEE LI AKFE
mARAERD AT H MRS B -

ERIBEERTHEFREEN
BASZH  URARRREBR
ANR-ERIBFEIFE-
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AR E MR R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUEERTEGHHRBE (B
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.7 Intangible assets 27 EBREE
(a)  Goodwill (a) HE
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries BERKERBARRES
represents the excess of the consideration TWEPrE R E R RUEES
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling ZAERIEER #E m U KA
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair RIS A 2 IR AR &= 7 I
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree BHHEZRAFEBHETWE
over the fair value of the identified net assets HNERNEEFEQAFEZ
acquired. g
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill BHETHREINS REBES
acquired in a business combination is allocated HhkE2EENDSEETR
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), HZEREHBERNEZE
or groups of CGUs, expected to benefit from the BEREEN (THRIREE
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of fii)) EBERE B AR - &
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents EoimE BN —HE
the lowest level within the entity at which the ABRMANEIEERE
goodwill is monitored for internal management By RBEE@D BERKED
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating HEmETER-
segment level.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken HmESFETRERS  TF
annually or more frequently if events or changes RESHLRABERNERE
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. A S IR ER (EH EE
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the Bigst o mEREEREATWE
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value SR BAIERABEAATER
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any HERAZESE) (ELE&K-
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense ERERNRERARST B
and is not subsequently reversed. HBAg#E -
(b)  Trademarks and license (b) BEIERIERE
Separately acquired trademarks and the license, EEREAFRAFHZEIL
which have finite useful lives, are carried at cost B 2 B AR R KR R ¥R AR AN R
less accumulated amortisation and impairment REMBHEAREBEAR#
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight- HILFBEGEHE UEE
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and BRIBBEREARBESERE
license over their estimated useful lives of 6 to 10 +EEE A FERAFIRARNET
years. paNioh
(c)  Computer software (c) EBEeEH

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss, and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

They are included in current assets, except for
amounts that are settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
comprise trade and other receivables (Note 2.11),
amounts due from related parties, short-term bank
deposits and pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents (Note 2.12) in the consolidated
balance sheet. The Group’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss comprise structured
bank deposits.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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e HEBERBRATESAER
ZHBEE K

o IHHMIHMAFEZME
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AR E MR R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERFETHEHREE (@)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.9 Financial assets (continued) 29 MBEE (@)

2.9.2 Recognition and derecognition 2.9.2 R RAZIFFESE

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

2.9.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss ("FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset.

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at
amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest
income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest
rate method.

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains/(losses) in
the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.9

Financial assets (continued)

2.9.4 Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instrument carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. Note 3.1(b) details how the Group
determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

For other receivables and deposits carried at
amortised cost, the Group adopt three-stages
approach to assess the impairment. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

When measuring expected credit loss, the Group
considers historical default rate, current market
condition and forward-looking information.

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Consumables are included within inventories and stated
at cost, using the weighted average method.

2
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AR E MR R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.16

2.17

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowings costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the year is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(a)  Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, its subsidiaries and associate
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERFETHEHREE (@)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.17 EHRIEIEFREH (&)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

RREBERTEGHHRBE (B)

2.18 Employee benefits (continued) 2.18 BERH (&

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related pension obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of a defined benefit plan,
recognised in the consolidated income statement in
employee benefit expense, except where included
in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee
service in the current year, benefit changes,
curtailments and settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.19

2.20

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs, and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue and other income recognition

(a)  Sales of goods
Sales are recognised when control of the product
has transferred, being when the product are
delivered, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
product. The risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer upon delivery or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the
price specified in the sales contracts. No element of
financing is deemed present as the sales are made
with a credit term from cash on delivery to 60 days,
which is consistent with market practice.

Receivable is recognised when the product is
delivered as this is the point in time when the
consideration is unconditional, which only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.20 Revenue and other income recognition (continued)

2.21

(a)  Sales of goods (continued)
Contract liabilities
Contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposits or
payments received in advance for sales of goods not
yet delivered to customers. Revenue is recognised
when goods are delivered to customers.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(c)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on
a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the fixed payments.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
2.21 Leases (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

J where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third

party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,

country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability

for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the

following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease

liability; and

o any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a

straight-line basis.

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to
use the land on which various plants and buildings are
situated for 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of

leases.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases
of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office

furniture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.22

2.23

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividends proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate. If the grants do
not relate to any specific expenditure incurred and all
attached condition were complied by the Group, they
are recognised under “other gains — net” in consolidated
income statement upon receipt of the grants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group's operating units. The board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

(@) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates internationally with most
of the transactions denominated in US$,
Vietnam Dong and Renminbi. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily
through future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations that
are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the operating
subsidiaries of the Group. The Group does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management of the Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

0]

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2022, for the Group's
subsidiaries whose functional currency is
Us$, if the Vietnam Dong had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the US$ with all
other variables held constant, post-tax loss
(2021: post tax profit) for the year would
have been US$750,000 higher/lower (2021:
US$1,362,000 lower/higher) , mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other payables denominated in Vietnam
Dong.

At 31 December 2022, for the Group'’s
subsidiaries whose functional currency is
Renminbi, if the US$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the Renminbi with
all other variables held constant, post-tax loss
(2021: post tax profit) for the year would have
been US$4,000 higher/lower (2021:U5$2,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of cash
and cash equivalents denominated in US$.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group
exposure to interest rate risk related
primarily to variable rate bank borrowings
of US$59,621,000 (2021: variable rate bank
borrowings of US$35,314,000 and fixed rate
bank borrowings of US$4,994,000).

Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk,
and borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. As
the tenure of the fixed-rate bank borrowings
range from one to two years, the directors
consider the exposures of present value
interest rate return to be insignificant. The
Group does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, management of the Group
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2022, if interest rates on
variable rate borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, post-tax loss (2021: post
tax profit) for the year would have been
US$253,000 higher/lower (2021: US$150,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on these borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, other receivables and
amounts due from related parties.

(b)

)

(if)

Risk management

The carrying amount of bank deposits and
bank balances, trade receivables, other
receivables and amounts due from related
parties included in the consolidated balance
sheet represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to these
financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers
with appropriate credit histories. The Group
has policies to assess the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.

For bank deposits and bank balances,
the Group only uses banks and financial
institutions with good reputation. As at
31 December 2022 and 2021, all the bank
balances as detailed in Note 14 are held in
major financial institutions, which are either
state owned or with high credit quality.
Management believes that the credit risk for
bank deposits and bank balances is minimal.

Impairment of financial assets

While structured bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits, pledged bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected losses for all trade
receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 45% (2021:
40%) of its trade receivables were the
five (2021: five) largest trade receivables,
which are mainly reputable corporations.
Considering the track record of regular
repayment of trade receivables based on
the Group's experience with respect to the
collection of these receivables, the directors
are of the opinion that the risk of default by
these customers is not material.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that the
sales of goods are made to customers
with appropriate credit history and the
Group performs credit evaluations of these
counterparties and customers. The credit
periods of the majority of these trade
receivables are within 60 days and largely
comprise amounts receivable from business
customers. Given the track record of regular
repayment of receivables from customers, the
directors are of the opinion that the risk of
default by customers is not significant.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(if)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 36 months before 31 December 2022
and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. The
Group has identified the GDP in which it sells
its goods and services to be the most relevant
factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical
loss rates based on expected changes in these
factors.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 WMBEAREE (@
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBAMREZR (&)
(b)  Credit risk (continued) b) EFERE (#)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) iy HMHEEEZHE (@
Trade receivables (continued) FEWRE ZERFR (58)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 FHEEEELE RIE
December 2022 and 2021 was determined T TERZIEZ—
as follows for both trade receivables and +ZB=+—HZERK
contract assets: BEERAKRENEEZ
EEEBEBEDETCWT
More than
1-180 days  181-360 days 360 days
Current past due past due past due Total
k.- ki i1 k-
31 December 2022 +-B=+-H EPHR 1£180H 1813608 83608 At
Expected loss rate BHEEE 0% 0.75% 3.54% 100%
Gross carrying amount MEREE
- trade receivables (US$'000)  —EIRE BERH
(F£7) 30,872 2,812 339 356 34,379
Loss allowance (US$'000) BREE (T2 - 21 12 356 389
More than
1-180 days ~ 181-360 days 360 days
Current past due past due past due Total
—EC-F it ki ki
31 December 2021 +ZA=+-H BNE 1£1808  181E360H Ei8360H At
Expected loss rate BHERE 0.01% 066%  NATEH 100%
Gross carrying amount MREE
- trade receivables (US$'000) —FEWE BIR
(F£7) 30,501 1,677 - 309 32,487
Loss allowance (US$'000) BEEE (TET) 3 11 - 309 323
As at 31 December 2022, the loss allowances WZE2EZZHEA+Z
for trade receivables were US$389,000 (2021: B=+—H EWRE
US$323,000). Management are of opinion SRR ZEBEEREBES
that that adequate provision for uncollectible 389,000% 7T (Z&E T —
receivable has been made. £ 1 323,000E7T) o &

ERRAEMEAND
Z FERRIE 1F 8 50 5

fio
Impairment losses on trade receivables are FEUWL B 5 BR R 2 R B A5
presented as net impairment losses within RS REA P LURE
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of BIEEFEEY -HBW
amounts previously written off are credited BB M EE 2 RIEEt A
against the same line item. MEEIEE -
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other receivables and amounts due from
related parties
The management considers that its credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition with reference to the counterparty
historical default rate and current financial
position. The impairment provision is
determined based on the 12-month expected
credit losses and is minimal.

Liquidity risk
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3 MBEAKRERE @

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBAMREZR (&)
(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (c) TEEZREE (&)
The table below analyses the Group's financial T RERGEEHESHNE
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based MBsGRTHESEAERZM
on the remaining period at the balance sheet BEESAEMIEAARE
date to the contractual maturity date. The TR -NEREPIEBEZEEE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BENRBRIRERE
undiscounted cash flows.
Less than Between Between

Tyear 1and2years 2and5years Over5 years Total

£ —EERE WEELE BRLE At

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

SE FEn SEH e TEn
At 31 December 2022 AZEZCF

+ZR=1+-H
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE (5 58,228 1,519 2,213 - 61,960
Lease liabilties (Note) HEaE () 554 463 1,303 1,735 4,055
Trade payables 3l 21,591 - - - 21,591
Other payables and accruals ~ EftFE{IHBREHER 8,878 - - - 8,878
Amounts due to related parties FE{d7 RIE A THIE 149 - - - 149
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ-F
+ZA=1+-H
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE (3 32,041 5,300 3,541 - 40,882
Lease liabilities (Note) BE&E () 454 380 1,130 1,765 3,729
Trade payables EREZERR 17,510 - - - 17,510
Other payables and accruals ~ Efti I FIBRE: E 5,759 - - - 5,759
Amounts due to related parties FE{37E RIE A TFIE 517 - - - 517
Note: P -
The balances include interest payable on bank borrowings ERGERBIEEEZSIABERMIE
and lease liabilities up to their respective maturities. TERERIEEBERGZFIE
3.2 Capital management 3.2 BXER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBRAKMEE @
3.2 Capital management (continued) 3.2 BXREE (@)
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group HERNHEMRAT K AEBEUE
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This EBALEERAEEERE R ZLE
ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by owners’ ERIGEEEERBERMINZEEE
equity as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. Total BRUERE AATE - REEEE
borrowings include bank borrowings and lease liabilities. RITEERHEEARE
During 2022, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged RIS ZTHE KAEBEZKREKHAT
from 2021, was to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio. ST —FMMIRMEER B0 Th i
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were FEEABLEERAEKFE R
as follows: TECEFER-E-_—%+—-8
=+—HBZEESGLEDT
2022 2021
S —E-—F
USs$’000 US$'000
F=T FEx
Total borrowings HWEE 63,099 43,327
Owners’ equity (including non- EE A#ELE (B1EFIA
controlling interest in equity) oz EERER 291,718 302,017
Gearing ratio BEEAMBL=X 21.6% 14.3%
The gearing ratio increased from 14.3% to 21.6% as HAEERMEMSERIEM BE
a result of increase in borrowings for purchasing raw BELEERI43I% EFAE21.6%C
materials.
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEME

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
structured bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
amounts due to related parties and trade and other
payables are assumed to approximate their fair values
because of their short maturities.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed

MBREERE (8
3.3 AFEMGE (@

() R FEER
FEHABEENMBRERA
BATERINGTENTH
T EM AT ER LA B
Reftist o 21T HEE R FEFR
AEABBHAESER &
EEREHEMRERES
MIASER=EE®-

under the accounting standards.

Level 2
- 114
Us$'000
TET
Recurring fair value measurements BEMNFEE
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZHE+ZB=+—H
Financial assets MBEEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEStABENMBEE
profit or loss _
Recurring fair value measurements BEMERNFEFE
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ_—%+"A=+—H
Financial assets MBEEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEEStABENHMBTEE
profit or loss 2,533
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
There were no transfers among different levels of fair
values measurement during the year.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.
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AT R R M 5E

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Estimated useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. The estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charges where useful lives are different from those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives and actual residual values
may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and residual
values and therefore depreciation expense in future
periods.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2.8. For the purposes of impairment
reviews, the recoverable amount of goodwill is
determined based on the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal or value in use calculations. The recoverable
amount calculations primarily use cash flow forecast
based on financial budgets and forecasts covering a
period of five years approved by management and the
estimated terminal value at the end of the forecast
period.

There are a number of assumptions and estimates
involved in the preparation of cash flow forecast for
the period covered by the approved budgets. Key
assumptions include the growth rates and discount
rates to reflect the risks involved. Management prepares
the financial budgets and forecasts reflecting actual
and prior year performance and market development
expectations. Judgement is required to determine key
assumptions adopted in cash flow forecasts and changes
to key assumptions could affect these cash flow forecasts
and therefore the results of the impairment reviews. For
details, see Note 8.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of financial assets

The loss allowance for financial assets is based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’'s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.

Net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories
is written down to net realisable value when there is
objective evidence that the cost of inventories may not be
recoverable. The amount written off to profit or loss is the
difference between the carrying value and net realisable
value of the inventories. In determining whether the cost
of inventories can be recovered, significant judgements
are required. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
and the means by which the amount will be recovered.
These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of selling products
of a similar nature. It could change significantly as a
result of changes in customer preference and competitor
actions in response to market conditions.

4

BEE

(c)

(d)

etk Et Ry (48

MBEEZLERE
MHBEEZBREGEDENEEY
Bk BB ERRRMEL -
ERFAEEARSBREMRZBE
LR~ WA T H T U K AT B 1%
O AEETEFHZERRRERE
BEMAEZHARBEREHRAH
- ARETERKAAMAZHAR
BRSFIEIRER M3 -

FEZASREE
FEUMAETERFEMENR
BEAR AR FERNREEE
BBy 5t &S B 7T R 5t A &
HEMBNGEAREABE -BEES
BREBRATTFEMRKAERERE
B > 17 B A A U = R 23R 0F
BE-WEERDZEERAFERE
BERAUESRFEZEZH - NEERF
ERlARESKREIRAEFHERH
B o B {EH X FI BBy > AEE F 5T
(8 R ikE £ R 2 BR &
HEKRAAEFAR -ZFM-FHIR
BRIOTSRAKETHEREE
mZEEMEL -HEFSHFRE
R 5 5 3 (R 8 3 7 35 K050 T R AR
AT AZREFGLFIEHEE
REH -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors collectively. The Executive Directors
review the Group’s policies and information for the purposes
of assessing performance and allocating resources. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has been operating
in one single business segment, i.e. the manufacture and sale
of fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products
and cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, MSG, GA and others (2021: same).

DEPEF
FTEEERRECHTARBANITE
B RITESEBRAEEAZBERER
ARZRARSBEER - BEZT -
+ZA=t—HIEEE AEELE—E
B-¥EN% MAUSEREERBERT
ME - EERRAZERMIEXER &
FEERD BEHERE KB 8B Kk
Hth (ZBEZ—F : BR) -

(a) Revenue (a) Uk
2022 2021
—E=Z —_E-—F
Us$’000 Us$'000
F= F=T
Sales of goods HEEGY 451,007 382,361

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The Group receives payments from certain customers
in advance of the performance under the contracts.
The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities.

MEH BB 2 W
FEERBTENRBRETER
2R FRETN AR S HE
Rzl EEaNaEZEE
RE-

2022 2021
g —_=E_"_—
Us$’000 US$'000
FET FE7T
Revenue recognised that was AR &N EEL
included in the contract liabilities Bl E
balance at the beginning of the
year 5,885 4,230

During the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue of
approximately US$53,734,000 (2021: US$41,509,000) is
derived from a single external customer located in Japan.
The revenue is attributable to MSG/GA products.

All contracts are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated
to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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AR E MR R M EE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

(b)

)]

Revenue (Continued)
The Group's revenue by geographical location, which is
determined by the geographical presence of customers, is

as follows:

SEBEH (8

(a)

Wzt (48)

REFEBHMIBUE (AERAMIEQ

BARE) Bz T ¢

2022 2021

—E-C B —F

US$'000 US$'000

F=ET FE=T

Vietnam [2qe] 194,999 169,363

Japan H4s 83,083 62,832

The PRC AR 62,663 63,447
ASEAN member countries (other than HERER (FEE#E)

Vietnam) 35,991 29,067
America EH 36,256 26,132
Other regions Hihith&@ 38,015 31,520

451,007 382,361

Non-current assets, other than prepayments, by location,
which is determined by the country in which the asset is

(b)

RUE (HEBEFREEZURE 82

ZIERBEE FBMNRERIN W

located, are as follows: T
2022 2021
—E-CF B4
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx TET
Vietnam HE 153,038 158,693
The PRC FE 10,422 11,287
Cambodia RIBE - 2
Total &5t 163,480 169,982
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 NME- -BERSERE
Construction- Plant and Motor Office
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles equipment Total
HEIR mE 5 R 28 RE WAZRE Eh
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FE7 FER FER FER FER FER
At 1 January 2021 ®ZZ-—-%-B-H
Cost A 53,726 110,337 471,343 10,015 20,410 665,831
Accumulated depreciation RetiE - (81,511) (388,517) (7,791) (18,424) (496,243)
Accumulated impairment ZEtHE - (1,214) (3,757) - (22) (4,993)
Net book amount REFE 53,726 27,612 79,069 2,224 1,964 164,595
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE_E-_-5+-A=+-H
LLEE
Opening net book amount FRAZE 53,726 27,612 79,069 2,224 1,964 164,595
Additions RE 9,461 16 1,334 280 305 11,396
Transfer oE (4,107) 131 3,784 - 53 (139)
Disposals (Note 29) HE (329) - - (5) (22) (3) (30)
Depreciation (Note 21) e (MEk21) - (2,791) (13,878) (545) (465) (17,679)
Exchange differences ERER - 140 53 3 - 196
Closing net book amount FREEFE 59,080 25,108 70,357 1,940 1,854 158,339
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-&5+-B=+—-H
Cost HA 59,080 110,728 471,743 10,043 20,756 672,350
Accumulated depreciation RINE - (84,406) (397,629) (8,103) (18,880) (509,018)
Accumulated impairment REtHE - (1,214) (3,757) - (22) (4,993)
Net book amount REZE 59,080 25,108 70,357 1,940 1,854 158,339
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-F--E+-B=1+-H
I35
Opening net book amount ENREFE 59,080 25,108 70,357 1,940 1,854 158,339
Additions RE 10,425 39 1,803 646 232 13,145
Transfer =1 (11,065) 3,284 7,378 268 135 -
Disposals (Note 29) HE (H529) - 3) (34) (19) - (56)
Depreciation (Note 21) 78 (fist21) - (2,887) (13,849) (548) (462) (17,746)
Written-off bz} (895) - - - - (895)
Exchange differences ERERE - (487) (178) (33) (15) (713)
Closing net book amount FREAFE 57,545 25,054 65,477 2,254 1,744 152,074
At 31 December 2022 RZE2ZZ¥+ZA=+-H
Cost HA 57,545 113,156 477,869 10,420 20,990 679,980
Accumulated depreciation RIHNE - (86,888) (408,635) (8,166) (19,224) (522,913)
Accumulated impairment RetHE - (1,214) (3,757) - (22) (4,993)
Net book amount REZE 57,545 25,054 65,477 2,254 1,744 152,074
Depreciation expense of US$16,650,000 (2021: US$16,905,000) ERME16,650,000E 7T (ZE-—4F
has been charged in cost of sales, US$624,000 (2021: 16,905,000%7T) ~624,000FE 7T (ZF
US$292,000) in selling and distribution expenses and ——%:292,000%E 7T) K472,000E 7T (Z
US$472,000 (2021: US$482,000) in administrative expenses. T —4:482,000E7T) BERRIHAHE
A HERDHEBESZ U RITERES
During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs FR AEBRCHREERBEEERLEE
amounting to US$275,000 (2021: US$225,000) on qualifying M 4275,000% 7% (ZFZ—4% : 225,000
assets. %) °
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 6

As at 31 December 2022, certain buildings with carrying
amount of US$3,224,000 (2021: US$3,603,000), were pledged
as collaterals for the Group's bank borrowings of US$1,005,000
(2021: US$784,000) (Note 18).

7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 7
(i) Amount recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

ME - -BERSER (B
RIE-_—_&#+-BA=+—H REEA
3,224,000% 7T (ZEZ—4F : 3,603,000
E) NETEFERFAXNEERITE
#X1,005,000FE T (ZEZ—4 : 784,000
=7T) Bk (PsE18) ©

EREEERHEEAR
() REEEEARREINZE

REEERERYIIUTREAESR
RABYEER

2022 2021
—E2- -

us$’000 Us$'000

FET FE=7

Land use rights 4 shfE A 3,784 3,335

Building g 1,359 1,498

Equipment B 9 8

Total right-of-use assets FREEEHEEE 5,152 4,841

Current lease liabilities mEMHEEaR 443 369

Non-current lease liabilities EREBEEER 3,035 2,650

Total lease liabilities HEaEHESE 3,478 3,019
Movement of right of use assets for the year: FAFEHEEENEE

2022 2021

—E-CHF B %

Us$’000 Us$'000

F=T FEr

At 1 January w—A—H 4,841 4,914

Additions for the year FRARE 583 376

Termination of contract during the year £ R IE &4 (49) (86)

Lease modification HEE:] 481 -

Amortisation of right-of-use assets FRESERH (549) (405)

Exchange differences ERZ%E (155) 42

At 31 December ®W+ZA=+—H 5,152 4,841
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7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 7
(continued)

(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement
The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

EREEERBEEGRE (&)

(i)

REZEREREDHEER

FERmEAEIUTRAEEHAN
TER

2022 2021
=g T —F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T F=Ex
Amortisation charged of right-of-use £ #EE EM B
assets: iy
Land use rights o st {5 AR A 401 271
Building BF 148 134
549 405
Interest expense (included in MEMZ GTAMBZEL)
finance cost) 104 92
Expense relating to short-term leases E25EHRTE E BRI
(included in cost of goods sold and GtABBEEmB A K
administrative expenses) TEREX) 75 47

The total cash outflow for leases, including payment for
short-term leases, for the year ended 31 December 2022
was US$719,000 (2021: US$422,000).
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FAFSER R M 5E

4 A
117 O =

7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES
(continued)

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are

accounted for
The land use rights of the Group are located in the PRC
and Vietnam.

Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Vedan”) and
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan”),
subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC, have
each been granted rights to use two lands in the PRC by
the relevant authority for 50 years, which will expire in
2042 and 2060, respectively.

Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited, a
subsidiary established and operating in Vietnam, has
obtained the rights to use certain lands in Vietnam by the
relevant authority for 43 to 50 years, which will expire in
2041.

Rental contract for building is made for a fixed period of
10 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

7

ERERERBEEGR (&)

(i) FEEMNEEEHRARBEEZS

ZHE
2 & [ B9 1 3t o AR R AL S o B e it
Eﬁo

PR BRI K B BB R A B B P
KAERAERAR (EFIKRA) &
EBE/AEERRAE (TLBK
1) E B EAMMPIE T HEMER
PEBMmE R FHR50E 0 D
AR BN _FR_ZTREFE
Ho

KA (EE) ROBRAE —ER
HMERIKEENKEBAR BB
TERASPERESEREES T L1
R EHA4L3ESOE BN _E
m—EEIff

BFNEESHIIE+ENEER
MR

HEBLEENERLERE T8
BREARBIFER AR - HE R
A R 5 O0AE =) 2258 (M AR A PRI
FHREEERIRIRERIRSN - 1EH
BEEEFNSRFEEERNIER
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 BIEEBE
Software
Goodwill and licence Trademarks Total
He RHRIER [ &t
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TER FTER FTER TER
At 1 January 2021 KZ2-—-%—-B—H
Cost A 8,496 2,089 12,189 22,774
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (1,854) (12,137) (13,991)
Accumulated impairment RERE (6,687) - - (6,687)
Net book amount REFE 1,809 235 52 2,096
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_E-_—-#+-RA=+—-H
LHEE
Opening net book amount EVREFE 1,809 235 52 2,096
Amortisation charge (Note 21) BiHp% (M5t21) - (113) (14) (127)
Additions HE - 17 - 17
Transfer i - 139 - 139
Exchange differences ERER (25) - - (25)
Closing net book amount FXRREFE 1,784 278 38 2,100
At 31 December 2021 RZ2-—-%+”-B=+—-H
Cost 3% 8,471 2,245 12,189 22,905
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (1,967) (12,151) (14,118)
Accumulated impairment ZERE (6,687) - - (6,687)
Net book amount REFE 1,784 278 38 2,100
Year ended 31 December 2022 ¥E-Z--“F+-HA=+-H
LHEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 1,784 278 38 2,100
Amortisation charge (Note 21) BEmEY (st21) - (99) (38) (137)
Additions HE - 20 - 20
Exchange differences ERELR 97 - - 97
Closing net book amount FRIEEAFE 1,881 199 - 2,080
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZ#+”"HA=+-H
Cost (DN 8,568 2,265 12,189 23,022
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (2,066) (12,189) (14,255)
Accumulated impairment REtRE (6,687) - - (6,687)
Net book amount REFE 1,881 199 - 2,080

Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses.
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R MR EE

8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 8

Impairment tests for goodwill:

Goodwill is attributed to the Group’s CGUs according to
operating segment.

BREE (&)
HERENH

HMEDREBEEESBIEELAEERN
RE B

The PRC Vietnam
MSG MSG
related related
business business Total
Fh B B B R
el E e ES “act
Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FE7T FE7T
At 31 December 2022 RZE_-Z
+=ZB=+—H 1,151 730 1,881
At 31 December 2021 RIE_—%
+=ZB=+—H 1,054 730 1,784

Management determined the recoverable amount based on
the higher of value-in-use (“VIU”) and the fair value less cost
of disposal (“FVLCD") calculations of the cash-generating unit
("CGU"). The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined
based on VIU calculations. These calculations use pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets prepared by
management and approved by the Board of Directors covering
a five years period. Cash flows beyond the five years period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below
if applicable. The growth rates do not exceed the long-term
average growth rates for the MSG related business in which the
CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation of
the goodwill in the PRC MSG related CGU are as follows.

EERBRBFERIREEM (MHRIGR
EEMU)NERERE (EREE) &R
FEAHERDS (T2 FEREERZE])
ME RS EEE AU E £ 28 - BREUIR
TEUNJKROEEZREREEHNE
BE ZEEERENEERRRRLE
EFEHAEZIFHVREESHZE
MARERERAET BHAFHRZR
EREBEAUTA2IZAFIERKXER
(WER) ~EBREXFAESNBRINETE
IFfEEZ R IFHEBAEBNRET9E
‘X

BUsEPEREEARNIREEUR
BZEREEZEZERRW T

The PRC
I E

2022 2021

ZEZC T —F

Sales per annum (US$'000) SFHERE (F=mT) 14,465 — 16,780 13,032 — 14,913

Growth rate in sales HERRX 3% - 8% 3% - 7%

Gross margin EF=E 16.5% - 17.1% 14.8% — 15.4%
Other operating costs per annum SEHMEBEERA®

(US$'000) (F%70 1,627 - 1,887 1,234 - 1,448

Long term growth rate REAGRE 3% 3%

Discount rate (pre-tax) IR (R AN 16.2% 15.5%
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8

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill: (continued)

Sales per annum and growth rate in sales is estimated with
reference to the past performance of the CGU, management'’s
expectations of market development, current industry trends
and long term inflation forecasts.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Other operating costs are the fixed costs of the CGUs, which do
not vary significantly with sales volumes or prices. Management
forecasts these costs based on the current structure of the
business, adjusting for inflationary increases and these do not
reflect any future restructurings or cost saving measures. The
amounts disclosed above are the average operating costs for
the five-year forecast period.

The management has performed sensitivity analysis over the
PRC MSG related business. A decrease in annual sales volume
growth rate by 37.2%, a decrease in annual sales price growth
rate by 1.2%, a decrease in gross margin by 10.9%, an increase
in annual operating costs by 1.0%, a decrease in long term
growth rate by 4.7% or an increase in discount rate by 2.5%,
all changes taken in isolation, full impairment of the remaining
balance of goodwill would be required.

Based on the impairment review on the goodwill of PRC
and Vietnam MSG related business, the recoverable amount
calculated based on value-in-use calculations exceeds its
carrying value. As a result, no impairment loss was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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9 SUBSIDIARIES 9 MEBATE
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 THAR_ZE_“F+A=+—H2
December 2022: FEWMBREEFE :
Proportion of
Proportion of ordinary shares
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and Principal activities and issued/paid up held by non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  place of operation share capital the Group interest
iR R
SEMRERIL R B sEAREZ REZ
EaY: MRkt BERER TEEBREEHY BE1T/BRBRAFHE EERLA EERLH
Directly held:
B#5E
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% -
(“BVI") US$1 each
EBRELEHS AEEREER 100 S REE1ETH
(RERREE) LER
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% -
US$1 each
HBRULEHS AEBREER 100k EREEIZTH
BER
Indiirectly held:
BEREE
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$61,109,000 ordinary 100% -
shares
g AR MRREER 61,109,000 7T & B
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$20,177,000 ordinary 100% -
shares
g EHMRREZR 20,177,000% 7T & B
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation ~ Vietnam Manufacturing and sale of 171,574,967 ordinary 99.9% 0.1%
Limited fermentation-based food additives shares of US$1 each

and biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial
products including MSG, GA,
modified starch, glucose syrup,
soda and acid in Vietnam and for
export
i) AHAERERFHEEHE QA 171,574,967 BRER
B A LERRAERNIEE 1EZTHEBER
m BEKE AGH Uk
0 AEER BT RERI O

Annual Report 2022 &35 177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M SE

9 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 9 MEB2E @&
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 THAR_ZE_“F+"B=+—HB2
December 2022 (continued) FTEWMBRBEBFE | (@)

Proportion of
Proportion of ordinary shares

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and Principal activities and issued/paid up held by non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  place of operation share capital the Group interest
iR R
SEMRERIL R B FEAREZ BEZ
2y MRkt BERER TEEBREEHY BE1T/BRBRAFHE TERLH BERLA
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch, ~ US$9,800,000 registered 100% -
company seasoning and other products in capital
the PRC
LEGRREERRAT FEBREEAT  ATEBERFEERE RH A%  9,800,000%THMER
B R EME R
Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch, US$20,270,000 100% -
company seasoning and other products in registered capital
the PRC
EF%AERERAR FEEREAERE ATESRKEERE RN AKX  20,270,000% w5
B R EME R LN
Xiamen Darong Import & Export Trade PRC, limited liability Sale of starch and other products in -~ US$254,000 registered 100% -
Co., Ltd. company the PRC capital
EFASEHONERZERAH FE AREART ATEHERMREMER 254,000& T MER
Vedan International (Cambodia) Cambodia Sale of fermentation-based food Registered capital of Riels 100% -
Co., Ltd. additives and biochemical 2,640,000,000

products and cassava starch-based
industrial products in Cambodia
and for export

RIEE RREEREZBEREMMA £ FMEZ2,640,000,000
EERRAEBRN IXERHE 5
R0
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10

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

10

Movement of the investment in an associate is as follows:

R—HBEARZRE
R—EBMEARZKREZEBHNT :

2022 2021

—E=Z —E-—F

Us$’000 US$'000

FET FEx

As at 1 January w—A—H 4,702 4,903
Share of post-tax loss of an associate FE(L— R B E AR RRIRE

(528) (201)

As at 31 December W+ZA=+—H 4,174 4,702

Nature of the investment in an associate as at 31 December

2022 and 2021:

WIEBE_—_FRrR-_E-_—F+=HAH
=t+—H R—EBEEATZREEEN
T

Country of Particulars of % Measurement
Name Incorporation issued share capital interest held method
EaY ] M IIE R BEITRAFER HEEE% tERE
Dacin International The Cayman Islands 21,027,559 shares of 30 Equity
Holdings Limited US$1 each
EMBERERERAT HERS 21,027,55908 &% %

EE1ETZRN

The associate is principally engaged in real estate development

in Vietnam.

Dacin International Holdings Limited is a private company and

there is no quoted market price available for its shares.

There is capital commitment amounting to US$112,000 (2021:
US$112,000) in relation to the Group's investment in the

associate.

ZHEARIFENUERERMESRE
EMEEERERATAMAAT  BH
P& AR I ST IR IR 1B o

FEEMNRZBE AT ZERER112,000

ET(ZTEZ—9:112,000E7T) 2EX
Ao
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10

11

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 10 H—HBEATRZEE (&)
Reconciliation of summarised financial information MHEENBEHK
2022 2021
S —E-—F
us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
Net assets as at 1 January R—RA—BZEERE 15,674 16,342
Loss for the year KEEEE (1,761) (668)
Net assets as at 31 December B+ZA=+—H2
BEFE 13,913 15,674
Interest in an associate (30%) REE AR 2 #m(30%) 4,174 4,702
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 11 HRENISZEMTA
2022 2021
s —E-—F
uss$‘000 Us$'000
F=T FE=T
Financial assets at amortised cost BBHEAAEZ
MEEE
— Trade receivables —EWE SR 33,990 32,164
— Other receivables —H iU FRIE 1,039 996
— Amounts due from related parties —FEWAREALRIE 126 1,442
- Pledged bank deposits —IRIRIRITER - 1,075
— Cash and cash equivalents - RERREEEY 47,810 66,136
Financial assets at fair value through BAFESAEEN
profit or loss MBEE
— Structured bank deposits —EEEIRITER - 2,533
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BREBHEREATEZ
M aE
— Trade payables — BB ZR® 27,591 17,510
— Other payables and accruals —HMEMRIER
et &R 8,878 5,759
— Amounts due to related parties — N AREALRIE 149 517
- Bank borrowings —iRITEE 59,621 40,308
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AR E MR R M EE

12 INVENTORIES 12 #F8H

2022 2021
g —E-—F
Us$°000 Us$'000
FET TE7T
Consumables HFEM 7,571 6,711
Raw materials FE A4 73,762 46,854
Work in progress ERG 6,181 6,389
Finished goods S A% G 53,065 41,758
140,579 101,712

Less: Provision for impairment losses on B FERERERE
inventories (52) (64)
140,527 101,648

The cost of inventories of US$355,425,000 (2021:
US$271,177,000) has been charged in cost of sales.

The write-off and reversal of impairment of inventories included
in cost of sales amounted to US$Nil (2021: US$16,000) and
US$12,000 (2021: US$113,000), respectively.

17 & R A<355,425,000%E T (ZEZ—4F :
271,177,000%7T) B

BENRHEEREZFEREMSE REE
PRABEET(CEZ
5212,000%50 (ZEZ—4F 1 113,000%

7T) °

sTASHERZ -
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AR E MR R M SE

13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 13 EWEBSERMREMEKRTRIE
2022 2021
—E=Z —E-—F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FE7
Trade receivables from third parties EWRE=FEZEM 34,379 32,487
Less: loss allowance A ESIEEE (389) (323)
Trade receivables - net BN E BRI —F5E 33,990 32,164
Prepayments FEfIRRIE 18,662 12,434
VAT recoverable A U [E]3E ER 338 737
Other receivables HhpEW g 911 873
Amount due from an associate e — BB E A T RIE 8 3
Loan to an associate (Note (b)) BT —HEBEATZ
& (FizEb)) 120 120
54,029 46,331
Less: non-current portion B FERNERER
— Prepayments for plant and equipment —BERREEMLRIE (1,301) (2,718)
Current portion BVHEAER 7 52,728 43,613
Prepayments mainly represent advance payment for the FENREFEREREBEREME HARE &
purchase of raw materials and plant and equipment. REBFEMRRIE
The carrying values of the Group’s trade and other receivables BRI ~EERKE ZRARE
approximate their fair values due to their short maturity. HREWHRIBZ REEREATERS-
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 13 FEWKE SRR HEtEWRIE (48)
The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on EKEZRRZEERANFTEIMIRE
delivery to 60 days. The Group may grant a longer credit period OR - AEFTAEFTEAEERREE
to certain customers, subject to the satisfactory results of credit B MEZRREETFHZRARER
assessment. The ageing of the trade receivables based on FEWE ZRFIEEEHIAZRENT !

invoice date is as follows:

2022 2021
—E-— T —F
Us$’000 US$'000
FE7T FET
0 - 30 days 0E30Xk 24,014 21,790
31 - 90 days 31290k 9,069 9,694
91 — 180 days 91E180K 604 368
181 — 365 days 181FE365K 172 124
Over 365 days 365K E 520 511
34,379 32,487
The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2021 and WZEZ—FRZIE-Z-F+H
2022 are the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables —t+—HEGBZRAEERKRA LHE
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as I B 5 BR T R ELAth FE USRI 2 BRTE B © &<
security. EETERSEE IR RIERR
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are FERE ZERM R EMERMRIEZ REE
denominated in the following currencies: BT EEEE
2022 2021
—E=Z —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FET TE7T
Vietnam Dong HMrE 26,737 20,614
us$ ETT 18,992 15,782
Renminbi AR 8,220 9,761
Others Hih 80 174
54,029 46,331
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 13 BWE ZIRMKREtEWRIE (B)
(a) Loss allowance of trade receivables (a) REWEZRMZEERE
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to SEEARBEBMBREERE
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime SR AT ERHEEEE 5
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. FIERKEZRFIRXAB2IERES
B
The closing loss allowance for trade receivables as at 31 A_E__F+_A=+—B2ZE
December 2022 reconciles to the opening loss allowance WE SRR ZERBEBRBEREY
as follows: BIEBEZHIRNOT
2022 2021
-z B
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FEx
Opening loss allowance R—B—HZEHEE
as at 1 January BiE 323 362
Increase/(decrease) in loss allowance  MRERIGZEWRERPER
recognised in consolidated income ZEEREEm
statement during the year GR b 66 (39)
Closing loss allowance R+ZA=+—Hz
as at 31 December FREBERE 389 323
The provision for credit loss of receivables has been MERHREEEBEFEHNEED
included in administrative expenses in the consolidated FFAGEWRERNITEBEZ Ao
income statement. Amounts charged to the allowance BERNBRNESE—RNREREE
account are generally written off when there is no U [E] 38 % 3 & I Bl 2 o
expectation of recovering additional cash.
The other classes within trade and other receivables do FEWE 5 IR R M EKWRIEN Z
not contain impaired assets. HMFERH A BEEREEE-
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet REBEBR eEERAKE Lk
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable HERIEWARRZIREE AEEL
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral BB IR RIERR o
as security.
(b) Loan to an associate (b) HBF—HEEATZER

As at 31 December 2022, the loan to an associate of
US$120,000 (2021: US$120,000) which is unsecured,
bears interest at 4.5% (2021: 4.5%), per annum,
denominated in US$ and repayable on demand.
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AR E MR R M EE

14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED 14 HRERRESZXEBY -EBEBEED
BANK DEPOSITS AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS RIBIRIRITERR
2022 2021
—E=Z —E-—F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FE=7
Pledged bank deposits (note (a)) IERIRITER (HFEEG)) - 1,075
Structured bank deposits (note (b)) EEMEIRITER (kb)) - 2,533
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFEERE 47,810 66,136
47,810 69,744
As at 31 December 2022, cash at bank of US$47,676,000 R-E_—_F#+-B=+—H"1§
(2021: US$66,003,000) and bank deposits of US$Nil (2021: 1TIH£47,676,000E 7T (ZEZ—
US$3,608,000) were exposed to credit risk. £ 1 66,003,000%7T) MIRTTERE
E5T (ZEZ—% :3,608,000%ET)
HEEERRE-
The remittance of the funds out of the PRC bank accounts BE & A WRITRBPEZE &
of US$2,413,000 (2021: US$16,978,000) and Vietnam bank 2,413,000 (Z&E - —&F :
accounts of US$41,063,000 (2021: US$52,973,000) is subject 16,978,000% 75) ME L IRIT
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC and Vietnamese BB 2B %41,063,000E&7T (Z&
governments, respectively. ——% :52,973,000E7T) AS R
8 <F A B R H R BT BY SN BE B IS
B o
The Group's cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits AEBREZRERREEEY KT
and structured bank deposits are denominated in the following IRITEMREEERITEREAT
currencies: E&sHE -
2022 2021
—E-C B —F
us$'000 Us$'000
FET FE=T
Vietnam Dong HEE 15,500 31,571
us$ E7T 27,523 25,495
Renminbi AR 2,414 11,468
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 107
New Taiwan dollar ek 1,847 966
Others Hith 426 137
47,810 69,744
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AR E MR R M SE

14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED
BANK DEPOSITS AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Pledged bank deposits

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank balances
amounting to US$1,075,000 were deposited at
designated bank accounts in certain banks as guarantee
deposits for certain letter of credits released to the
Group's customers.

Structured bank deposits

As at 31 December 2021, the structured bank deposits
amounting to US$2,533,000 represented wealth
management products issued by certain reputable banks
in PRC with guaranteed principal, variable interest and
terms less than 182 days. Changes in fair value of these
investments were recognised in “other gains — net” in the
consolidated income statement.

15 SHARE CAPITAL

14 BRERBRAEEEY SRERITER
BiRRIRIT IR (49)

(a)

(b)

EARIRITER

AT —F+ZRB=+—H'%F
EERRITAEER1,075,0005% 707D
FRATERERELNETERR
NERERERE TRITHEER
TRRRP -

HEEMRITER

A B —F+ZHA=1+—H #&
HEMIRITER2,533,000E A S
EETHMEETETNERESR
EREREEERREAS FHIES
BHRDRIS2R - ZEREHNA
FTESHN ARG REDRSTH
U s — P EE

15 Bg#

Authorised ordinary shares

EELIER
Par value Number
Us$ of shares Us$'000
EEXT 17 8 E FEx
At 1 January 2021, A2 —F—HF—8-

31 December 2021, —E_—f+”"HA=+—8"
1 January 2022 and _E-_F#—A—Ak
31 December 2022 - _F#+-HB=+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares

BETRBELER
Par value Number
Us$ of shares Us$'000
EEXT RITEE FEx
At 1 January 2021, RZ2Z—-F—/F—8-

31 December 2021, —BE_—H+”"HA=+—8"
1 January 2022 and _E-_F#—A—Ak
31 December 2022 - _F#+-HB=+—H 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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16 RESERVES 16 (#fE
Share  Exchange Merger ~ Statutory  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
RMEE ERMEE SoE  EEHRE  GRIERN At
(MiEk@) (kb))
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 UsS$'000
TEr TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
At 1 January 2021 A_E”_—&5—F—H 47,358 9,876 79,994 828 147,776 285,832
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year KEEHF - - - - 11,014 11,014
Other comprehensive income  Hffi2EKA
Currency translation differences ERZEZ - 907 - - - 907
Total comprehensive income ~ ZEWABE - 907 - - 11,014 11,921
Total transactions with HBEBAZERZE
owners
Dividends paid (Note 24) ENRE (fiz24) - - - - (11,192) (11,192)
Reallocation of statutory reserve BN E AT th - - - 46 (46) -
At 31 December 2021 RZI2ZI—-%
+ZB=+—-H 47,358 10,783 79,994 874 147,552 286,561
At 1 January 2022 A _E__F—HF—H 47,358 10,783 79,994 874 147,552 286,561
Comprehensive loss 2EGHE
Loss for the year FEEBE - - - - (4,386) (4,386)
Other comprehensive loss HittZ2EEE
Currency translation differences BERE%ZE - (3,449) - - - (3,449)
Total comprehensive loss 2EBREE - (3,449) - - (4,386) (7,835)
Total transactions with HEBEAZERSE
owners
Dividends paid (Note 24) BAKRE (Hk24) - - - - (2,466) (2,466)
Reallocation of statutory reserve B E AT th - - - 27 (27) -
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZE
+ZB=+—-H 47,358 7,334 79,994 901 140,673 276,260
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AR E MR R M SE

16 RESERVES (continued) 16 f#fE (8
Notes: FEE -
(a) Merger reserve (a) ABHEHE
The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference AEANEHEEERENR -S4
between the nominal value of the share capital and share +ZRB T+ AHERMNEBMEAMKE
premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group WEASMNKEAEERERDRERAA
reorganisation completed on 26 December 2002 and the nominal BAMETREMETZRABENE
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange e
therefor.
(b)  Statutory reserve (b) EEHE
The PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the FEABERIARZEMZI0%EEE
companies’ net profits to the statutory reserves fund until such NEE BEAFSERLQTAEMES
fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered capitals. The Z50% c [EHERAKEME  AERAESR
statutory reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the A FERAMUIKHE RS BERIEMATF
relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase MEX FIRABBABSEBAHITNA
registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is BEMEARRLD25%
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered
capitals.
17 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 17 BYERBRM - -EstERAREMES
PAYABLES RIE
2022 2021
—E-C —FE"_—
Us$’000 US$'000
FE7T FE7T
Current BNEA
Trade payables &1 B 5 BRR 27,591 17,510
Accruals FEstE R 7,781 10,596
Payable of purchase of property, plant and FEEEWE - BEXK
equipment and construction costs B U RBRERATRIE 814 476
Contract liabilities (Note (a)) &HaE (M) 4,339 5,885
Other payables Hh e FRIE 7,206 4,359
Total trade payables, accruals and FET B SRR FESTE A
other payables K EMAE (I FRIB4a%8 47,731 38,826
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AR E MR R M EE

17 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER
PAYABLES (continued)

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the ageing of trade payables
based on invoice date is as follows:

17

&1 & 5 AR 7R ~ FE 51 8 A R ELfth FE 1

I (89)
RZEZZHER

—E_—-%+ZA

=t+—B O BABESZRFREZERZER

BT
2022 2021
—E-= B —F
us$'000 Us$'000
FET FE7
0 - 30 days 0FE30K 25,334 16,851
31 - 90 days 31E90K 2,257 659
27,591 17,510

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, accruals
and other payables are denominated in the following

FEBZENEZRT Bt BEAKREM
EARIEZ REEE T EHEEHE :

currencies:
2022 2021
—E_C —E-—F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FE=T
Vietnam Dong i fE 23,195 20,022
us$ E7T 16,031 12,696
New Taiwan Dollar mekk - 24
Renminbi AR 8,500 5,995
Others Hith 5 89
47,731 38,826

(a) Contract liabilities

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposits
or payments received in advance for sales of goods not
yet delivered to customers. Revenue is recognised when

goods are delivered to customers.

(a) BH&EMR

BHNERIEERINTFERZE
mifEZ AR LA RA R W
HEREMRATEFREL
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18 BANK BORROWINGS 18 RITEH
2022 2021
—E=Z —E-—F
USs$°000 US$'000
T=T FEx
Non-current JEBNHA
- Long-term bank borrowings —RBPRITEE
- secured — B 8,081 12,856
— Long-term bank borrowings —RHARITHEE
— unsecured — I 566 1,776
Less: current portion of long-term bank A REARITEEZ
borrowings BRERER 3 (5.216) (5,985)
3,431 8,647
Current BN HA
— Short-term bank borrowings —fSHIRITEE
- secured — B 40,254 15,698
— Short-term bank borrowings —iRHARITEE
— unsecured — IR 10,720 9,978
— Current portion of long-term bank —REIRITEEZ
borrowings — secured BNERER 9 — B IR R 3,321 4,776
— Current portion of long-term bank —RHRITEEZ
borrowings — unsecured BNHRER 7> — M IE R 1,895 1,209
56,190 31,661
Total bank borrowings IRITEEREE 59,621 40,308
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18 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 18 SRITEE (B

At 31 December 2022, the Group's bank borrowings were
repayable as follows:

i

—— —

—_—

F+ZR=+—H *x&EHZ

RITEEANUTHBEEE

2022 2021

—EF-C —E-—F

us$'000 Us$'000

FET FE=7

Within 1 year —FR 56,190 31,661
Between 1 and 2 years —FEEME 1,440 5,216
Between 2 and 5 years MEERSFE 1,991 3,431
59,621 40,308

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of the

REEHR FEBESPREED

MEEHRAMWENITEBHN

reporting period are as follows: T

2022 2021
—E-C —F—_—

Us$’000 Us$'000
F=E7T FET
Within 6 months 6EA R 50,992 27,861
Between 7 and 12 months 7E12@H 5,199 3,800
Between 1 and 5 years 1ZE58F 3,430 8,647
59,621 40,308

The carrying values of the Group's borrowings approximate
their fair values.

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group’s

+

i

TEBREEZREERRERAFER

RREPR xEFREZERE

borrowings at the end of the reporting period were as follows: FMEMT
2022 2021
== ZEI—F
uss$ ETT 3.7% 1.1%
New Taiwan dollar Wmal 1.8% 1.8%
Renminbi AR 3.6% 4.6%
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18 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 18

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

IRITEE (8
FEBRBEZREERUTERSE:

2022 2021
—EF-C B —F

us$'000 us$'000

F=E=7 FE

uss$ E7T 56,578 38,088
New Taiwan dollar etk 1,303 1,436
Renminbi AR 1,740 784
59,621 40,308

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

FEBBEUTRIERAEERE !

2022 2021
—EF-C B —F
Us$’000 US$'000
FE7 FEx
Floating rate: R
— Expiring within one year —R—ERNEH 101,342 117,023
— Expiring beyond one year —R—FBIEH 43,950 32,740
Fixed rate: TR
— Expiring within one year —-R—FRIE 574 12,664
— Expiring beyond one year —R—FE T - 11,035
145,866 173,462

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has aggregate
bank facilities of approximately US$205,487,000 (2021:
US$213,770,000) for bank borrowings, trade finance and other
general banking facilities. Unutilised amount as at 31 December
2022 amounted to US$145,866,000 (2021: US$173,462,000).
Among them, US$96,767,000 (2021: US$110,258,000) and
US$287,000 (2021: US$8,622,000) of the unutilised bank
facilities were secured by corporate guarantees issued by the
Company and pledged by the Group’s buildings with carrying
amount of US$3,224,000 (2021: US$3,603,000) (Note 6),
respectively.

192  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIRE (#282) BIRAR

AR ZHE+Z“H=1+—H &T&H
EHERIRITAME A $49205,487,000%
T (ZEZ—4 :213,770,000%7T) £
BIRTEE BESMEREM KB
ME-RZB_ZFF+A=+—H %
A S EEA 145,866,000 (ZEZ—
£ 173,462,000 7T) » He» RENAIR
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R MR EE

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 19 REFREM
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary RIEFF M BRBEEEEURNEEEE
differences under the liability method using the principal tax FEERERNTERERFAEYERE
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. BEETE o
The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows: IRIEFRSIRBEZ2WAT !
2022 2021
—E_C —E-—F
us$’000 Us$'000
FET FE=T
— Deferred income tax assets to be —BRiEBE12E A % UkE
recovered after more than 12 months ZIREFRSMEE 3,215 3,398
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — iR EBE12{8 B & Y[l
recovered after more than 12 months ZIRIEFRRIRBE (2,638) (1,733)
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as IRIEFRSIRARE BN FRENT ¢
follows:
2022 2021
—E-F B —F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FE=T F=T
At 1 January ®w—B—H 1,665 2,134
Credited to consolidated income statement st A&FEUWZFER (MfzE23)
(Note 23) (1,088) (469)
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 577 1,665
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities KEEREFRMSREERAR CRETRIE
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting HERHRAARENER) WESN
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: I
Deferred income tax liabilities IRIEFRISIREE

Accelerated tax depreciation

INEMIBITE
2022 2021
—E=Z —E-—F
us$'000 Us$'000
FET FE
At 1 January w—A—H 3,398 3,818
Charged to consolidated income statement R4z &R AR (183) (420)
At 31 December ®W+-—B=+—H 3,215 3,398

Annual Report 2022 3% 193



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M SE

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

20

19 SEMEFRISIR ()

Deferred income tax assets IRIEFRSIREE
Other temporary differences

Hth g =58
2022 2021
—E=Z —E-—F
us$’000 Us$'000
FE=7 FE1
At 1 January w—HA—H (1,733) (1,684)
Credited to consolidated income statement st ALZEUZEER (905) (49)
At 31 December B+-ZB=+—H (2,638) (1,733)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the profits
of PRC subsidiaries of the Group derived since 1 January 2008
will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% upon
the distribution of such profits to foreign investors. Deferred
income tax liabilities of US$1,085,000 (2021: US$1,122,000)
have not been recognised in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy of
these PRC subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The
unremitted earnings of PRC subsidiaries are intended to reinvest
to expand PRC markets.

There is no unrecognised deferred income tax assets for tax loss
for the Group as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

RBEPEEEMRSRE cEEETPEH
MEBAREB_EENE—B—HEEZE
B AR DI TINE IR E E R A 4%
T0%BIMEBGMIANMRN - AN AEEE
FZETENBLABZRERR BX
EEZPEWNBRARR RN EGEZY
R ZBR A AP RER AT RAF 2R | - &t
BENZEEREREDRELEFRSERARE
1,085,000% 7% (ZEZ—4% : 1,122,000
%) cHENBEARKREHNEF S
FBRKRELIERPETS

RZE-Z_—FgR-_E-—H+=-A8
=t+—H AEEMEBRRBEEZR

HEBEMSREE-
OTHER GAINS - NET 20 Hfthlizs—$%8
2022 2021
ZEZC - —F
Us$’000 Us$'000
F=5x FEx
Net exchange (losses)/gains ER (8518 W $5E (489) 387
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant HEME - BEREZEZ
and equipment (B518) /Wi (36) 47
Sales of scrap materials BE R} 8 & 330 240
Government grants B AT B 114 96
Fair value gains on structural bank deposits #&#&MRITERZ
R EWE 52 151
Others Hih 248 714
219 1,635
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21

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution

21 BEMESEZRAX
HEM A HE R D HBX RITHHAXF

expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BEZEZSHUOT
2022 2021
ZEZC - —F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FEx
Changes in inventories and FEREREERES

consumables used (Note 12) (FFzE12) 355,425 271,177
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8)  E B E#H (H:E8) 137 127
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (Note 7) {FRAEEE#HHE (5E7) 549 405
Auditor's remuneration 1% 25 B & B
— Audit services —ZH AR 345 355
— Non-audit services —IE L RS 4 4
Depreciation on property, plant and ME- -BERZEITE

equipment (Note 6) GELR) 17,746 17,679
Written off of property, plant and WD EE -~ R E R 5% 8

equipment (Note 6) GE)) 895 -
Reversal of impairment of inventories FERERER (MEE12)

(Note 12) (12) (113)
Write-off of inventory (Note 12) FEME E12) - 16
Expense relating to short-term lease BSHRTA B A R

(Note 7) (fF5E7) 75 47
Employee benefit expenses (Note 26) EE®@F % (Mizk26) 39,236 45,384
Provision for/(reversal of) of loss allowance FEWE ZIRFEGIBRE 2

of trade receivables (Note 13) B (L)

(Mi5E13) 66 (39)
Loss on lease modification HEBITZEX 1 -
Technical support fee (Note 32(b)) RMZEE (MzE32(b) 2,139 2,210
Travelling expenses il 1,562 1,270
Transportation expenses R@BAE 12,345 11,714
Advertising expenses BEEH% 2,071 3,115
Repair and maintenance expenses HENGFRERS 13,059 9,890
Other expenses HpEx 8,699 5,773
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution ~ $§ER s~ $HE R D 84
expenses and administrative expenses HE RITE R 4858 454,342 369,014
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22 FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME - NET 22 B () WA R
2022 2021
—E=Z —E-—F
USs$°000 Us$'000
T=T FEx
Bank interest income RITF 2 WA 393 562
Interest income from an associate kE—BEEEATRZHE
WA 5 7
Finance income AU A 398 569
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEEFERE (1,122) (469)
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 7) THE&EF BRX
(M35E7) (104) (92)
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying B EEREE
assets (Note 6) BAREHRIE
(M35E6) 275 225
Finance costs M E (951) (336)
Finance (costs)/income — net B%5 (2H) A — 358 (553) 233
23 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 23 FRIEMEAX
Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated HAMZMERERGBERR G ZA
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing ERSEMTERRZRITMEAE

in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income RizaWamRANRZMEREREE .
statement represents:

2022 2021

S —E-—F

us$’000 Us$'000

FE=7 FET

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") PERER 1,271 4,465
Under/(over) provision of income tax in BEFEREREBELRRE

previous years / (FBEREE) 4 (14)

Total current tax BNERTR TE4R %E 1,275 4,451

Deferred income tax (Note 19) IEIEFTER (M3sE19) (1,088) (469)

187 3,982
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23

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 23

The income tax on the Group's (loss)/profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the applicable tax rate for Vietnam Vedan, which is a major
subsidiary of the Group, as follows:

FRrig A% (4)
AEBRASRA (BB HEF B

FREWERATEEZEZENE QR

ERANERREMSENERRRT
B &I

2022 2021

=g T —F

Us$’000 Us$'000

F=ET F=Ex

(Loss)/profit before income tax FREFGRIAT (B548) &) (4,197) 15,014
Tax calculated at tax rate of 15% B15% 2 MEFEZRIE

(2021: 15%) B —F 1 15%) (630) 2,252

Tax effects of different tax rates TEREZRBEZE 114 1,763

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ENGIE Y d 5 1,158 172

Income not subject to tax BHEFRIA (459) (25)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised R Z AR EE1E

tax losses - (166)

Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFEREELIR
(HBEaEE) 4 (14)
Income tax expenses Frigiipz 187 3,982

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

(i) Vietnam
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’'s principal
operations in Vietnam is 15%, which is an incentive tax
rate offered by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated
in the subsidiary’s investment license. For non-principal
operation in Vietnam, the applicable EIT rate for the
Group is 20%.

(ii) The PRC
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operation in the
PRC is 25%.

(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia
No Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia profits tax has been
provided as the Group had no estimated assessable profit
arising in or derived from Singapore, Hong Kong and
Cambodia during the year.

(iv) Taiwan
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operations in
Taiwan is 20%.

1 EPT1S M 1R B 75 B8R B9 7% 7 i A 51
B BRAERNEBARRNAFTHRE
WZBEEFHAE-

() ®&mE
BB AR ESFRIEEIE
FERTHENTEXBNERE
EFMBRER1S% ARREAH
AHFFGTHESRNE -
NFEEXEBMS  ~EENER
EEREMRER20% -

(i) E
AEBEPRNESENER L ERR
BRER25%-

(i) #oNK BB RIER
HRAEBRAEEILEITHM
W BB R R R BRI E S A
FESRAR & A > B M 3 % 1t 0 4
S BE R ERERE-

(iv) &%

FERESENEBNERLEMR
BMER20%
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24 DIVIDENDS 24 B2
A final dividend of 0.162 US cents per share amounting to BEM8E—_f-_—F+=B=+—H
US$2,466,000 that relates to the year ended 31 December IFFESRK0.162%1L£%42,466,000
2021 was declared on 27 May 2022 and paid in June 2022. EnxZ2FABEREERZ-ZZ 1A
Z+HtHERERZZEZZFXAIKG
The board does not recommend the payment of final dividend EEgfESEMBE_SE__F+_8
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022. =t+—HLEFERGRPRES -
25 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 25 Sk (R BY
(a) Basic (a) E7s
Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing SREAS (518 BIEAARE
the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company by BAREWG (BB SsMBERUERE
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue BITEBRNMEFLHE-
during the year.
2022 2021
—ECHE B4
US$°000 US$'000
FxT FEx
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of AT HEE AEW (B8)
the Company (US$'000) SEA (FE7T) (4,386) 11,014
Weighted average number BRITEERNME
of ordinary shares in issue THH (TR
(thousands) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREXR (F8) &7
(US cents per share) (BB =) (0.29) 0.72
(b) Diluted (b) 158
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is same as basic (loss)/ BE_Z__HFRE—F+Z
earnings per share as there are no dilutive instruments for B=+—BLFE R LEE#E
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. TE HESRE®E (FB) BAH
SREX (BB /&BFER-
26 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 26 EEEFMAX (LIBFEFHM)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2022 2021

—F__ —EB_—F

uss$‘000 Us$'000

FE7T FEx

Wages, basic salaries and allowances TE Ei R, 32,806 37,062

Bonus 1E4 196 1,634
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Bk E 7

—ERE MR E B 3,732 3,062

Other employee benefits HitEBEF 2,502 3,626

39,236 45,384
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27

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

As stipulated by the labour laws in Vietnam, the Group
operates defined benefit pension plans for its employees in
Vietnam employed on or before 31 December 2008. The
provision is determined based on the employees’ years of
services as at 31 December 2008 and their average monthly

27 EBHREMEME

RBHEFHEREE *EFBENZ
EZNF+__A=+—HIUAEAN
BEEESRHEEENBRARESFE -ZF
BHEUEER_ZETNE+A=+—
BZRBEFHRRERS B NEAR

salary for the six-month period prior to the last service day. MM FEHSBHEL-
2022 2021
- ZEI—F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FE7
As at 1 January w—A—H 1,505 1,460
Current service cost BVHEARRFE5 R =2 193 125
Payments INESA (172) (80)
As at 31 December w+-—B=+—H 1,526 1,505
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FrERANETERERRNOT !
2022 2021
- ZEI—F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FE
Discount rate IR 9% 9%
Salary growth rate FEEREE 6.0% - 7.0% 4.5% - 6.9%
Expected years of service remaining FTEHAFI R AR S EE IR 13 - 15 years®E 14 - 16 years&E

Pursuant to the Law on Social Insurance in Vietnam effective
from 1 January 2009, the Group is required to contribute to
a state-sponsored employees’ social insurance scheme for its
employees in Vietnam. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due.

REH-_ETZNF-A—BEERZE
EAERREZ AEBAASHEUEES
MEXEEREZEESHLEREEFLMHE
MeMZAHME  FEBBEAMIR
BE - RN B IR ER R ESRET

f3z°
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28 EEENREDS (FREARGEG (B
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622%) E383(F AT (KEBEESEH
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE HEE) B0 (5622GE) RE#H L
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF HRAREZHE)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING

RULES)
(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EEFERSRITHAEZMNE
The remuneration of every director and the chief BESERERITHAEZHNET
executive is set out below: LI
For the year ended 31 December 2022: BE-Z-_"F+ZA=t+—HL
FE:
Other emoluments
paid or receivable
in respect of
director's other
services in
connection with
the management
Employer's  of the affairs of
Allowances and contribution the Company
Salary Discretionary  benefitsin kind  to a retirement  or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
BRESH
BRARFH
HHBAREH
BEm FRENEMERS
i ERRRNER ERERHE BEXfARKZ
Name of Director Sy s (Hfzka) BB (Hizkb) FRIEMR HihiE EH
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
RE RE TE£n TER FER RE RE
Executive Director BiES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung REERE 1 343 - 17 - - 361
Mr. Yang, Cheng BERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ) 133 %4 (ftEc) 1 425 18 17 - - 461
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 219 - 17 - - 236
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou AL - 181 - 17 - - 198
Non-executive Director FRTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng BHELE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung EREAE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Independent non-executive ~ BUFNTEE
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong HEERE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray BREEE 2 - - 16 - - 18
M. Ko, Jim-Chen AEREE 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Huang Chung Fong BEREE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Total et 1" 1,168 18 180 - - 1,377
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(A)

FAFSER R M 5E

28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28 EREMREZ (FRARRE (B
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622%) F383F - AR HBESH
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE mEH) H (35622GE) REAL
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF HRAUREZKE) (&)
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)

REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERSHRITHABZME (@)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021: BHE_Z_—F+”"B=+—HL
R
Other emoluments
paid or receivable
in respect of
director's other
services in
connection with
the management
Allowances Employer's of the affairs of
and benefits contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind a retirement or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
ARESH
ERARFY
HMBARES
EEm FRENEMES
s ERRENER BHRERHE BEIGARNZ
Name of Director gz k3 (Hfzka) BB (Hizkb) FRAEMR HitiE B
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000
T£n T£n T&n T&n R R T£n
Executive Director HirES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BREELE 1 343 257 17 - - 618
Mr. Yang, Cheng BERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ) #3344 (FfEc) - 494 258 17 - - 769
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 218 180 17 - - 415
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou BN EE - 181 180 17 - - 378
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng BHELE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRRRE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Independent non-executive ~ BIUFHITES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong HEREE 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RBHAE 2 - - 16 - - 18
M. Ko, Jim-Chen AEREE 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Huang Chung Fong BHEBEE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Total At 12 1,236 875 180 - - 2,303
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)

ESENRED (FRBATEG (B

622%F) F3831F% A8 (KEEEF
HmER) H6 (55622GE) REB L
HRARE ZIKE) (B)

(A)

Aggregate other emoluments paid to

EERERITHRABZME (&)

Aggregate emoluments paid to or or receivable by directors in respect of
receivable by directors in respect of their other services in connection with
their services as directors, whether of the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiary undertakings the Company or its subsidiary undertakings Total Total
EENEAERZRE EWESHEREARN
(FRATAAREMBARZES) HB AR EHRMEN
BEERERZAHE HitRBEEXFRRKZ At EBE a5t @t
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
ZBICE ZBI-F b St S 3 et 3 EI-F
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TER S FEnT FET FET S
191 192 1,186 2,11 1,377 2,303

Note:

(a)  Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid
or receivable in respect of that person’s other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiary undertakings.

(b) Allowances and benefits in kind include meeting
attendance allowance.

() Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang is also the CEO of the Company and
his remuneration has been disclosed above.
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(B) Directors’ retirement benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no other
retirement benefits were paid to directors in respect of
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking
(2021: same).

(C) Directors’ termination benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no
termination benefits were paid to directors (2021: same).

(D) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no
consideration was provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services (2021: same).

(E) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings in favor of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with directors (2021: same).

(F) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 32, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2021: same).

EFENREDR (FRQBRGM (B
622%F) F3831F% A8 KEEEF
mEH) AP (55622GE) REE L
HRARE ZIKE) (B)

(B)

(@)

(D)

(E)

(F)

EERAKEF
BEZZHF+"H=+—HL
FE UEAZEEMNREETELR
BHEMB AR ERATRENR
B HHEMBRAEN CEZ—F:
HEE) o

BEEZRILET
BE_T__HF+_A=+—HL
FE URAEBEFRZNELEER
T"—F MR -

MIREEEREMAEE=FRHEN
K&

BEZ“HF+”"H=+—HL
FE UEMRHESREMESE
ZHRERB(CEZ—F BRE) -

BRAUES - SREESEHNZE
ANEBRZEEESNEMEERS
SHANEBER EERREMRS
B &k

BE_Z__F+"HA=+—HL
FE UTENEE TZEEFE
HREANEREZEEETNERE
ERATSEAFHNER EER
REMRZEG (ZTEZ—F: #HR) -

BEENRB -ZTHHANTHNEKX
g
BRMIsE32FTIREE SN REEER
RAEAFERNTRER > QTR
SIBMAEREBERAMARAE
FEESHEREEARERNEM
BEAXRB RHIAEGH (ZEZ—
F AR ©
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(G) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included four (2021: four)
executive directors; their emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the
remaining one (2021: one) individual during the year is as

ESEMRED (FRARMGRGN (B
622%F) F3831F% A8 (KEEEF
HmER) H6 (55622GE) REB L
HRARE ZIKE) (B)

(G mAEEMEAL
FERAFENLEESHEAL
BENE (CEZ—F  E) T
EF REMEEN EXZDF
PR AFERNBAFET—% (2
T —F %) ATZHFMOT

follows:
2022 2021
—EZF —ET—F
us$’000 us$'000
FE7x FET
Wages, basic salaries and allowances L& - & ¥ K2 8L 154 151
Bonus TE4T 46 48
Pension costs — defined BRIRE R AR
contribution plans —EREMHFRETE = -
200 199
The emoluments of the remaining individual fell within BTATZMERRUTHE

the following band:

Number of individuals

AE
2022 2021
—=E-= B —F
US$180,001 to US$205,000 180,001 ETE
205,000 7T 1 1
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29

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29 WERERME
CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operations EBMEEZRSE
2022 2021
=g T —F
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
B s FET TEx
(Loss)/profit before PREFSMAT (F518)
income tax Vet (4,197) 15,014
Adjustments for: MUATEERE
— Finance income — WA (398) (569)
— Finance costs — B 951 336
— Share of post-tax loss of — FE{h — R B
an associate NEIFRE
B8 528 201
— Write-off of inventories — i EE = 16
— Reversal of inventories —EhlEFEE (12) (113)
— Depreciation of —-ME-BEXK
property, plant and REITE
equipment 6 17,746 17,679
— Write-off of property, —ME-BEK
plant and equipment 5% 15 i 5 895 -
— Provision for/(reversal) —FEUR & 5 BRTUR
of impairment loss of BB EE
trade receivables (@) 13 66 (39)
— Amortisation of — B EE#H
intangible assets 8 137 127
- Amortisation of right- —FREEEEH
of-use assets 7 549 405
— Loss/(gain) on disposal —HEWE -BE
of property, plant and REZEER
equipment (W zm) 20 36 (47)
— Realised fair value gain — M EIRTT
on structured bank FERzBER
deposits NEFEWE (52) (145)
— Unrealised fair value — M EIRTT
gain on structured FERZ REIR
bank deposits NFEUW = - (6)
— Loss on lease —HEETZiEX
modification 1 -
16,250 32,859
Change in working capital EEETEH
(excluding the effects of (Retér&ERE
exchange differences on EEfZERERETE
consolidation)
— Inventories =8 (38,867) (9,886)
— Trade receivables, — BN E ZERM
prepayments and FERRIE &
other receivables HhpEWFRIE (9.176) (1,948)
— Trade payables, accruals — e & R
and other payables FEst &R &
HAthFE I RRIE 8,588 12,233
— Net changes in —HEAREAT
balances with related EERZ B E
companies HEE 948 (1,412)
Cash (used in)/generated from ¥3% (FrA) /E4% 2
operations He (22,257) 31,846
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29 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29 RETERERME (@
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(a) Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) ¥EBELEZRE B
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds EGReRERERN HEWE
from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise: BB REEZERIEEE !
2022 2021
=g T —F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FxEx
Net book amount (Note 6) IREFE (fsk6) 56 30
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEYE BERRKREZ
plant and equipment (Note 20) (B518) /Wi
(HF5£20) (36) 47

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERREZ

plant and equipment IFECE L] 20 77
(b) Net (debt)/cash reconciliation (b) (B BREFHEZHIK
This section sets out an analysis of net (debt)/cash and TEHHIINE EINEEZ (B
the movements in net (debt)/cash for each of the years REBEOLNK (B BREPE
presented. gHo
Net (debt)/cash (1B%) HE P8
2022 2021
—E-CH B
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FE7
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 47,810 66,136
Bank borrowings — repayable within ~ SR{TEE—R—FREE
one year (56,190) (31,661)
Bank borrowings — repayable after RITEE-NR—FRER
one year (3.431) (8,647)
Lease liabilities — current portion HESGE-RHEIES (443) (369)
Lease liabilities — non-current portion A& &&E—JERNEAE S (3.035) (2,650)
Net (debt)/cash (&%) RE3E (15,289) 22,809
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 47,810 66,136
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BISAREE—EEFIZE (3,478) (11,013)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BISMREE—FEFIE (59,621) (32,314)
Net (debt)/cash (&) /REFHE (15,289) 22,809
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29 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29 IZERERMERME E
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Net (debt)/cash reconciliation (continued) (b) (&) REFEHER @)

Liabilities from
financing activities

REMEEHZER
Bank Bank Lease Lease
borrowings borrowings liabilities liabilities
due within due after - current - non-current
1 year 1 year portion portion

R—FREE R-FRIH HEaR HEaR

ZiRTEE ZiRTEE —EHRES RS
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FEn TEn FER TER
Net debt as at 1 January 2021 WRZZZ—
—B—BZR¥FH (32,373) (13,986) (199) (2,818)
Cash outflows/(inflows) Bewl/ GRA) 6,709 (646) 375 -
Non-cash flow movements: ERERELH
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SMNEFEE (12) - 5 -
Interest expense on lease HESGENERS
liabilities - - (92) -
Other non-cash movement HitJER & 28 (5,985) 5,985 (458) 168
Net debt as at RZE-—-F
31 December 2021 +-B=+—-Hz2
B%EHE (31,661) (8,647) (369) (2,650)
Cash outflows/(inflows) Bemt/ RA) (19,538) - 644 -
Non-cash flow movements: ERERELE) .
Foreign exchange adjustments  4MEZFEE 225 - 17 -
Interest expense on lease HESENERY
liabilities - - (104) -
Other non-cash movement HtERSEE (5,216) 5216 (631) (385)
Net debt as at RIEZ_HE
31 December 2022 +ZA=+—-Hz
RHZEE (56,190) (3,431) (443) (3,035)
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30 COMMITMENTS 30

The Group's capital expenditure contracted for at the end of
the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

T

FEERRSPRETNERELEZE
RZHMTF

2022 2021
s —E-—F
us$'000 Us$'000
FE7x FE
Contracted but not provided for BRI NEXRER

Property, plant and equipment ME-BERSZE 788 2,302

Investment in an associate (Note 10) R—EBRE AT ZRE
(FFzE10) 112 112
900 2,414

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 HAER

At 31 December 2022, the Company has given guarantees for
bank facilities of subsidiaries amounting to US$142,075,000
(2021: US$138,028,000), of which US$95,481,000 (2021:
US$110,258,000) has not been utilised.

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is the Yang Family,
whose members are Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng,
Yang, Yung-Huang, Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Kun-Chou, Yang,
Yung-Jen, Yang, Chen-Wen, Yang, Wen-Hu, Yang, Tung, Ms.
Yang, Wen-Yin, Ms. Yang, Shu-Hui and Ms. Yang, Shu-Mei.

(@) The table below summarises the related parties and
nature of their relationship with the Group as at 31

RZE-_—_HF+-B=+—H £&AF
AMEATAE142,075,000E T (ZF
——%:138,028,000%7T) ZIR{TRE IR
(R > Hdh95,481,000F T (B - —
£ 1110,258,000%7T) M KRB o

EREALRS
FERRRERSAGRKE HRES®
BERBEEEBERE - BXERE
ISR E BN T E B ERE
BRXEE - BXHLTE - BREE B
X HRBRERGRIBER LT

@) TRV _—_E__F+=A4
=t+—HZEREALTKREHAKE

December 2022: ERRAGME

Related party Relationship with the Group

BREATL BAREE %

Vedan Enterprise CORP (“Taiwan Vedan”) A substantial shareholder of the Company
RAEERGBRAR (T8EKA) KABNEERR

Vedan Biotechnology Corporation (“Vedan Bio"”) A company commonly controlled by the Yang Family
LR EMBERAERAE (TRAEMRER) —EHEBEREHEEZEG ZAF

Dacin International Holdings Ltd. An associate of the Group

EMERZERERAR REENEE QT

Capron Group Limited A company commonly controlled by the Yang Family

—EHEBRXEHREZERZ AT
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

32 FERAEALRZS @

Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) HEAEEBEXEHEBREPETNE

out in the normal course of the Group's business, are as ABRAEALIRZOT :

follows:

2022 2021
—E_C —_=_"_—
Note US$’000 Us$'000
Mt =x F=T TET
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan MEeEKRAEEGR (i) 9,848 7,761
Purchase of goods from Taiwan HEeEKRAREER
Vedan (i) = 1
Sale of goods to Vedan Bio B EMREHE
Em 0) 568 322
Technical support fee paid to [ & &K 2Rl
Taiwan Vedan ZiEE (ii) 2,139 2,210
Agency commission income [\ & & IR £ U ER B9 I
received from Taiwan Vedan R ON (if) 2 2

Notes: PEE -

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to/ (i) KABTEERA RIBAEREREER
purchases from the related parties were conducted in BATEHZHE BEMEATRE
the normal course of business in accordance with the TWIEHBEBBREFET
underlying terms.

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the (il ARFDEBRA ZEXZETHBER
transactions were carried out in the normal course of BFE R ETT > I B AR R AR B 15 5 BV IR R
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the & o
terms of underlying agreements.

Key management compensation () FEEBEAEME

The compensation paid or payable to key management,
including all executive directors and senior management,
for employee services is shown below.

MEERFENHECSETEEEA
E (BEMAEATEERSREE
@) Z#ENESIImT o

2022 2021
—E-C —EZ—F
us$'000 Us$'000
F=ET FE7
Salaries and other short-term FeREMEHERREF
employee benefits 2,502 3,305
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

Year-end balances with the related parties

As at

31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had the

following significant balances with the related parties:

32 ERAEALRZS (@)

(d)

HAEMBEALTZERER
A= _E”_—F+ZAH

=t+—H - AEEEEREALZ
FEEFUT

2022 2021
—E2-C —F—_—
Note Us$'000 US$'000
B s F=T FE7T
Current: BNHA :
Amount due from Taiwan FEUR & IR TR IE
Vedan (i) 33 1,442
Amount due from Vedan Bio FE Wk £ E R
Mg (if) 93 -
Amount due to Taiwan Vedan FE{T & E IR RIS (i) (146) (505)
Loan to an associate BT —HEBERTZ
=N (iii) 120 120
Amount due from an associate FEU — R B E AT
TIE (iv) 8 3
Amount due to Capron Group F&{$Capron Group
Limited Limited X IE (v) (3) (12)
Notes: MisE -

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

All balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of payment.

The balance with Vedan Bio is unsecured, interest-free and
has no fixed terms of payment.

The loan to an associate is unsecured, bears interest at
4.5% (2021: 4.5%) per annum, denominated in US$ and
is repayable on demand.

The balance represents interest receivable from an
associate.

The balance with Capron Group Limited was unsecured,
interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable within
one year.
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(i HEEFEVYHRZEFREIR
BB REEEEMRBA-

BT —RBMEATZERAEIR
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4.5%) st B UETTEHE > WAR

(iii)

EHRERN—EBMEIIZA
Be

(iv)

(v)  ElCapron Group LimitedZ & 8%%
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33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 33
THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

FAREERAERRFEGED

ERREERER

As at 31 December

w+=ZB=+—H
2022 2021
—E=Z BT —F
Note Us$'000 US$'000
B 5 F=T FE7
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBARZIRE 166,030 166,030
Investment in an associate R—E#ERTZ
E 4,174 4,702
Loan to a subsidiary HYHMBRAEZER 293 125
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 170,497 170,857
Current assets RENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE W [ A B =R IE 42,138 50,987
Amount due from a related party R B RE AN LRIE 33 25
Amount due from an associate e — B E AR
EQEE] 8 3
Loan to an associate B —EBEATZ
=6 120 120
Loan to a subsidiary HTHBABIZEMR 185 75
Prepayments and other receivables T TR IE K H At FE UL
IE 391 126
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 4,072 5,014
Total current assets MEEERE 46,947 56,350
Total assets BHEMLE 217,444 227,207
EQUITY K%
Equity attributable to owners of KRABEBA
the Company FE(L IR
Share capital [N 15,228 15,228
Reserves B (Note(a))
(Mt5E(@a)) 198,974 207,576
Total equity R 4EEE 214,202 222,804
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33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 33 FATIEEEBRREEESR (B
THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued) TRTEEREBR (B)

As at 31 December

w+=ZB=+—8H
2022 2021
—T-C 2 —F
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
M5 FEmT FEx
LIABILITIES af&
Current liabilities Pk p=RE
Accruals and other payables P& 5+ & A Ko H fth FE 1
I 1,633 2,457
Bank borrowings RITEE 1,303 1,436
Current income tax liabilities BNERFRIR AR - 5
Amount due to a subsidiary FE{SBS B A B R IE 160 -
Amount due to a related party e BRIEANLRRIE 146 505
Total current liabilities TmENB AR 3,242 4,403
Total equity and liabilities k&A% 217,444 227,207
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board AAAEEBBRREEEETIN_E
of Directors on 21 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf. “=F=AZ+—HB#IEBETI AL
RREE-
Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang
VR ER g 1 i ¥
Director Director
EE EE
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33

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 33 FATIEEEBRREEESE (@)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued) TRTEEREBR (@)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company M5t (a)ds A B B 2 &Y
Share Exchange Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
R iRE ERHEE REETN HagE
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FE FE FE7 FE7T
At 1 January 2021 WZZE-_—%—H—H 194,098 164 32,773 227,035
Comprehensive loss 2HEER
Loss for the year KEEEE - - (8,327) (8,327)
Other comprehensive loss Ht2mEEE
Currency translation difference  ERZXE - 60 - 60
Total comprehensive loss PHEE4EEE - 60 (8,327) (8,267)
Dividends paid BfKRE - - (11,192) (11,192)
At 31 December 2021 RZE_——%F
+-B=+—H 194,098 224 13,254 207,576
At 1 January 2022 R_E__&#—H—H 194,098 224 13,254 207,576
Comprehensive loss 2HEEE
Loss for the year NEERIE - - (5,958) (5,958)
Other comprehensive loss Hth2mEEE
Currency translation difference  EERZXE - (178) - (178)
Total comprehensive loss PHEEIE4E%E - (178) (5,958) (6,136)
Dividends paid ENKRE - - (2,466) (2,466)
At 31 December 2022 R __&
+ZB=+—H 194,098 46 4,830 198,974
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hFEMBRE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 BE+-_BA=1+—HILEEGSEE
DECEMBER
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“¥--F & BIFF "B-NF B-N\F
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FE7T FET FET FE£T FE3T
Revenue Wz 451,007 382,361 360,741 357,857 356,772
(Loss)/profit before BREF1SAA]
income tax (B518) &F (4,197) 15,014 22,017 19,813 22,007
Income tax expense FRi8MB (187) (3,982) (5,340) (4,228) (4,613)
(Loss)/profit attributable AT HEAE A
to owners of fE1E (E538)
the Company pagl (4,386) 11,014 16,650 15,563 14,285
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31 B+-—B=+—HEFEEEREE
DECEMBER
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
T B BT —E-hE IE—NE
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FE73 FE73 T3 T3
Assets and liabilities BEEREE
Total assets BESE 405,972 389,147 386,539 369,476 367,805
Total liabilities BERRE (114,254) (87,130) (85,269) (81,749) (81,123)
Total equity L g L 291,718 302,017 301,270 287,727 286,682
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Reference for Shareholders

REZ2EEH

Main Board of
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“HKEx")

Place of Listing

Stock Code
HKEX 02317
Access to Bloomberg 2317 HK Equity
Access to Reuters 2317.HK
Board Lot 4,000
Par Value Us$0.01
Trading Currency HKD

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Financial year ended

Full year results announced
Annual general meeting

Interim results to be announced

31 December 2022
21 March 2023

23 May 2023

In the last week of
August 2023*

* subject to change

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Tengis Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Telephone : (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile : (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company’s shares should notify the Hong Kong branch
share registrars promptly of any change of addresses.

L

B A0SR
Bk X PRy
TR E
BB L HRE

BEEEQ

H{E

RBE

MBITERE
EEEEEHE
EEEEQM
REBERE
FEIEE R

* BEREE

R 3R AR %5

BB ER

02317

2317 HK Equity
2317 HK

4,000

0.01%&7T

HTT

g _F#+”-“H=+—H
—E=F=B=-+—H
—_E_=FAB”"+=H

—E-=FN\A
RE—EE28

ERERRNDBRRELZER FMHEELL
BZBEBRNBRETDE

SEERFERAE

&%
ERE165%

BREHMPO17E

E:E 1(852) 2980 1768
{HH :(852) 2528 3158

BAEARARGBZAL BEXOMAL 5H R
BRNEBRMNBRERLRDE
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Investor Relations

KREERME

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Over the years, the Group has been committed to maintaining close
contact and good communication with investors in a professional
and open manner to collect more information and valuable opinions,
as well as providing timely disclosure of its business strategies and
directions of the Group, so as to enhance corporate governance while
strengthening investor confidence.

During the year under review, the management team had regular
conference calls with investors in Hong Kong and was proactive
in dispatching the latest information of its business to investors.
Information about an environmental issue related to its Vietnam
operation was relayed to investors. This is in line with the Group’s
commitment to keep up open and transparent communication as well
as ensuring that investors fully understand its operations in order for
them to make sound investment decisions.

In addition, the Group constantly interacts with investors via its
corporate website. During the year, the Group has posted its
announcements, annual and interim reports, and all relevant
disclosures and circulars on its website promptly for the convenient
access and reference by investors. The Company website address is:
http://www.vedaninternational.com.

Vedan welcomes all opinions and suggestions from investors.
The e-mail address of its investor relations department is
vdi@vedaninternational.com.
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—BELMR EEBNUTXRIBHNEERER
BEEMRETRERFNERE WEESHAER
BESRER URBKREAMEBMNERRE R
ZRAM UBREEEEAMREERGO-

REEFERN SEEEEYTHARBRE
BENTERGR RBARIFIOKEEHRHR
MERAREBHE EnlEmENRREER
HREEBMRRNA IREFEENAFHEAE
B BREERD THRABREERT  FHR
ERRERE

F—rhE EEBBRELEAREERFTESE
HARNERRBEMAS - FREPAEERS
REBESHEREER@L BREETHER
ERNEMEFR VIEREENTE - ABH

A% Thttp://www.vedaninternational.com ©

FAEREFTREEEENEERHES
EREIDMEREEEAIREE R F IR AR

vdi@vedaninternational.com.
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